Annual Report and Accounts
2016/17

Ambulance, Community, Hospital, Learning Disability & Mental Health Services

www.iow.nhs.uk

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
Established by Parliament through
Statutory Instrument 2012 No. 786
made on 10th March 2012 as a new
body to legally come into being on
1st April 2012.
Annual Report and Accounts 2016 / 17
Presented to Parliament, pursuant to
Schedule 7, paragraph 25(4) of the
National Health Service Act 2006.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

03

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Contents

Part one
Performance Report

04

Overview

04

Trust Profile

06

Our strategic direction and longer term plans

08

Our clinical strategy

12

Our values and behaviours

13

Performance analysis

17

Ambulance, Urgent Care and Community

29

Clinical Support, Cancer and Diagnostics

31

Medicine

33

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities

35

Surgery, Women’s and Children’s Health

37

Corporate Services

39

Part two
Corporate Governance Report

41

Annual Governance Statement – 2016 / 17

41

Staff and Remuneration Report

63

Part three
Annual Accounts 2016 / 17

75

Part four
Independent auditor’s report

114

Appendix A
CQC inspection detailed ratings tables

118

Appendix B
Glossary

121

04

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Part one

Performance Report

Overview
This document is our Annual Report
and Accounts for 2016 / 17 and details
our continuing journey to deliver
against our vision to provide quality
care for everyone, every time.
In line with the national position,
2016 / 17 has presented significant
quality, performance and financial
challenges for the Trust but there have
been some successes.
As in 2015 / 16 despite the efforts of
all staff performance has fluctuated in
2016 / 17 against some of our access
and outcomes targets due to changing
demand and systemic issues. Capacity
issues in the wider island health
economy, including the closure of a
significant number of care home beds
and an older population with increased
medical needs, has had a direct
impact on the Trust’s ability to deliver
against elective and non-elective key
performance targets.
Financial constraints in general terms
are affected by many of the broader
issues impacting on the Trust and are
a principal driver to deliver change.
This includes our ability to recruit and
retain key posts. As a consequence, as
we reported in 2015 / 16, the ongoing
sustainability of some of our services is
coming under increasing pressure.
The Trust was inspected by the
Care Quality Commission (CQC)
in November 2016 with further
inspections in early 2017. The
Trust’s overall rating, announced
in April 2017, deteriorated to
Inadequate. The detailed ratings are

set out in Appendix A. A substantial
programme of change, overseen by
NHS Improvement, is now underway.
Taking into account all these factors,
the assumption that healthcare and
other services will continue to be
provided by the public sector for
the foreseeable future and that the
Department of Health will continue
to provide financial support, the
Board consider the Trust will continue
to operate as a going concern. The
conditions described above do,
however, indicate the existence of
material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
More information about this issue
appears further on in the report.
To address future sustainability we
have, with our partners including
the Local Authority and Isle of Wight
Clinical Commissioning Group, driven
forward progress with the Island’s My
Life a Full Life (MLAFL) new model of
care. During 2016 / 17 the Hampshire
and Isle of Wight Sustainability and
Transformation Partnership (STP) was
developed and plan published. The
Island’s new model of care and the STP
aim to improve the health, wellbeing
and care of our island population –
improving care and quality outcomes,
delivering appropriate care at home
and in the community and making
health and wellbeing clinically and
financially sustainable.
National funding has been secured for
a third year for development of the
new care model and resources to drive
radical change across the Island’s care
economy are in place. Our aims are

drawn from our shared locality vision
and, although pre-dating the national
Five Year Forward View (5YFV), reflect
its aspirations, articulated through
its triple aims – a better patient
experience, better population health
and more efficient use of resources.
The coming years will be exciting
as we work ever more closely with
our partners both on the Island and
Mainland to address the issues raised
by the CQC and the challenges faced
through the redesign of care provision
on the Island. In 2017 / 18 we will
further develop the foundations for
a sustainable model of care for the
Island.

Eve Richardson

Maggie Oldham

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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The responsibilities of an
‘Accountable Officer’
I have been with the Trust since 1st
May 2017. My responsibilities as
Accountable Officer are set out in a
memorandum (financial governance)
for chief executives of NHS Trusts.
In essence, I am responsible for the
propriety and regularity of public
finances in the Trust; for the keeping
of proper accounts; for prudent and
economical administration; for the
avoidance of waste and extravagance;
for the efficient and effective use of
all the resources in my charge; and
for ensuring that officers of the Trust
abide by these.
I am responsible for signing accounts
that must disclose a true and fair view
of the Trust’s income and expenditure,
cash flows, gains and losses, and of its
state of affairs. I sign these accounts,
along with the Executive Director
of Finance, on behalf of the Board.
Although I have only been with the
Trust for a short period of time, as
far as I am aware there is no relevant
audit information of which the Trust’s
auditors are unaware and I have taken
all the steps to make myself aware of
any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Trust’s auditors are
aware of that information.

Maggie Oldham
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Part one

Trust Profile
Isle of Wight NHS Trust is the only integrated acute,
community, mental health, learning disability and
ambulance health care provider in England. Established
in April 2012 following the separation of the provider
and commissioner functions within the Isle of Wight
Primary Care Trust (PCT), the Trust provides an extensive
range of health services to an Island population.

Providing this comprehensive range
of services in a single organisation has
provided a unique opportunity for the
Trust to accelerate the development
of high quality integrated models
of care – where patients experience
no organisational barriers to timely,
high‑quality services.
We aspire to be an integrated care
exemplar to the NHS – where patients
experience excellent well-coordinated,
holistic care and support to manage
their physical and mental health needs
at home, in the community and in
hospital. Fundamentally, we believe
that the integrated form is right
for the Isle of Wight. It has already
realised benefits and is a platform for
performance and quality improvement.
Examples of this include our integrated
urgent care hub which combines 999,
111, community nurses, pharmacy,
community physiotherapy and
occupational therapy, a local authority
warden service, and the out of hours
GP service; and the urgent care service,
which creates a seamless service with
the emergency department.
Our turnover is around £171m and
we employ around 2,675 staff (full
time equivalent). We have a small
catchment population (approximately
140,000) with one of the highest
proportions of older people in the UK.
Demand is greater than the English
‘norm’, but the population is below the
level considered necessary to support
a full range of district general hospital
services.
Delivery of health care on the Island
is therefore different to the mainland.
Travelling to mainland health care

providers involves the use of a ferry or,
when necessary, a helicopter. Moving
patients by helicopter, or ambulance
and ferry, is very resource intensive
and weather dependent. Experience
of extreme weather and emergency
planning illustrates that the Island
needs to be able to cope with minimal
mainland support during difficult times.
The Island is considered far enough in
travelling time from mainland hospitals
to require acute emergency care,
maternity, NICU and other key services
to be provided locally. This is why, for
example, we have been designated as
a trauma unit.
The Isle of Wight ranks among the
40% most deprived local authorities
in England, with 5,000 children
(20%) living in poverty. Deprivation is
reflected in worse than average rates
for smoking, alcohol consumption and
obesity. Local health inequalities exist
with the life expectancy gap between
the most and least deprived areas
being 5.4 years for men and 3.8 years
for women.
In health terms, there are worse than
average early deaths from cancer,
diabetes prevalence and incidence of
malignant melanoma. However, overall
the health of Island residents is better
than the English average. Mortality
rates have been declining over the
last decade in line with the national
trend, though cancer deaths run at
the national average. Local health
needs are skewed towards illnesses
associated with age and frailty, e.g.
long-term conditions which affect an
estimated 60% of people aged over
65; slightly more than half of these

people have two or more long-term
conditions, adding to complexity. Our
plans respond to the priorities of the
local Health and Wellbeing Board.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Our service profile
Income
The Trust’s coterminous relationship
with the Isle of Wight CCG and Isle
of Wight Council is illustrated by
the Trust’s principal income streams
outlined below:
Income source

2016 / 17 £m

2015 / 16 £m

NHS Isle of Wight CCG Total

135.2

134.7

NHS England Total

12.3

11.6

Isle of Wight Council Total

6.6

5.9

Health Education England

3.8

3.7

NHS Creative

2.5

2.6

Other

10.7

11.8

Total

171.1

170.3

Demand
Whilst inpatient (planned activity) and
calls for ambulances have increased
over recent years other areas have
seen a reduction in demand between
2014 and 2017. Our planning for
2017 / 18 forecasts that community
contacts will increase in 2017 / 18
due to the move from hospital to
community based services whilst all
other areas will continue to see a
reduction. The expected reduction in
ambulance calls is due to a change in
the way calls are categorised and the
change in outpatient appointments
due to changes in the way follow-up
appointments are managed.

Activity Demand Plan
2014 / 15 2015 / 16
Inpatient – Planned
(Spells)

Growth

2016 / 17

Growth

2017 / 18

Growth

8,590

10,296

19.9%

12,826

24.6%

12,693

(1.0%)

Inpatient – Emergency
(Spells)

14,064

13,651

(2.9%)

13,606

(0.3%)

13,454

(1.1%)

Outpatient
(Appointments)

141,848

133,582

(5.8%)

130,997

(1.9%)

116,809

(10.8%)

A&E
(Attendances)

44,515

43,776

(1.7%)

42,896

(2.0%)

41,372

(3.6%)

Ambulance
(Calls)

24,355

24,979

2.6%

27,760

11.1%

24,826

(10.6%)

Community
(Contacts)

226,071

216,828

(4.1%)

214,646

(1.0%)

221,658

3.3%

08

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Part one

Our strategic direction and
longer term plans
We have a vision to provide quality care for everyone,
every time. We have developed five Trust Goals to
underpin our vision and will achieve these goals
through the deployment of our strategy of working
“Beyond Boundaries” to be the preferred choice for
sustainable integrated care for our service users and our
commissioners.
We have set out short and longer term priorities and illustrate within our “House”
below how these are linked to the delivery of our vision:
*Starred items have direct links to

Goals

Quality care for everyone, every time
*A positive
experience for
patients, service
users and staff

*Work with others
to keep improving
our services

*Excellent patient
care

*Skilled and
capable staff

*Cost effective,
sustainable services

Priorities

Working “Beyond Boundaries” to be the preferred choice for sustainable integrated care
 Improve mortality
rate
 Prevent avoidable
harm
 *Improve care of:
- older people
- people with
dementia
- children and
young people

QI

Implementation
and monitoring
the effectiveness
of the sepsis care
bundle

 *Create and maintain
partnerships with
other organisations
so that we can
deliver excellent care
 *Develop an
integrated IT
infrastructure
 *Develop 24/7 and 7
day services

QI

*Improve
communication
with patients and
carers

 *Improve what
people think of
their care
 *Improve how staff
feel about work
 *Provide Excellent
End of Life Care

QI

*Improve the
culture of the
organisation to
improve patient
experience

Our Values

 All staff continue to
develop
 All staff understand
how their
contribution helps
to achieve our
Vision
 *Develop our
workforce to
embrace integration
and co-production

QI

*Improve the
Discharging
Planning Process

Our vision and goals guide us; our values underpin everything we do

 * Design services to
deliver best practice
within our
resources
*
 Ensure value for
money for each
service
*
 Develop efficient
and effective
processes with
minimal waste

QI

Reduce Incidence
of Patient Harm

More details about the Quality
Improvement (QI) priorities can be
found in our 2017 Quality Account
which is published in tandem with the
2016 / 17 Annual Report.
Although our ‘House’ stands alone,
it sits within, and is impacted by,
the wider Health and Social Care
Community. This community has come
together to develop a new model
of care known as My Life a Full Life
(MLAFL). The MLAFL new care model
was started in 2013 as a catalyst
for change, bringing together local
partner organisations to deliver a
significant programme of changing
cultures, attitudes and behaviours. The
focus has been on person centred
community response to ensure
people receive co-ordinated care
and support. Within the aspirations
of NHS England’s Five Year Forward
View (5YFV), MLAFL is part of the
national new models of care aimed at
improving health, wellbeing and care
of our island population, improving
care and quality outcomes, delivering
appropriate care at home and in the
community and making health and
wellbeing clinically and financially
sustainable.
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• is based in the community / at
home;
• is a significant shift to prevention
and early intervention, selfhelp / care, with the aim of
reducing health inequalities and
the health and wellbeing gap;
• reduces reliance on statutory
services.

Community
Faith Groups

Crisis
Response
Team

Public
Health

Voluntary
Sector

Independent
Sector
Environment

People
Matter

Friends

My Life
Coordination

One
info
rma
tion

d£
Islan
Ambulance
One
Service

Education

Healthwatch
Colleagues

Informal
community
links

Integrated
Locality
Teams

Integrated
single point
of access

Transport

Palliative
Care

Family

Town and
Parish
Councils

Adult social
care

Hospital
Services

Home

pe
op
le
an
dw
or
kfo
rce

• integrates services to improve
quality and increase system
efficiencies using technology as
the key enabler;

Out of Hours

Commissioned
voluntary sector

Children’s
social care

m
ste
Sy
re
Ca
led
ab
-en
gy
olo
hn
ec
eT
On

• Builds on assets and mobilises
social capital to help reshape
care delivery to meet peoples’
changing needs;

Our New Model of Care
One leadership

Care on the Island has historically been
heavily reliant on statutory services,
which has limited the range of care
available to island residents and based
on forecast demand is no longer
clinically or financially sustainable.
The new care model will mean that
people have greater support from their
community, family / friends as it:

On
ee
mp
ow
ere
d

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Isle Help

Housing
Association

Domicilliary
Care

Community
Health
Services

MH & LD
Services

Key enablers
Intimate/Family
Friendships
Associated Life
My Life, A Full Life – care services
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust

The My Life a Full Life
Neighbourhood New Care
Model Partnership
The MLAFL new model of care has
been making good progress towards
shaping care around people’s
individual needs and keeping
them happy and healthy through
self‑care, self‑management and active
communities. This has been achieved
by working across organisational
boundaries, sharing resources and
expertise. Greater partnership working
with the Island’s incredibly active
1,500 voluntary sector organisations,
along with national Vanguard
funding of £4.74m in 2016 / 17 to
help drive forward the Island-wide
Transformation Programme has
provided meaningful progress that will
be built upon in the coming years.

Independent

Progress includes:
• Establishing and embedding
Care Navigators and Local Area
Coordinators across the Island.
• Delivering End of Life training
across partner organisations.
• Implementing a number of
Primary Care Projects to explore
new ways of working.
• Progressing the Whole Integrated
System Redesign programme
implementation of best practice
e.g. implementing ambulatory
care and starting detailed Acute
Services Redesign programme.
• Implementing Integrated Locality
Services to improve joint working
across all community health and
care services.
• Developing an island-wide Local
Estates Strategy.
• Engaging with Town and Parish
Councils across all three localities
to support local joint working
across all sectors across the
Island.
• Implementing case management
of highest risk patients in
GP practices using the Risk
Stratification Tool.

• Increase in the number of
‘avoided’ admissions against
national projections through
increased usage of 111, Crisis
Team, MDT, Falls Clinic, Isle Help,
Pharmacy First, Care Navigators
and Local Area Coordinators
which have all contributed to
diverting people away from
Emergency Services in the first
instance.
The above measures have contributed
to a reduction in the number of
people attending A&E by approx.
3% compared to 2014 / 15 and cost
avoidance of £2,175,000.

The Trust’s Operating Plan has been
developed in the context of its longer
term partnership arrangements and
the My Life a Full Life new model
of care for the Island. Our aims are
drawn from our shared locality vision
and, although pre-dating the Five
Year Forward View (5YFV), reflect
its aspirations, articulated through
its triple aims – a better patient
experience, better population health
and more efficient use of resources.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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This local groundwork enabled
the Trust and its partners to be
included within the first wave of
NHS England’s ‘Vanguard’ sites for
the development of New Models of
Care. There are a number of system
wide workstreams which focus on
strategic enablers including estates,
IT and workforce. The Trust has key
personnel engaged in the development
and delivery of these workstreams. A
principal focus following the award
of ‘Vanguard’ status was to initiate
a Whole Integrated System Redesign
programme (WISR) to develop the
architecture for a sustainable health
and social care system on the Isle of
Wight. This work has been completed
and an Acute Service Redesign
is underway to ensure that acute
hospital services are planned for the
future using the MLAFL principles.
Whilst this work develops the Trust
will continue in parallel to implement
internal changes to address significant
challenges with respect to patient flow
through the system and recruitment
and retention in critical areas to
ensure that quality and performance
standards are maintained / improved
and resources are used as efficiently as
possible.

The local operating plan includes
on‑going support for the development
of the single point of access hub,
crisis support teams, locality hubs,
support for staff engagement and
development, and on-going cost
base review. There are of course risks
in pursuing transformative activity
whilst the future system architecture
is designed and these risks are
mitigated through our close working
relationships with our partners on a
day to day basis.
In addition to the Trust’s part in
the Hampshire and Isle of Wight
Sustainability and Transformation
Partnership (STP) the Trust has also
entered into a formal strategic
partnership agreement with the Isle of
Wight Council. The objectives of the
partnership are stated and consistent
with the Five Year Health and Social
Care Vision which has been signed up
to by the Isle of Wight Council, Isle
of Wight NHS Trust and the Isle of
Wight Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG). This agreement will enable us
to develop shared service teams which
will integrate identified services from
the Trust and the Council.

11
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Part one

Our clinical strategy
We have an ambition to deliver health and social care in a radically different way
than we do now. We want to break down the boundaries that exist within the
Trust to improve the quality and efficiency of what we have to meet the needs and
expectations of patients now and in the future. This covers not only departments but
also the conventional professional and vocational boundaries we all observe. We also
want to break down the boundaries that exist between the Trust, Primary Care and
Council to develop a highly integrated model of Health and Social Care delivery on
The Island.

The Trust is committed to delivering
the widest possible range of safe, high
quality, cost effective care it can in
partnership with patients, the public,
our commissioners, in particular the Isle
of Wight Clinical Commissioning Group,
the Local Authority and other health
providers. Our current range of health
care services is based on ensuring
appropriate access for people on the
Isle of Wight to modern healthcare.
In the absence of a fixed link to the
mainland this need will still be there
in 5 years and so will the need for the
fullest possible range of health services.
What will evolve is how it is delivered.
Fundamental to this process is the
integration of the Island’s health
and social care systems which we
have been working on over the last
few years. Our healthcare system is
almost uniquely placed to develop a
highly integrated model of care and
social care and through working with
partners in health and social care,
through the My Life a Full Life new
care model, we believe we can evolve
a sustainable system which will best
meet the needs of the Island for the
foreseeable future.
The development of a highly integrated
IT system will also massively transform
what we do by revolutionising how
we communicate with each other and
our patients. This will break down
conventional health and social care
boundaries enabling the development
of a very different model of care to
the one we have now. All of this
will be led by our clinicians, with the
engagement of other partners and
will be supported by aligned effective

corporate services.
This is detailed in our Integrated
Business Plan, which outlines in greater
detail how activity, quality and finance
run together. This strategy paper
describes the clinical vision of this over
the next 5 years and sets the direction
of travel.
Over the coming years we need to
develop the capacity to look after
the needs of an increasingly elderly
Island population with complex health
needs, which we cannot hope to meet
with our current health and social
care model. This will be further driven
by the changing expectations of the
patients we serve. The NHS has been
found wanting in terms of the delivery
of consistently high quality care in
the aftermath of the events at Mid
Staffs and we will have to continue
to respond to this. Fundamental will
be the need to deliver demonstrable
high quality care that is sustainable in
clinical and financial terms. What is
exciting is that much of what we want
to deliver is in embryonic form already.
The development of locality capacity
should provide the ability to manage
more patients who currently would be
referred to St Mary’s Hospital, in the
community. In particular we need to
develop collaborative models of care
which ensure patients only spend the
minimum appropriate amount of time
attending St Mary’s Hospital.
Our clinical vision for the future
envisages a Trust which continues to
supply the fullest range of services
possible, providing these services are
of appropriate quality, and can be
delivered within a cost the local health

economy can afford. How we deliver
our services will change fundamentally
as we rapidly develop highly integrated
services with our CCG and Council.
Services will be characterised by a high
quality service led by our frontline
clinicians. Our staff will be developed
and empowered to work in our unique
environment in a sustainable way in an
environment that will be optimised for
our services.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Part one

Our values and behaviours
Our values and behaviours are not just words; they are aligned to the NHS
Constitution and have been developed through wide consultation. They are a critical
element of how we run our organisation and guide everything we do – our planning,
our decision making and how we behave with our patients and each other. By living
these values and demonstrating these behaviours every day, we can ensure that we
remain highly valued and supported by the community we serve, and provide ‘quality
care for everyone, every time’.

Patients come first in everything we
do. We fully involve our patients,
staff, volunteers, families, carers
and community.
We are committed to delivering quality
care for everyone, every time through:
Caring…
• about everyone’s safety &
wellbeing;
• by valuing and respecting every
person;
• by being open and honest;
• by finding time.
Teamwork…
• working in partnership with
others;
• building high trust relationships;
• striving for excellent
communication;
• acting professionally.
Innovating and improving…
• by continuously developing
and learning, maintaining
competency;
• by giving, welcoming and using
feedback to improve;
• by trying new things; simplifying
and being more efficient.
In order to generate the best ideas, the
best plans and deliver on the money,
we need to create the right working
culture that will achieve our vision.
Our values and behaviours will ensure
that our working culture is strong and
supports delivery of quality care for
everyone, every time.

National context
2016 / 17 was the first year of reporting
to NHS Improvement following the
merger of the Trust Development
Authority with Monitor, the regulator
of NHS Foundation Trusts.
The latest national joint planning
guidance was published on 22nd
September 2016 by NHS England, in
partnership with the five arms-length
bodies (NHS Improvement (Monitor
and TDA), Health Education England,
the National Institute for Clinical
Excellence, Public Health England and
the Care Quality Commission). The
guidance is explicitly positioned to
set out how the sector is expected to
deliver the Five Year Forward View by
2020, ‘restore and maintain financial
balance’ and ‘deliver core access and
quality standards for patients’.

Regional context
Across England every health and
care system has worked together
to produce plans supported by a
Sustainability and Transformation
Partnership (STP), showing how local
services will deliver a sustainable,
transformed health service, and
improve the quality of care, wellbeing
and NHS finances over the next 5 years.
The Island has worked with Hampshire
on the plans to enable health and care
partners across Hampshire and the Isle
of Wight to realise solutions that can
only be implemented at a larger scale
to transform the health and wellbeing
of our population. This will supplement
and enhance our local plans and
initiatives currently underway through

our Local Delivery System as part of
the New Care Models (Vanguards)
programme under the Five Year
Forward View, rather than replace
them.
The plan for Hampshire and Isle of
Wight was published in October 2016
and identifies the following as key
initiatives:
• Reducing unnecessary delays in
leaving hospital.
• Living healthier for longer –
reducing the gap between how
long people live and how long
they live in good health.
• Taking control of our own health
– enabling more people to take
control of their own health and
information.
• Providing the highest quality
acute care for southern
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight.
• Providing more care nearer to
home.
• Improving mental health services.
There are some changes we can
bring in quickly because they involve
changes in the way we do things
within NHS organisations. Some
proposals will take longer to work
through because they are more
complex and may mean a significant
change in how services are provided
in future. In those circumstances, we
will involve local people in developing
these plans and, where appropriate,
hold a formal consultation about them.
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Local context
In line with the national position,
2016 / 17 presented significant quality,
performance and financial challenges
for the Trust. Performance has
fluctuated in year with some of our
access and outcome targets including
referral to treatment, emergency care
standards (ECS) and a range of cancer
targets, due to increased demand and
systemic issues, such as system wide
community bed capacity and primary
care capacity. Capacity issues in the
wider Island health economy, including
the closure of a significant number
of care home beds, has had a direct
impact on the Trust’s ability to deliver
against elective and non-elective key
performance targets.
We set ourselves very ambitious
targets and had a number of
unexpected pressures during the
year (unprecedented bed pressures in
acute, community services supporting
escalated discharges). To respond
to bed pressures we re-established
an off‑site step down facility (the
Poppy Unit), reducing length of stay,
improving patient flow and reducing
ongoing care packages.

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

Our operational directorates were
subject to a significant organisational
change process during 2015 / 16 to
create a structure (as outlined on page
24 and in the section describing the
Business Units in more detail on pages
31 to 40) that would better support
future sustainability of the local health
and social care economy. The benefits
from the implementation of this
new structure were affected by the
unprecedented pressures felt across
the organisation throughout 2016 / 17.
Resources and capacity have been
stretched and this has impacted on
the delivery of transformation and
cost improvement schemes and the
projected financial outturn.
There continue to be a number of
thematic challenges that the Trust
currently faces; some of these
challenges are within the Trust’s
control to address, others require
closer and more effective working with
our partners and stakeholders, these
include:
• Recruitment and retention
• IT infrastructure
• National Agency cap
• Capacity within the wider care
economy
• National mandates, such as 7
day working
• Financial constraints

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

A number of these thematic issues
come through in the most recent Care
Quality Inspection (CQC) reports. The
CQC inspected the Trust in November
2016 with follow-up inspections in
early 2017. The CQC’s report was
published in April 2017. Overall the
CQC rated the Trust as ‘inadequate’
although some areas were ‘good’
across the board. The Trust has
developed an Integrated Improvement
Framework (IIF) to deliver substantial
change across a wide range of areas
in 2017 / 18. The improvement work
identified in the IIF includes:
• Leadership
• Performance Management
• Planning
• Risk Management and Reporting
Financial constraints in general terms
affect many of the other thematic
issues and are a principal driver to
deliver change. By 2019 / 20 the whole
system financial deficit for the Island
is projected to be £70.7m. To address
future sustainability we have with our
partners ramped up progress with
our new care model, under My Life a
Full Life, aimed at improving health,
wellbeing and care of our Island
population, improving care and quality
outcomes, delivering appropriate
care at home and in the community
and making health and wellbeing
clinically and financially sustainable.
National funding has been secured
and resources to drive radical change
across the Island’s care economy are in
place.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Corporate social
responsibility
As the largest employer on the Island
and member of the Isle of Wight
Chamber of Commerce, Tourism &
Industry we are conscious of our duty
to contribute to the Island’s social and
economic sustainability. Wherever
possible, we use local people to deliver
goods and services through local
procurement frameworks.
Alongside Smart Training and
Recruitment (www.smarttar.co.uk),
we support the long term unemployed
through our volunteers’ programme.
This helps people to regain their
confidence and rebuild their skills in
the workplace.
We are founding members
of the Island Innovation Trust
(www.islandinnovationtrust.org.uk)
which manages two secondary schools
and a VI Form campus.
With national staff shortages,
difficulties recruiting to the Island and
a reliance on agency staff and overseas
recruitment, the Trust is planning for
the future and encouraging people to
consider a career with the Trust and
the wider Island NHS. In August 2016
the Trust introduced the role of ‘Future
Careers Facilitator’ with an objective to
promote and raise awareness of NHS
Careers amongst young people on the
Island. This is achieved by enabling
people to experience the NHS through
effective pre-employment programmes,
including:
• Work Experience (80 placements
facilitated since August 2016).

• CHIPs Programme (Careers
in Healthcare Induction
Programme – 2 consecutive
days at St Mary’s hospital where
students have talks and tours of
various departments including
ED, pathology, pharmacy,
maternity and ambulance).
Since August 2016 we have
reached 57 students (from
Carisbrooke College, Christ the
King, Cowes Enterprise College,
Medina college, Ryde Academy,
Sandown Bay Academy, Isle of
Wight College, Isle of Wight
Studio School and Ryde School).
• Q+A Sessions (Where work
experience is hard to facilitate
we offer students a Q+A session
with our staff so that they can
find out more on various careers).
• Open Days (usually scheduled
twice per year). These events
pull in over 200 people and
give the public access to various
staff, hospital tours and medical
simulation equipment).
All these programmes are well known
to all Isle of Wight secondary schools
and colleges. We also provide speakers
for assemblies, tours of the hospital
as well as 2 classroom resources
(in Medical Ethics and Medical
Terminology) which are all in line with
the NHS Constitution and visions
and values. This has proven to be an
innovative project, with clear progress
in linking educational providers
with the Trust. Continuing this work
will enable us to make a positive
correlation between this project and
the Trust’s future workforce.
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Research excellence on the
Island
The Research and Development
Committee continues to receive
research proposals for approval. During
2016 / 17, 23 studies were granted
research governance approval. A
central annual allocation of £394,006
was made available by the Local
Clinical Research Network : Wessex to
provide NHS infrastructure support to
studies within the National Institute
for Health Research Clinical Research
Network (NIHR CRN) portfolio, which
covers clinician sessions, research
nurses and associated staff, NHS
service support (pathology, radiology
and pharmacy) and research set-up
and management.
The number of patients receiving NHS
services provided or sub-contracted by
the Isle of Wight NHS Trust in 2016 / 17
that were recruited during that period
to participate in research approved by
a research ethics committee was 1,003.
Participation in clinical research
demonstrates the Trust’s commitment
to improving the quality of care we
offer and to making our contribution
to wider health improvement. Through
active participation in research, our
clinical staff stay abreast of the latest
possible treatment possibilities.
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There were 23 clinical staff
participating in research approved
by a research ethics committee at
the Trust during 2016 / 17. These
staff participated in research
covering the clinical specialties
of cancer, cardiovascular disease,
children, dementia & degenerative
diseases, diabetes, gastroenterology,
haematology, hepatology, mental
health, metabolic & endocrine disease,
ophthalmology, ENT, reproductive
health & childbirth, respiratory
disorders and stroke.
The impact of research activities of
the David Hide Asthma & Allergy
Centre continues to be substantial,
delivering high impact publications
and facilitating the development of
further funding applications. The
Centre has managed to review over
70% of the 1989 / 90 Birth Cohort at
26 years of age, alongside recruitment
to the 3rd Generation Study with
reviews at 2 and 3 years of age.
Asthma, Allergy and Inflammation
(AAIR) Charity funding was secured
to conduct a sub-study to assess
Bronchial Hyper‑reactivity in 150 of
the Birth Cohort at 26 years, together
with Wellcome Trust funding to study
pulmonary epithelial barrier and
immunological functions at birth and
in early life in 200 infants over the next
2½ years. A new 5-year grant from
the National Institute for Health (NIH)
USA will enable the team to continue
follow-up of the 3rd Generation at
6 years in collaboration with the
University of Memphis. The team has
also recruited Mite Allergy Prevention
+ Immune Tolerance in Early Childhood
(MAPS / ITEC) children at 3 years for
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follow-up and a new 5-year grant
from the National Institute for Health
(NIH) USA will enable the team to
assess these children at 6–7 years of
age. Children have been recruited to
the second phase of the Asthma UK
“ItsMyAsthma” trial. Their collaboration
with the University of Manchester
continues with the provision of data
from our Isle of Wight cohort for a 4
year MRC-funded network of all UKbased birth cohorts designed to study
asthma (STELAR consortium).
Our engagement with clinical
research shows our commitment
to transparency and desire to
improve patient outcomes and
experience across the NHS but equally
demonstrates our commitment to
testing and offering the latest medical
treatments and techniques.
For further information visit
www.davidhideallergyresearch.co.uk/

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Private Healthcare supports
Public Healthcare
The Mottistone is the Island’s Private
healthcare provider, run by the
Trust and based on site at St Mary’s
Hospital. The Mottistone offers
private healthcare to those who have
healthcare insurance or choose to self
pay and had a turnover in excess of
£900k in 2016 / 17 (the same as the
two previous years). The Unit is entirely
self supporting from private income
and the Trust benefits by being able
to use its free capacity at peak times
to ensure NHS operations still go
ahead. The service receives excellent
feedback from customers and has seen
a number of improvements over the
past year.
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Part one

Performance analysis
Isle of Wight NHS Trust’s performance against a range of targets for the past four years

Unscheduled care

Area

Target

2013 / 14

2014 / 15

2015 / 16

2016 / 17

Emergency care 4 hour standard

95%

97.00%

93.52%

88.78%

86.00%

Ambulance – Red 1 Cat A % < 8 min

75%

80.20%

80.91%

71.25%

63.16%

Ambulance – Red 2 Cat A % < 8 min

75%

76.08%

75.40%

74.21%

70.03%

Ambulance – Cat A % < 19 min

95%

96.60%

96.25%

94.93%

91.87%

Stroke: % spending 90%+ time on stroke unit

80%

91.70%

91.80%

86.05%

84.80%

60%

81.50%

69.13%

72.48%

98.90%

90%

91.00%

85.95%

58.80%

57.00%

95%

96.80%

93.01%

94.79%

90.00%

92%

95.80%

93.98%

90.95%

88.00%

23

19.9

22.5

29.9

33.8

18.3

17.2

18.1

18.3

21.8

28

17.7

18.4

21.4

24.4

<100 pa

43

25

53

53

% of patients waiting > 6 weeks for diagnostic*

<1%

0.40%

0.16%

0.47%

0.50%

Symptomatic breast cancer referrals seen <2 weeks***

93%

94%

92.27%

97.41%

96.40%

98%

100%

100.0%

99.6%

99.8%

94%

99%

98.37%

98.24%

98.00%

90%

99%

95.00%

97.22%

93.20%

Cancer diagnosis to treatment <31 days***

96%

99%

99.12%

99.12%

99.50%

Cancer urgent referral to treatment <62 days***

85%

94%

87.09%

82.96%

84.20%

Cancer patients seen <14 days after urgent GP
referral***

93%

96%

95.96%

96.03%

97.10%

HCAI: Clostridium Difficile (C. Diff) infection rates

7

7

12

23

12

HCAI: incidence of MRSA

0

2

1

3

1

Mixed sex accommodation breaches

0

0

10

59

12

Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI)**

–

1.12

1.06

1.003

1.015

95%

88.60%

98.64%

99.24%

99.00%

18

44

43

28

No longer
measured

CPA – 7 day follow-up

95%

95%

97%

97%

95%

Crisis resolution home treatment

95%

98%

99%

95%

95%

Episodes of home treatment

249

368

348

420

No longer
measured

% of EIP pathways completed within two weeks

60%

Metric

% of people who have a TIA who are scanned and
treated within 24 hours
RTT: % of admitted patients who waited 18 weeks or
less
RTT: % of non-admitted patients who waited 18 weeks
or less
RTT: % of incomplete patients who waited 18 weeks
or less*
RTT admitted 95th percentile
RTT non-admitted 95 percentile
th

Planned care

RTT incomplete pathways 95th percentile
Patients waiting more than 6 weeks for diagnostic

Mental health services Patient safety & quality

Cancer patients receiving subsequent chemo / drug <31
days***
Cancer patients receiving subsequent surgery <31
days***
Cancer patients treated after screening referral <62
days***

VTE risk assessment*
New cases of first episode psychosis

*Target introduced in 2012 / 13
**Reflects figures published Oct 12, Apr 15, Jan 16 & Jan 17
***Cancer figures for March 2016 / 17 are pending validation – YTD figures may change slightly

81%
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The challenges faced across the
system have continued to impact on
the achievement of key performance
targets during the year. Current
benchmarked performance is outlined
above. The Trust monitors performance
through the Board Assurance
Committees and in a comprehensive
performance report which is discussed
at the monthly Trust Board meetings
held in public. The Trust’s Integrated
Improvement Framework (IIF) will
address areas of poor performance
indicated in the table above during
2017 / 18. The development of the
My Life a Full Life new model of care
initiative, funded by NHS England’s
‘Vanguard’ programme is helping
with the system redesign work and
the implementation of the plans for
sustainability and transformation
across Hampshire and Isle of Wight
Sustainability and Transformation
which will address fundamental
underlying issues about performance
in these areas.
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Against the national ambulance targets
the Trust continued to under-perform
for 2016 / 17 against the trajectory and
the national target due to workforce
vacancies and worsening handover
times in ED constraining vehicle
availability to match demand levels.
Key improvement actions for 2017 / 18
include:
• To make the hospital handover
process as timely and safe as
possible so that ambulances
can get back on the road
and respond to further life
threatening calls.
• To increase the coverage of the
Community First Responder
provision across the island using
well trained staff and volunteers
who have access to the right
level of equipment.
• Rota review and implementation
for the integrated care hub and
operations.
• Recruitment and development of
staffing across the management,
integrated care hub and
operations.
• Implementing the national
‘Nature of Call’ [NOC] &
‘Dispatch on Disposition’ [DOD]
initiatives.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

The Trust’s performance against
the Emergency Care four (4) hour
standard under-performed, also due
to workforce vacancies, delayed
mobilisation of best practice
recommendations and the impact
of insufficient system wide response
for improved patient flow. Key
improvement actions include:
• Increase in the proportion of
ambulatory care interventions as
a proportion of the medical take.
• An Emergency Department
(ED) consultant to lead and
implement a model of early
senior review within the
department (such as ‘pit stop’,
‘SIFT’ or ‘RAT’).
• Review of processes in
specialty teams to improve
the responsiveness to ED for a
specialty opinion. Align with
potential Surgical Assessment
Unit (SAU) and Paediatric
Assessment Unit (PAU)
developments.
• Increased staff numbers across
the pathway including ED
Consultants, Acute and Coronary
Care Physicians.
• Implementing the SAFER patient
flow bundle & ‘Red2Green’
processes across all Wards
following the Emergency Care
Improvement Programme (ECIP)
rapid improvement guides.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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The Trust’s performance against
Referral to Treatment (RTT) has
worsened due to reduced elective
capacity, increases in gastroenterology
and ophthalmology waiting lists over
18 weeks and under-utilisation of some
theatre lists. Improvements to address
this performance include:
• Delivery of the 2017 / 18 demand
plan.
• Development of a standardised
booking model (outpatients and
inpatients) based on internal
& external best practice. Work
towards increasing booking
efficiency to 80% for all relevant
specialties.
• Delivering additional activity off
Island via sub-contracting with
mainland independent providers.
Non-achievement of the cancer 62
day target was due to inconsistent
performance in the year because
complex pathways requiring multiple
diagnostic tests both at the Trust
and at tertiary providers. This will be
addressed during 2017 / 18, along with
other key improvements including:
• Implementing actions to improve
multi‑disciplinary team (MDT)
meetings.
• Improving timeliness of clinical
referrals to tertiary providers.
• Trust diagnostic testing to be
performed within 7 days of
receipt of referral.
• Recruitment drive for one
additional Radiologist and one
additional Histopathologist to
provide MDT cover.

Sustainability

Energy

Our vision is to provide high
quality health care services in an
environmentally sustainable manner.
We are taking active steps to improve
our energy efficiency, lower our water
consumption, and reduce the impacts
of the waste we generate.

We aim to reduce our energy
consumption and carbon footprint
by encouraging staff, patients and
visitors to adopt simple energy saving
actions. Good energy behaviours, such
as turning off lights and equipment
when not in use, or closing doors to
avoid draughts, can make a significant
difference when replicated across an
organisation. Those measures have
also been proven to enhance patient
experience.

We have a Sustainable Development
Management Plan titled ‘Greener
Care’, published in June 2015. The
plan sets out our ambitions for
reducing our environmental impacts
and embedding sustainability principles
in the organisation.
Further information and copies of
our Annual Sustainability Reports are
available on our website at www.iow.
nhs.uk/about-us/environment-andsustainability/Environment-andSustainability.htm. A copy of the
2016 / 17 Annual Sustainability Report
will be available in June 2017.
Water
We work closely with Southern Water
to ensure the Trust water discharges
are identified and minimised, including
putting into place formal Trade
Effluent Consents for a number of our
buildings.

Waste & Recycling
In 2016 / 17 the Trust has maintained
its waste recycling rate with 50% of
all domestic waste generated by the
Trust being recycled. The Trust is still
recognised nationally as a hub of good
practice on waste management and
continues to work very closely with its
waste contractors implementing new
systems to help further reduce our
environmental impacts and lowering
the Trust carbon footprint.
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Financial performance
2016 / 17

Investing in capital equipment
(2015 / 16 figures in brackets)

Outturn delivered
(2015 / 16 figures in brackets)

The Trust had a Capital Resource Limit
of £6.953m (£6.305m) made up of an
initial limit of £6.346m and a return
of the capital transferred to revenue in
2015 / 16 of £0.607m. The Trust also
received some grants and donations.
The Capital Expenditure limit was
£7.130m.

The Trust Board approved a planned
deficit for 2016 / 17 of £4.63m
(£4.60m), inclusive of receiving
£3.50m from the Sustainability and
Transformation Fund (STF).
However significant operational
pressure, and under performance on
the Cost Improvement Plan, resulted
in the Trust reporting a deficit for
2016 / 17 of £10.960m (£8.358m).
The main reasons for our increased
deficit against plan were:
• The flow of medical patients
through the Trust meant that
a higher occupancy of medical
patients contributed to the
cancellation of both Inpatient and
Day Case Elective activity, leading
to less income than planned;
• The higher occupancy of medical
patients and utilisation of Day
Surgery and other areas has
required additional staffing,
leading to excess costs being
incurred for nursing staff and
medical locums;
• Non delivery of required cost
improvement programme (CIP);
and
• A loss of STF funding for Q3
& Q4 due to the operational
performance targets and the
financial plan not being met
mainly as a result of the key
points above.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

During January 2017, the Trust
reviewed the phasing of its Capital
Programme for 2016 / 17 and the
Executive Team supported slippage
of £1.7m of capital schemes into
2017 / 18. This will be added back onto
the Capital Resource Limit in 2017 / 18.
This resulted in capital expenditure for
2016 / 17 of £5.229m (£6.303m) which
included:
Backlog Maintenance

£1.3m

Equipment RRP

£1.2m

Other Equipment

£0.9m

Information Management & technology (IM&T) RRP

£0.8m

Integrated Community Nursing System

£0.4m

Other IM&T Projects

£0.5m

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

We achieved our statutory duty
to remain within our External
Financing Limit
(2015 / 16 figures in brackets)
The Trust had an under spend against
our External Financing Limit (EFL) of
£6.280m (£0.975m). This means that
the Trust spent less cash than planned
but this was mainly due to receiving
additional loan funding to support the
larger than planned deficit.
More information about the financial
performance of the Trust can be found
in the full accounts for 2016 / 17 which
form part of this report (see page 75).
Looking Forward
Significant service and recruitment
challenges remain into 2017 / 18. Our
Board approved budget for 2017 / 18
is a planned deficit of £18.835m,
including an £8.613m savings plan.
This savings requirement equates to
around 5% of turnover.
The Trusts capital plan for 2017 / 18 is
an expected spend of £7.92m.

The business as a ‘going concern’
The accounts have been prepared
on the basis the Trust is a going
concern as there is no indication that
healthcare and other services will not
continue to be provided by the public
sector for the foreseeable future and
that continuing financial support will
be provided by the Department of
Health.
This year the Trust has struggled to
meet its financial targets against
a backdrop of increased financial
pressure across the NHS. The Trust has
returned a deficit of £10.96m but has
achieved £7.8m savings through the
Cost Improvement Programme. The
Department of Health provided deficit
funding of £12.3m as revenue support
loans in year bringing the total revenue
support loan funding to £14.0m at 31
March 2017.
New regulatory oversight undertakings
have also been agreed which will
provide a focus on supporting the
Trust to exit from ‘Special Measures’
imposed following the Care Quality
Commission’s inspection report
published in April 2017.
The Trust’s control total for 2017 / 18
is a deficit of £0.366m, however it
is expected the Trust will deliver a
deficit of £18.8m. The plans reflect
agreed continued revenue deficit
support funding from the Department
of Health, and this support funding
is authorised by the Department of
Health monthly in advance. Deficit
support funding totalling £2.9m for
April and May 2017 has been provided
to the Trust.
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The Trust has a contract in place with
the Isle of Wight CCG for 2017–19
for £130.301m (2017 / 18) and
£126.431m (2018 / 19). The Trust
also has in place a contract with NHS
England for £8.560m (2017 / 18).
The Trust’s 2017 / 18 cash flow forecast
is based on the assumptions in the
2017 / 18 financial plan. The key
assumptions underpinning the cash
flow are receipt of £17.5m revenue
support loan from the Department of
Health to finance the revenue deficit.
The cash flow position is reported
to the Trust’s Finance, Investment,
Information & Workforce Committee
and the Board monthly and this is
based on the Trust’s detailed cash flow
forecast which is updated daily.
Taking into account all these factors,
the assumption that healthcare and
other services will continue to be
provided by the public sector for
the foreseeable future and that the
Department of Health will continue
to provide financial support, the
Board consider the Trust will continue
to operate as a going concern. The
conditions described above do,
however, indicate the existence of
material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Corporate Information
Trust Board structure and
operational management
arrangements
The Trust’s Board comprises 6
Non‑Executive (including the Chair)
and 5 Executive Directors with voting
rights. Non-voting Non-Executive and
Executive Directors and Board Advisors
are appointed as required. The current
composition of the Board is as follows:

Non-executive Director
David King

Non-executive Director
Charles Rogers

Non-executive Director
Jessamy Baird

Trust Chair
Eve Richardson

Non-executive Director
Dr Nina Moorman

Non-executive Director
Vaughan Thomas

During the course of 2016 / 17 Jane
Tabor (Non-Executive Director), Lizzie
Peers (Non-Executive Financial
Advisor) and Lena Samuels (Associate
Non-Executive Director), non voting
completed their time as Non-Executive
Directors and Vaughan Thomas joined
the Board in September 2016.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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During the course of 2016 / 17
Katie Gray, Executive Director of
Transformation and Integration
(non voting) left the Trust and Jon
Burwell joined the organisation. Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) Karen Baker
resigned from her position with effect
from 31 / 3 / 17 and an interim CEO,
Maggie Oldham, took up post on 1st
May 2017. The post will be advertised
with a view to recruiting a permanent
CEO during 2017.
Towards the end of 2016 / 17 a
consultation on the structure and
portfolios of the Executive Team
was undertaken. The result of
the consultation which is being
implemented is that the Company
Secretary role will be removed
and a Director of Organisational
Development and Human Resources
will be recruited during 2017 / 18. In
the interim the Trust has engaged
a Board level advisor on Human
Resources and Organisational
Development.
Biographies of the Trust’s
Non‑Executive and Executive Directors
can be found on the Trust’s website at
www.iow.nhs.uk/about-us

Executive Director of
Finance and Human
Resources
Chris Palmer

Company Secretary
(non-voting)
Mark Price

Executive Director of
Nursing and Quality
Alan Sheward

Interim
Chief Executive Officer
Maggie Oldham

Executive Director of
Strategy and Planning
(non-voting)
Jon Burwell

Chief Operating Officer
Shaun Stacey

Executive Medical
Director
Mark Pugh
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The Trust’s operational services are
organised into discrete clinical business
units (CBUs) that were introduced
in November 2015. The CBUs are
supported by a range of corporate
services.
More information about the Trust’s
governance arrangements can be
found in the Annual Governance
Statement (see page 41).

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Deputy Chief
Operating Officer

Clinical Business Unit
Mental health and
Learning disability

Clinical Business Unit
Surgery, Women’s and
Children’s health

Chief Operating Officer

Clinical Business Unit
Ambulance, Urgent
care and Community

Clinical Business Unit
Medicine

Clinical Business Unit
Clinical support, Cancer
and Diagnostics

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Board committees

Membership

Patient Council

The business of the Trust is managed
through seven Board Assurance
committees which are listed in the
Annual Governance Statement. Full
details of these committees, their
membership and terms of reference
are available on our website at
www.iow.nhs.uk/about-us and in the
Annual Governance Statement.

The Trust is a key part of the Island
community and we run programmes
of engagement to strengthen our
relationships with local groups and
individuals. Our staff attend festivals
and other events to talk about the
work that we do and encourage
people to sign up for our membership
programme. We use the feedback we
get from members and others to refine
our services.

Our Patient Council meet on a regular
basis to discuss developments and
plans that could impact on patients
and the wider public. There are
currently 21 patient representatives
including an elected Chair, who are
members of the Trust, who help
provide a patient perspective and help
address matters identified as important
by patients. Members of the Council
are involved in shaping strategies and
new initiatives within the local health
scene and they also provide regular
representation to various committees
and Board meetings.

Transparency at the Trust – the
Register of Interests
Every year, senior staff and Board
members are required to declare any
interests, particularly those which
could conflict with the business of
the Trust. The Register of Interests is
available for inspection at Audit and
Corporate Risk Committee meetings
and at Board meetings on request. You
can also obtain a copy by emailing
board@iow.nhs.uk or calling 01983
822099 ext 5741.
Being Open and the Duty of
Candour
The Trust fully supports the need to
be open and transparent in line with
national guidance and the Duty of
Candour placed on organisations and
staff. During the year the Trust has
been ensuring that staff have the
knowledge and are supported to apply
the duty, and continue to refine the
process to ensure that we are able to
provide assurance on the actions taken
in relation to candour.

The Trust remains committed to
being a membership organisation
and currently has circa 5,600 ‘public
members’. These are members of the
public, who want to make a difference
to healthcare on the Island.
Activities during the year include
regular Medicine for Members
meetings (approx. 5 per year). These
give members the opportunity to help
shape our future plans, and quiz the
senior team in a friendly open forum.
These events are very well attended.
Member participation has intensified
this year with members invited to a
number of forums and to a range of
workshops focussed on the Acute
Services Redesign (ASR) work.

The Chair of the Patient Council, Linda
Fair, reports:
“It has been another busy year for the
Patient Council. Four new members
were recruited and now are fully
involved in council matters. Sadly one
member, Dr Keith Chapman, passed
away unexpectedly but we are grateful
for his contribution to the Council over
many years.
The Patient Council has a variety of
roles. Many council members were
involved in a one-off day to try and
collect no-longer-needed pieces of
hospital equipment such as walking
sticks and crutches. The cost to the
hospital of un-returned equipment is
considerable so members volunteered
to stand at NHS Health Centres as
well as in the main entrance to St
Mary’s Hospital to receive back from
the public any unwanted items. I am
pleased to say that about 40 items
were returned for disinfection and
then re-use. It is hoped that this day
will be repeated in the future and even
more items will be returned.
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Various concerns were brought to the
attention of the Trust including the
state of chairs in both the old Beacon
Centre (now the Urgent Care Service)
and the Day Surgery Unit, the storage
of beds and mattresses, poor hand
hygiene, the lack of disability signs over
patients’ beds (deaf and blind) and
provisions in both Diagnostic Imaging
and Urology. They also requested
reassurance on cleaning policy after use
of the imaging equipment by local vets.
The Patient Council gave support
for the purchase of a second deep
cleaning Bioquel machine in order
to help with the prevention of
hospital infections such as MRSA
and C diff. They also visited A & E
to assess matters from the patient
perspective and several changes were
implemented as a result.
The Patient Council has listened to
many reports and presentations
from members of the hospital and
external organisations and has helped
formulate patient literature (e.g. on
anaesthetics), advised on the Hospital
Site Map which enables visitors to find
their way about, provided feedback
on the catering services and offered
help with Adult Nurse Training in
collaboration with Portsmouth Hospital,
to name but a few!
Many members undertook training
in how to be a Dementia Friend
and a greater understanding of
the requirements of patients with
dementia and its impact on the
hospital (e.g. signs indicating which
ward a patient is on, clocks, certain
colours to indicate toilets, etc.) was
gained by all.
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Finally, I would once again like to thank
all the members of the Patient Council
who give freely of their time in order
to help contribute to the best possible
experience for the patient. We hope
to continue providing the voice of
the patient over the next challenging
months whilst the Trust strives to
fully comply with the health service
requirements of the 21st century.”
Quality Governance and Nursing
Services

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

• Tissue Viability and Nutrition
• Estates Medical Electronics
• Healing Arts
• Main Reception
The team are also responsible for:
• Quality Contract
• Quality Account
• Care Quality Commission
• Serious Incidents Requiring
Investigation

We take the quality of our services very
seriously and were deeply disappointed
by the outcome of the most recent
inspection by the Care Quality
Commission.

• Quality Priorities

Quality Governance is overseen by a
triumvirate comprising:

• Patient Safety Alerts

• Associate Medical Director – Dr
Mark Connaughton
• Deputy Director of Quality (lead
Nurse) – Deborah Matthews
• Business Manager – Mandy
Blackler
The corporate quality services provided
include:

• Ward Accreditation Programme
• Clinical Governance
• Friends and Family Test
• Duty of Candour
• Safety Thermometer
Corporate Nursing
Nursing as a corporate function is
overseen by the Deputy Director of
Nursing, Sarah Johnston and the
Deputy Director of Allied Health
Professionals, Lisa Reed. Services
include:
• Adult Safeguarding

• Infection Prevention and Control

• Children’s Safeguarding

• Complaints

• Mental Health Act / Mental
Capacity Act / Deprivation Of
Liberty Safeguards

• Patient Advice and Liaison
Service (PALS)
• Chaplaincy
• Implementation of guidance
from the National Institute of
Clinical Excellence (NICE)
• Clinical Audit
• Risk and Litigation

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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The team are responsible for:
• Nurse staffing, conduct, clinical
standards
• AHP staffing, conduct, clinical
standards
• Staff nurse bank
• Safeguarding
Working with others
The Trust benefits from having
close relationships with a number
of organisations, including
Healthwatch Isle of Wight. This
consumer‑championing organisation
provides feedback to the Board and
helps us to provide an even better
service.
We also work extensively with the
Isle of Wight Council on our shared
vision of integrating health and
social care services through the My
Life a Full Life new care model. The
Trust is represented at the Council’s
Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Sub Committee, on the Health and
Wellbeing Board Executive Committee
and we provide various briefings for
Councillors and Officers.
Emergency Preparedness
The Trust has a Major Incident Plan
that is being updated to be compliant
with the requirements of the NHS
Emergency Planning Guidance 2005,
NHS England’s Emergency Planning
Framework and all the associated
guidance in place.

Principles for Remedy
The Trust supports the Principles for
Remedy published by the Parliamentary
and Health Service Ombudsman
(PHSO) in May 2010 and implements
these principles as part of the Trust’s
complaints handling procedure. We
regularly review our complaints
handling processes to ensure we are
working in line with the ‘user led vision
for raising concerns and complaints’,
and have worked with Healthwatch
Isle of Wight during the year to help
review our complaints process.
Health and safety
The Trust has an excellent health and
safety record and as a responsible
employer, we encourage staff to report
any incidents to promote a healthy,
open culture.
In 2016 / 17:
• 13 reports were submitted to
the Health and Safety Executive
under the Reporting of Injuries,
Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations 2013 –
this compares with 10 reports in
2015 / 16, 11 reports in 2014 / 15,
14 reports in 2012 / 13 and 16
reports in 2013 / 14.
• There were 23 manual handling
incidents (such as strains and
sprains) – this compares with
30 incidents in 2016 / 17, 46
incidents in 2014 / 15, 34
incidents in 2013 / 14, 40
incidents in 2012 / 13 and 42 in
2011 / 12.

We continue to take a zero tolerance
approach on violence and abuse
towards staff and we will take legal
action against those who are criminally
responsible for their actions.
In 2016 / 17:
• There were 183 (85 in 2015 / 16;
94 in 2014 / 15) assaults on staff
of which 174 (83 in 2015 / 16;
91 in 2014 / 15) were due to
the mental health or physical
condition of the patient. 9 (2 in
2015 / 16; 3 in 2014 / 15) were
criminal acts and were dealt with
by the police.
• There were 293 (315 in 2015 / 16;
330 in 2014 / 15, 310 in
2013 / 14) reports of verbal abuse
(we believe this is significantly
under-reported as it has sadly
become an everyday occurrence
in many wards and departments).
We have a comprehensive policy
covering health, safety and security,
which is available on request.
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Cost allocation and charges for
information

One of the major threats to healthcare
is the outbreak of fire in a building and
the Trust works hard to prevent fire
and train for the outbreak.

The Trust has complied with HM
Treasury’s guidance on setting charges
for information.
Fraud and Corruption

Fire Risk Assessments Completed

Fire evacuation drills completed
An important part of health and
safety practice is the completion of
Control of Substances Hazardous to
Health (COSHH) reviews which are
undertaken on a regular basis.

More information can be found on the
Trust’s website at www.iow.nhs.uk
or by telephoning 01983 822099 ext
4891.
Information Governance

Better Payments Practice Code and
Prompt Payments Code

During 2016 / 17 there were four
information governance incidents
which were reported to the
Information Commissioners Office.
More details of these can be found in
the Annual Governance Statement on
page 41.

The Trust has signed up to the ‘Better
Payments Practice Code’ and ‘Prompt
Payments Code’. Details of the Trust’s
performance are included in note 11
to the full Accounts.

Pension liabilities

Disclosure to auditors

Details of how pension liabilities
are treated can be found in note
10.3 in the full Accounts and the
Remuneration Report.

All current Directors have made
statements that so far as they are
aware there is no relevant material
information or 3rd party transactions
of which the company’s auditor is
unaware. All Directors have taken
steps to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditor is aware of
that information.

External auditor’s remuneration

Back care can be a significant issue
for NHS employers with staff required
to assist patients whose weight is
increasing in line with a general
increase in population weight. Training
is provided to staff on moving and
handling both patients and equipment.

The Trust has a robust and effective
counter fraud service provided by TIAA
Ltd (www.tiaa.co.uk). This minimises
the cost of fraud and corruption and
frees up resources for better patient
care.

We are required to declare any
remuneration paid to auditors in
respect of any non-audit work
undertaken by them. Disclosure is
required by regulations made under
s494 of the Companies Act 2006. We
can confirm that our external auditors
have not undertaken any non-audit
work for the Trust during 2016 / 17.
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Clinical Business Unit (CBU)

Ambulance, Urgent Care and
Community
The Clinical Business Unit is led by a triumvirate:

Chris Smith
Clinical Director

Jenni Edgington
Head of Nursing and Quality

Ambulance, Urgent Care and
Community Services: Who’s
who?
The Ambulance, Urgent Care and
Community Services Clinical Business
Unit covers the following services:
• Ambulance
• 111
• Emergency Department
• MAAU
• Therapeutic Services
• Assistive Technology
• Podiatry
• MPTT
• Occupational Therapy
• Physiotherapy
• Speech and Language
Therapy
• Orthotics and Prosthetics
• Dietetics
• Specialist Services
• Continence
• Sexual Health
• SPARCCS (non-weight bearing
beds)
• Locality Leads
• Community Nursing
• Community Matrons
• Health Visitors
• Schools Nurses

Victoria White
Head of Operations
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Ambulance, Urgent Care and
Community: Success
During the course of 2016 / 17 the
Clinical Business Units achievements
included:
• Coping with additional demand
on the 111 service following a
‘ring first’ campaign and changes
to staffing in primary care.
• Introduction of ‘Community
practitioners’ at night in June
2016 supported by district
nursing during the transition
period and working towards a
24 / 7 service.
• Appointed:
• Operational lead for specialist
services with effect from June
2016.
• New locality lead for
community nursing who took
up post in August 2016.
• New Head of Operations with
effect from March 2017.
• Two new Adult Speech and
Language Therapists to
longstanding vacancies.
• Arrangements agreed with
NHS England Wessex for the
introduction of apprentice call
handlers – a grow your own
scheme to extend the career
pathway and reduce vacancies.
• Improved joint working between
the Local Authority Re-ablement
team and the Trust’s Community
Rehabilitation team to improve
the discharge arrangements for
patients.

• Sexual Health Services were
commended in the Health
Education England, Wessex
Shine Awards for their initiative
‘Coffee, cake, condoms and
contraception’.
• Progress on the realignment of
community services as part of
the Urgent Care Collaborative.
• Managed the change of the
Beacon Walk-In Centre in
October 2016 when it became
part of the Urgent Care Service
following the dissolution of the
partnership with Lighthouse
Medical Ltd.
• Following discussions with Isle
of Wight Clinical Commissioning
Group and alignment with the
national A&E Improvement Plan,
implementation of an Urgent
Care Improvement Plan.
• Implementation of Ambulatory
Emergency Care (AEC) from
November 2016 with the
establishment of a four bed unit
in the Medical Assessment Unit
(MAU). During December 2016
AEC supported avoidance of
40 admissions to an inpatient
bed, and a further 43 patients in
January 2017.
• Placed Automated External
Defibrillators (AEDS) across the
Island with community training
provided by the Commercial
Ambulance Training team to
Residential and Nursing Home
providers and others.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

• Funding from the ‘My Life a Full
Life’ new care model supported
seven nursing and residential
homes across the island, with the
introduction of Skype clinics with
West Wight GP surgery for rapid
access to a frailty nurse within
the community.
• A pilot project to address acute
frailty commenced in the Medical
Assessment Unit at the end of
February 2017.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Clinical Business Unit (CBU)

Clinical Support, Cancer and
Diagnostics
The Clinical Business Unit is led by a triumvirate:

Gillian Honeywell
Muriel Prager
Joint Clinical Director Joint Clinical Director

Clinical Support, Cancer and
Diagnostics: Who’s who?
The Clinical Support, Cancer and
Diagnostics Clinical Business Unit
covers the following services:
• Anaesthetics
• Pain Services
• Pathology
• Blood Sciences & Transfusion
Service
• Microbiology
• Cellular Pathology
• Mortuary
• Outpatient Appointment &
Referral Unit Outpatients
• Day Surgery
• Theatres
• Endoscopy
• Pre-Assessment and Admissions
Unit Wards
• Intensive Care Unit
• Coronary Care Unit
• Critical Care Outreach
• Cancer Services
• Chemotherapy
• Breast Care
• Cancer Clinical Nurse
Specialist
• Pharmacy
• HSDU
• OHPiT

Judy Dyos
Head of Nursing &
Quality

Diane Adams
Head of Operations

• Diagnostic Imaging
• Breast Imaging
• CT
• MRI
• PACS
• Radiology
• Ultrasound
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Clinical Support, Cancer and
Diagnostics: Success
During the course of 2016 / 17 the
Clinical Business Unit’s achievements
included:
• Appointed to:
• Head of Nursing and Quality
with effect from July 2016.
• Two Consultant
Haematologists.
• Consultant Radiologist.
• Long term locum
Microbiologist secured.
• International Standards
Organisation (ISO) accreditation
for the Histopathology
Department and Cellular
Pathology.
• JAG accreditation for the next
3 years for the Endoscopy Unit.
The assessor would recommend
other Trust’s planning to upgrade
their units to visit St Mary’s.
• Project commenced in Theatres
to create a dedicated admissions
area, surgeons and anaesthetists
to sign off theatre lists and
informed bookings. These
actions will reduce the number
of cases cancelled due to delays
in bed availability at start of
theatre lists.

• Temporal Arteritis is a condition
which can lead to vision loss and
a Temporal Artery Ultrasound
trial has commenced in selected
patients. With the support of
the Trust’s Charitable Funds a
high frequency linear hockey
stick ultrasound probe has been
purchased enabling improved
assessment of the temporal
arteries. The benefit to patients is
that use of ultrasound can avoid
the need for an invasive surgical
procedure.
• A temporary admissions area was
established in the Pre Admission
and Assessment Unit (PAAU) in
order to reduce delays in getting
patients to Theatre.
• The rotation of staff from
Coronary Care Unit (CCU) to
the Intensive Care Unit (ICU)
has resulted in avoidance of
agency usage and improved the
resilience of services.
• The Out-Patient Department
(OPD) have been supporting the
Emergency Department (ED) in
providing the plaster room to
manage minors at points of high
pressure.
• NHS Blood and Transplant
(NHSBT) Service have praised
the Intensive Care Unit and
wider Trust for the number of
referrals received and number of
successful organ donations.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Clinical Business Unit (CBU)

Medicine
The Clinical Business Unit is led by a triumvirate:

Dr Andrew Woolley
Clinical Director

Pieter Joubert
Head of Nursing and Quality

Medicine: Who’s who?
The Medicine Clinical Business Unit
covers the following services:
• Wards
• Stroke
• Rehabilitation
• Appley
• Colwell
• Community Stroke Rehabilitation
Team
• All associated medical specialities
unless listed elsewhere
e.g. Respiratory, Gastro,
Rheumatology
• Urgent Care Service

Abolfazi (Abs) Abdi
Head of Operations
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Medicine: Success
During the course of 2016 / 17 the
Clinical Business Unit’s achievements
included:
• The Diabetes Unit received
a highly commended in the
national award for patient
transition from paediatric to
adult services. Judges’ comments
were “This is a good transition
model and great to see the
patient “in the driver’s seat”
when planning the service, as
well as consulting young adults
who had already been through
the process. The audit results
were very impressive.”
• Appointed:
• Specialist nurse for cardiac
rehab in the Medicine Clinical
Business Unit.
• to all Health Care Assistant
vacancies at the end of May
2016.
• Specialty doctor for Medicine
on Appley Ward.
• Consultant Physician post in
Diabetes and Endocrinology
in July 2016.
• to 9 specialist registrar posts.
• Locum NHS Consultant
Rheumatologist for a period
of 12 months to cover a
career break from September
2016.
• Head of Operations.
• Diabetes Specialist nurse Tracey
Porteous shortlisted for a
national outstanding educator
award.

• Piloted rapid access respiratory
clinics for ambulatory emergency
care.
• Used additional external capacity
from Medinet to support the
gastro service with a total of
319 new patients seen and 115
endoscopies completed.
• Two national awards received
from the Stroke Association. The
Community Stroke Rehabilitation
Team were recognised for
professional excellence and Lead
Clinician for Stroke Services,
Janine Johnston, was recognised
for professional excellence.
• The support Dr Victor Lawrence
provides to students from the
University of Southampton was
recognised with a citation. The
students have fed back how
much they have appreciated Dr
Lawrence’s input to their learning
and the time he spends with
them which they value highly.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Clinical Business Unit (CBU)

Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities
The Clinical Business Unit is led by a triumvirate:

John Doherty
Clinical Director

Mo Smith
Head of Nursing and Quality

Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities: Who’s who?
The Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities Clinical Business Unit covers
the following services:
• Specialist Services
• CCAMHS
• Learning Disability
• Memory Service
• IRIS
• Community Services
• IAPT
• Community MH Services
• Inpatient Services
• Afton
• CRHT
• Osborne
• Seagrove
• Shackleton
• Woodlands

Lucie Johnson
Head of Operations
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Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities: Success
During the course of 2016 / 17 the Clinical
Business Unit’s achievements included:
• The Mental Health Fête was held
in May 2016 for Mental Health
Awareness Week.
• Appointed:
• Head of Operations.
• Operations Manager for
specialist services.
• To all Admiral Nurses posts
and the service is now fully
operational.
• Psychiatrist for Child and
Adolescent Mental Health
Services.
• Implemented 72 hour
assessment beds which has had
a positive impact on inpatient
services. There is a 70%
discharge rate within the 72
hour window with service users
being signposted to appropriate
services i.e. Crisis Resolution and
Home Treatment Team (CRHT),
Community Mental Health, and
the voluntary sector.
• A carers forum has now
commenced in Sevenacres every
Monday between 6pm and
8pm to support carers of service
users who have been admitted
to Sevenacres. The intention is
to expand this group into the
community in the near future. A
long standing service users and
carers forum continues to be
very active and well attended
with more service users and

carers joining the group.
• Operation Serenity, the street
triage partnership project run
with Hampshire Constabulary,
won two Nursing Times Awards
for Integrated Care in mental
health.
• Nationally published figures
from NHS Digital (formerly
the Health and Social Care
Information Centre) show IAPT
services are green against all Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs)
and one of the best performing
in the area.
• The Island Recovery Integrated
Services (IRIS) team celebrated
the success of the ‘12 Step
Programme’ which aims to
help clients recover from drug
addiction and / or alcoholism.
The course is a 12 week rolling
programme and there have been
240 lessons, 1,845 attendances
averaging 8 to a group, 25
successful completions with five
of these celebrating a year of
sobriety.
• Work has continued to develop
a mental health alliance with
Solent NHS Trust and Southern
Health NHS Foundation Trust.
• The Serenity Integrated
Mentoring (SIM) project, run by
Hampshire Constabulary and
the Isle of Wight NHS Trust and
supported by Wessex Academic
Health Science Network (AHSN)
has been nominated in four
categories for the 2017 Health
Service Journal Awards (HSJ).

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Clinical Business Unit (CBU)

Surgery, Women’s and Children’s
Health
The Clinical Business Unit is led by a triumvirate:

Mr Steve Parker
Clinical Director

Annie Hunter
Head of Nursing and Quality

Surgery, Women’s and
Children’s Health: Who’s
who?
The Surgery, Women’s and Children’s
Health Clinical Business Unit covers the
following services:
• Children’s Services
• Allergy Unit
• Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
(NICU)
• Paediatric Ward
• Surgery Wards
• Mottistone
• St Helen’s
• Luccombe
• Alverstone
• Whippingham
• Maternity
• Community Matrons
• All associated surgical work

Julianna Hayward
Interim Head of Operations
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Surgery, Women’s and
Children’s Health: Success
During the course of 2016 / 17 the
Clinical Business Unit’s achievements
included:
• The number of patients waiting
over 40 weeks for operations
has dramatically reduced
down to just 5 and the overall
management and booking of
patients over 20 weeks has
improved significantly.
• The second annual Children’s
Ward ‘It’s a Knockout’
competition took place in June
2016.
• Appointed:
• Two nurses new to the Isle
of Wight started in The
Mottistone in September
2016.
• Two new Stoma Nurses are
now in post.
• Clinical lead for Head and
Neck.
• Matron of Paediatric Head
and Neck.
• Matron Project Lead for the
paediatric assessment project.
• Agreement in principle was
reached with University Hospital
Southampton (UHS) Foundation
NHS Trust and Portsmouth
Hospitals NHS Trust (PHT) to
collaborate in the provision of
Urology services on the Island.

• The Island’s maternity services
are working as part of the
Southampton, Hampshire, Isle
of Wight and Portsmouth
‘maternity pioneer’ project
which will provide greater
choice for pregnant women and
their partners and more career
opportunities for staff.
• During significant winter
pressures the Day Surgical Unit
(DSU) supported the Emergency
Department and Medical
Assessment Unit by taking
patients to assist with patient
flow.
• Endoscopy has been taking
patients requiring biopsies
to enable them to have their
procedure during a day without
the need for the patient to
occupy a ward bed.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Corporate Services

Corporate Services: Who’s who?
Corporate Services report into a range of Executive Directors and cover the
following areas:
Area

Lead Officer

Board Governance

Lynn Cave

Chaplaincy

Rev. Kelvin Burke

Charitable Funds

Katie Parrott

Communications, Engagement and Membership

Andrew Hollebon

Corporate Governance

Ben Smith

Emergency Planning

Darren Claydon (Ambulance)

Design and Print Service

Danny Siegal

Environmental and Waste Management

Brian Meszynski

Estates

Kevin Bolan

Finance Directorate

Gary Edgson

Healing Arts

Guy Eades

Health and Wellbeing

Di Eccleston / Ian Stephens

Health, Safety and Security inc. Car Parking

Connie Wendes

Hotel Services inc. Catering, Cleaning and Portering Mark Isaacson
Human Resources

Mark Elmore

Infection Prevention and Control

Karen Robinson

Information Management, Systems and Technology Paul Dubery
Medical Devices

Nathaniel Ford

NHS Creative

Danny King

Nursing (Corporate)

Sarah Johnston

Occupational Health

Di Eccleston / Ian Stephens

Organisational Development

Jacqui Skeel

Performance Information Decision Support (PIDS)

Iain Hendy

Quality Governance

Deborah Matthews

Research and Development

Alex Punter

Safeguarding Adults, Children and Young People

Sarah Johnston

Strategy and Planning

Andrew Shorkey

System Wide Transformation Team

Nicola Longson
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Corporate Services: 2016 / 17
in numbers
During 2016 / 17 the Portering team
responded to 63,228 tasks of which
there were:
• 10,575 bed moves.
• 9,060 wheel chair moves.
• 4,905 stretcher moves.
• 215 Heli med transfers.
• 2,634 units of blood.
• 8,669 patient notes.
• 2,338 empty bed moves.
• 5,398 rubbish and linen
removals.
• 933 deceased bodies.
• 385 gas cylinder changes.
• 7,180 specimens collected.
• 179 patient property collected.
• 142 plaster shoes collected.
• 1,126 collection of extra linen.
Library services have seen:
• 11,500 pieces of evidence were
accessed through online library
resources.
• 4,881 book loans from the
library.
The Quality Governance Team have:
• Handled 192 Complaints and
953 Concerns.
• Reviewed and implemented 133
Pieces of NICE Guidance.
• Supported 153 Clinical Audits.
• Handled 58 New Claims, the
closure of 34 claims, of which 24
were Settled i.e. damages paid.
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• At year end we had 216 open
claims being handled by the
Trust, compared to 200 as of
1.04.2016:
• 120 potential claims, with only
medical records requested to
date;
• 96 actual claims (against 87
as of 1.04.2016);
• Of the 216 claims:
• 165 originate from incidents
from April 2012; and
• 51 are the responsibility of the
NHS Commissioning Board
or the Secretary of State for
Health.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Corporate Services: Success
During the course of 2016 / 17
corporate achievements have included:
• The Hotel Services team have
installed a new task tracking
system which will improve their
services making them more
efficient improving the response
times.
• The Communications,
Engagement and Membership
team have built the Trust’s
Facebook page up so that it now
has over 10,000 followers.
• The Communications,
Engagement and Membership
team have supported the
recruitment of an additional 200
members to bring the Trust’s
public membership to 5,600.
• The Quality Governance and
Corporate Nursing Team were
finalists in the Patient Safety
Awards for work on reducing
pressure ulcers.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Part two

Corporate Governance Report

Annual Governance
Statement – 2016 / 17
Isle of Wight NHS Trust
Organisation Code – R1F
1.

Introduction

This Annual Governance Statement is
written in unusual circumstances. The
Isle of Wight NHS Trust was placed in
special measures by NHS Improvement
in April 2017, following publication
of a Care Quality Commission (CQC)
inspection report in the same month.
The Trust’s governance and Board
assurance frameworks, over the period
covered by this report (1st April 2016
to 31st March 2017), failed to identify
formally the depth of operational
deterioration which culminated in the
CQC’s overall rating of the Trust as
‘inadequate’.
The Trust’s substantive Chief Executive
resigned on 31st March 2017. I have been
appointed as Interim Chief Executive, and,
I commenced in post on 1st May 2017.
I am now the Accountable Officer for
the Trust and responsible, together with
the Chair of the Trust Board, for ensuring
that the Trust has in place effective
management systems and implements
the requirements of corporate
governance as exemplified in the Codes
of Conduct and Accountability.
I am responsible for providing this
statement that describes the systems
of internal control in place within the
reporting year (2016 / 17) and the
actions being taken now to ensure and
maintain effective arrangements.

2.

Scope of responsibility

As Chief Executive, and therefore
Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the organisation’s
policies, aims and objectives whilst
safeguarding quality standards. I also
have responsibility for safeguarding
public funds and the organisation’s
assets as set out in the Accountable
Officer Memorandum.
All members of the Board have
subscribed to the NHS Code of
Accountability for NHS Boards, which
identifies the Board’s responsibilities
and accountability arrangements, and
to the Standards of Business Conduct.
The Audit and Corporate Risk
Committee provides direct assurance
to the Board in respect of the Trust’s
systems of internal control, including
probity in the application of public
funds and in the conduct of the
organisation’s responsibilities. The
Audit and Corporate Risk Committee’s
reports and minutes are reviewed
in public board meetings, and
their recommendations individually
considered.
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The Trust Governance
Framework

The Isle of Wight NHS Trust
governance framework comprises the
systems and processes, culture and
values, by which the Trust is directed
and controlled. This includes the
leadership of the Trust, both in terms
of its executive and non-executive
directors and their respective roles and
responsibilities.

Non-executive Director
David King

Non-executive Director
Charles Rogers

Non-executive Director
Jessamy Baird

3.1 Trust Board
The Trust Board as at 31st March 2017,
comprised the following Non Executive
Structure:
The Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)
play an active part in the independent
scrutiny of Trust activities, through
their role as ‘portfolio’ holders.
NEDs hold positions as Chairs,
vice‑chairs and members of the Board
Assurance Committees. A schedule of
Non‑Executive Director responsibilities
as at 31st March 2017 is included as an
appendix A to this statement.

Trust Chair
Eve Richardson

Non-executive Director
Dr Nina Moorman

Non-executive Director
Vaughan Thomas

Associate
Non-executive Director
Lena Samuels

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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As at 31st March 2017, the Trust Board
comprised the following Executive
Director Structure:

Executive Director of
Finance and Human
Resources
Chris Palmer

The majority of Board members have
been in post for a number of years
or more, however, the following
appointments were made during the
reporting year:
1. Non-Executive Director
Vaughan Thomas, appointed
by NHS Improvement on the 7th
September 2016.

Company Secretary
(non-voting)
Mark Price

2. Jon Burwell appointed to the
Trust Board as Executive Director
of Strategy and Planning on the
1st October 2016.
3. Lena Samuels – Associate
Non‑Executive Director was
appointed on 5th October 2016
and left the Trust on 31st March
2017 [not a voting member of
the Board].

Executive Director of
Nursing and Quality
Alan Sheward

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Director of
Strategy and Planning
(non-voting)
Jon Burwell

Chief Operating Officer
Shaun Stacey

The following members departed from
the Trust Board in 2016 / 17:
1. Katie Gray, served as Executive
Director of Transformation &
Integration, left the Trust on 1st
May 2016 [not a voting member
of the Board].
2. Jane Tabor, Non-Executive left
the Trust on 6th August 2016.
3. Lizzie Peers, Non-Executive, left
the Trust on 8th December 2016
[not a voting member of the
Board].

Executive Medical
Director
Mark Pugh
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A Schedule of Statutory and Formal
Roles approved by the Trust Board, was
available to all staff in 2016 / 17 via the
Trust intranet and will remain available,
updated as necessary.
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Board Assurance Committees
Remuneration &
Nominations
Committee
Charitable Funds
Committee
(Board is Corporate
Trustee)

Critical to the Trust’s Governance
Framework was the work undertaken
by the Trust Board, and its Board
Assurance Committees.
Board members completed a
self‑assessment of Board effectiveness
at the end of 2016 / 17, that includes
reflecting on the quality and sufficiency
of assurances (both internal and
independent) relied upon through the
year. The outcome of this assessment
will be used in 2017 / 18 to strengthen
Board governance arrangements.
The Trust Board had a Board
Assurance Committee structure
currently consisting of five formal
Board Assurance Committees, and a
Charitable Funds Committee as shown:

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Quality Governance
Committee

Trust Leadership
Committee

IW NHS Trust Board

Finance, Investment,
Information &
Workforce
Committee

Audit & Corporate
Risk Committee
(Senior Board
Assurance
Committee)

All Board Assurance Committees
produced annual reports in 2016 / 17
for scrutiny by the Audit and
Corporate Risk Committee. Reports
included the number of meetings held
in year, confirmation of compliance
with Terms of Reference, key
achievements of the committees and
future plans.
Attendance records relating to
the Board and Board Assurance
Committees are maintained and a
summary of attendance for period
April 2016 – March 2017 is included as
an appendix B to this statement.
The Audit and Corporate Risk
Committee has been formally
identified as the senior Board
Assurance Committee of the
organisation. Appendix C to this
document sets out the top issues
raised with the Trust Board by the
Audit and Corporate Risk Committee
throughout the course of 2016 / 17.
The Board Assurance Committee
Structure depicted above, set out
the assurance route for a number of
Governance Functions, including risk
management, quality governance,
information governance, performance
reporting, and resources management;
many of which are discussed in more
detail later in this statement. However,
this Assurance mechanism is supported
by a delivery mechanism incorporating
a number of Executive Chaired sub
committees.

Mental Health Act
Scrutiny Committee

The Trust Leadership Committee, was,
and remains, the Senior Executive led
Sub-Committee of the Trust and is
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer.
Decisions relating to the Trust were
made by the Executive team, and
other senior colleagues collectively
in line with Standing Orders. The
Trust Leadership Committee received
exception based reports from other
Executive Led Sub-Committees.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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3.2 Corporate Governance Code
As the Trust is not an NHS Foundation
Trust, the Trust is not required to
comply with the Code of Governance
for Foundation Trusts however the
governance framework including the
Standing Orders have regard to the
core principles of leadership of the
Board, effectiveness of the Board and
supporting committees, accountability
for the management of principal risks
as well as remuneration of executive
directors.
3.3 Performance against the NHS
Improvement 2016 / 17 Single
Oversight Framework
The Trust is regulated by NHS
Improvement through the Single
Oversight Framework that monitors the
Trust within the domains set out below:
• quality of care;
• finance and use of resources;
• operational performance;
• strategic change;
• leadership and improvement
capability.
In addition the Trust, meets with NHS
Improvement at the Integrated Delivery
Meetings on a monthly basis and
these meetings focus on the Trust’s
Performance in relation to the above
domains.
The quality of care provided by the
Trust is regulated by the Care Quality
Commission. The Trust was inspected
by the Commission in 2016 and the
outcome of that inspection is reported
later within this statement.

4.

Quality Governance and the
publication of the Quality
Account

The Trust’s approach to improving
quality and safety during 2016 was
focussed around the 20 quality
improvement domains and some
progress was made in a number of
these areas. However, it is recognised
that the approach needs to change in
2017 / 18 to ensure that it reflects the
quality improvement challenges across
the four domains of our organisation
(Mental Health, Ambulance,
Community, Acute).
The Quality Improvement Plan was
formally monitored through the
Patient Safety, Experience and Clinical
Effectiveness (SEE) Group. The Board
assurance committee for Quality of
Service is the Quality Governance
Committee.
The organisation has a Patient
Experience Strategy which outlines
the commitment to ensure services
are developed and improved as a
direct result of patients’ experience
and involvement. Patient experience is
supported by the Trust’s five Strategic
Goals. This is to ensure the Trust has
a co-ordinated approach to listening,
learning and routinely capturing
feedback in order to continue to
improve.
The Trust has a responsibility to ensure
there are systematic measures in place
to protect patients and learn from
incidents so as to minimise the risk
of them happening again. The Trust
has processes aligned to the Serious
Incident Framework and Never Events

Policy, published by NHS England in
March 2015. The Trust reported 63
SIRIs during 2016 / 17 (which included
x 17 12-hour breaches), compared
to 49 SIRIs reported in 2015 / 16, an
increase of 28%, attributable to the
directive from NHS Improvement to
report validated 12-hour breaches as
SIRIs.
Below is a table showing the number
of SIRI cases reported over the last 3
years.
TOTAL
NEW SIRIs

2014 / 15

129

2015 / 16

49

2016 / 17

63

There were 4 Never Events during
2016 / 17, compared to 3 in 2015 / 16.
The details are as follows:
• Two cases related to retained
foreign object; guidewire left in
place.
• One case related to wrong route
administration of medication.
• One case related wrong site
procedure.
Each SIRI case is subject to an in-depth
review by an investigating officer and
this is usually someone from outside
of the clinical business unit. Improving
the management of SIRIs within the
required timescales has continued
to receive focus and during year
2016–2017; a total of 69 reports were
submitted to the Commissioners for
closure – of those 52% were in time.
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Commitment was agreed between
the Trust and the IW Clinical
Commissioning Group that, from the
beginning of November 2016, there
will no more than 10% of open SIRIs
over the 60 day timescale. Clinical
Business Units were made aware of
this target and were requested to
devise a plan to ensure compliance.
Since this directive, the Trust has not
breached this margin.
The Trust has an Annual Clinical Audit
Programme; outlining both national
and local audit requirements.
During 2016 / 17, there were 57
national clinical audits and 5 national
confidential enquiries related to
services that the Trust provides. The
Trust participated in 100% of the
national clinical audits and 80% of
national confidential enquiries which it
was eligible to participate in.
The reports of 17 national and 17 local
clinical audits were reviewed by the
Trust during 2016 / 17.
Key organisational quality priorities
identified for delivery in 2016 / 17
included:
• Implementation and monitoring
the effectiveness of the sepsis
care bundle.
• Improve communication with
patients and carers.
• Improve the culture of the
organisation to improve patient
experience.
• Improve the discharge planning
process.
• Reduce incidents of patient harm.
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These were published in detail within
the Trust’s Quality Account. These
quality priorities are in the process
of being reviewed and new goals for
2017 / 18 have been agreed following
consultation with key stakeholders (e.g.
patients; public and HealthWatch), as
part of the development of the Quality
Account. These priorities for 2017 / 18
are:
• Safe and secure handling of
medicines.
• Improve the management of
nutrition and hydration needs of
patients.
• Reduce the number of inpatient
bed moves that are not related
to clinical need.
4.1 Monitoring
The Ward Accreditation Programme
has been rolled out and will continue
to monitor performance against the
CQC’s fundamental standards of care
within the acute wards. Mental Health
has adopted the Royal College of
Psychiatrists (RCP) Ward Accreditation
Scheme as their tool for monitoring
quality and safety in their inpatient
mental health wards, and they hope to
be able to expand this to community
areas as the RCP develop the
programme.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

4.2 Assurance on quality and
safety matters
Assurance relating to quality & safety
is provided through the Quality
Governance Committee, which is a
sub-committee of Trust Board. This
committee, chaired by a Non‑Executive
Director of the Board, has overarching
responsibility for assurance on
the 3 domains of quality; Clinical
Effectiveness, Patient Experience,
Patient Safety within the organisation.
The Clinical Business Units hold
monthly meetings feeding the outputs
through the Heads of Nursing and
Quality directly to the Patient Safety,
Experience & Clinical Effectiveness
Group, who in turn provide assurance
to the Quality Governance Committee.
5.

The Trust’s Risk and Control
Framework

It is the policy of the Trust to identify,
minimise, control and where possible
eliminate any risks that may have an
adverse impact on patients, staff and
the organisation. As Chief Executive, I
carry ultimate responsibility for all risks
within the organisation. The Trust’s Risk
Management Strategy and Policy was
approved by the Board on 5th October
2016 with further revisions approved
on 8th February 2017. The strategy and
policy describes the responsibilities
for risk management from the
organisational responsibility of the
Board, through all managers, clinicians
and staff ensuring their commitment
to the principles of risk management
which apply throughout all areas of
the organisation regardless of the
type of risk – organisational, financial,
environment, facilities, clinical and
non-clinical.
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47

Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

The Trust’s risk management
training package, revised in 2016
for implementing the Trust’s Risk
Management Strategy and Policy made
mandatory in September 2016 and
continues to be rolled out to all staff
at band 6 and above. Review of this
and further training packages will take
place through 2017 / 18 to ensure that
processes are embedded effectively.
The Trust’s risk management
framework forms a critical part of
its governance framework, and is
effectively supported through the
delivery and assurance meeting
structures outlined above and below.
Whilst the Trust Board is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that effective
governance, arrangements, including
those relating to risk management
are in place, the Audit and Corporate
Risk (Board assurance) Committee
are responsible for reviewing the
establishment and maintenance of
an effective system of integrated
governance, including risk
management and internal control.
The Audit and Corporate Risk
Committee (ACRC) are supported in
this task by the other Board assurance
committees, who review at each
meeting the risks that align with the
remit of their committee.

Principal Risks (BAF)
reported at each
Board meeting
Corporate Risks reported to
the relevant Board Assurance
Committee, and also
Executive Led Sub Committee
Operational Risks reported to Clinical
Business Unit Leadership Meeting or the Risk
Management Group.

Annual report on Risk Management process and activity
to the Audit and Corporate Risk Committee

5.1 Trust Committee arrangements
supporting internal control
Specific responsibilities of Trust
Committees in relation to the system
of internal control, and operational
throughout 2016 / 17 included:
The Trust Board
• Development and approval of
the Principal Risk Register / Board
Assurance Framework and
associated action planning.
• Receiving and reviewing the
minutes of the Audit and
Corporate Risk Committee and
other sub-committees of the
Board.
• Receiving and reviewing monthly
performance reports relating
to activity, quality, finance and
workforce.

The Audit and Corporate Risk
Committee
• Reviewing the establishment
and maintenance of an effective
system of integrated governance,
risk management and internal
control, across the whole of
the organisation’s activities that
supports the achievement of the
organisation’s objectives.
• Providing assurance to the Board
through the minutes of the
Committee in relation to:
• The adequacy of all risk and
control disclosure statements.
• The effectiveness of the
Trust’s risk management
arrangements.
• The policies for ensuring
compliance with relevant
regulatory, legal and code of
conduct requirements.
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• The policies and procedures
for all work related to fraud
and corruption as set out
in the Secretary of State
directions and as required
by the Counter Fraud NHS
Protect Service.
• The process for the production
of the Quality Account.
• Progress being made in
relation to the Governance
Review Action Plan.
Board Assurance Committees
• Receiving and reviewing audit
reports in relation to areas within
their remit throughout the year.
The Trust Leadership Committee
• Maintaining a constant review
of corporate governance
arrangements and ensuring the
Board is fully briefed on any
significant risks and issues.
• Overseeing the performance
management and reporting
arrangements relating to the
Trust’s CQC registration.

The Trust reviews the effectiveness
of its risk management and internal
control framework through ensuring
the processes remain part of the
internal audit annual plan and also
by aligning performance against
the Risk Management Strategy and
Policy’s deliverables with the terms
of reference of the responsible
Committee.
Whilst the Trust believes that
risk management is everyone’s
responsibility, there are a number of
staff who have specific responsibilities
in relation to risk, in terms of ensuring
that the risk management systems
and processes employed are delivering
effective risk mitigation.
The overall responsibility for the
management of risk in 2016 / 17 rested
with the Chief Executive supported
by the Chief Risk Officer (Company
Secretary). Reporting directly to the
Company Secretary is the Head of
Corporate Governance who provides
leadership and operational oversight
of the risk management functions of
the Trust.

• Monitoring compliance with
external agency visits and
inspections ensuring any actions
and / or recommendations are
followed up appropriately.

The Trust’s Risk Management
Framework is set out comprehensively
in the Trust’s Risk Management
Strategy and Policy.

• Reviewing quarterly corporate
governance and risk reports
detailing trends in incident
reporting, risk assessments,
non-clinical claims and
information governance, making
recommendations for further
action as appropriate.

The Risk Management Strategy and
Policy, is supported by associated risk
deterrent activities that include delivery
of the ACRC agreed annual work-plan
for the Trust’s Local Counter Fraud
Specialist (LCFS) which includes raising
fraud awareness and vigilance among
staff and management together with
publicity of successful prosecutions.
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5.2 Risk Management Strategy and
Policy
The Risk Management Strategy and
Policy, makes clear that it may not
always be possible or indeed beneficial
to eliminate or further mitigate certain
risks. This forms the basis of the Trust’s
Risk Appetite. However, the response
to be adopted must be approved at
the relevant Committee.
The strategy and policy, sets out
the Trust vision in relation to risk
management as follows:
‘The vision for the Trust in relation
to risk management is to embed an
effective approach to risk management
across the organisation. This will
include the utilisation of dynamic
risk registers which enable informed
decision making to take place to
ensure risks are mitigated as effectively
as possible and in a timely way’.
The strategy and policy acknowledges
that in order to achieve this vision, a
number of activities will need to be
coordinated. The document sets out
the Trust approach to:
• Recognising or identifying risks.
• Evaluating of risks.
• Recording of risks.
• Responding to risks (tolerate,
treat, transfer, terminate).
• Reviewing risks.
• Reporting and monitoring of risk
performance.
• Reviewing the risk management
framework.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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5.2.1 Risk Management Training
and equipping staff to
address risks
The Trust’s Risk Management training
package, introduced in January 2016,
is delivered by the Head of Corporate
Governance and is a mixture of taught
material and facilitated exercises to
enable the participants to put their
learning into practice. This approach
is designed to aid learning and also
provide a means for the training
facilitator to assess the competence of
the training delegates prior to sign off
of their attendance at the sessions.

The strategy and policy, sets out
the different 3 distinct tiers of risk,
adopted by the Trust as below:
• Principal Risks – these risks are
those associated with the Trust’s
ability to achieve its high level
strategic priorities and will form
the basis of the Board Assurance
Framework. These risks are
reported at each Board meeting
and the Board agenda will be
set around the strategic priorities
and risks to them being delivered.
• Corporate Risks – these risks
are those that span a number
of services and therefore can
impact on the Trust’s ability to
deliver services, or those where
the potential impact for the
Trust would be great should
the risk occur. They relate to
the corporate objectives of
the organisation, and will be
reported to the relevant Board
Assurance Committees at each
meeting.
• Operational Risks – these risks
are those that relate to a specific
business unit or service, but do
not span the range of services
delivered by the Trust. These risks
will largely relate to service or a
collection of service objectives.
These risks will be reported to
individual Clinical Business Unit
Leadership Meetings, for risks
relating to the clinical business
units or the Risk Management
Group for risks relating to
corporate services.

This tiered approach is designed to
enable risks to be managed at the
commensurate level within the Trust,
therefore affording more focus and
scrutiny at the appropriate level.
In addition, the Trust maintains a
corporate level Issues Log in order to
help the Board to distinguish, amongst
its priorities, those circumstances
requiring a reactive response, from
the Trust’s proactive risk management
activities.
In January 2017, a review was
undertaken by the Risk Management
team as part of the annual review
required by the Trust Audit and
Corporate Risk Committee’s Terms of
Reference, to monitor the application
of the Risk Management Strategy
and Policy. The review measured
compliance with the requirement to
review risks at meetings according to
their score / status and also the extent
to which the Board received papers
representing the full breadth of its
Principal risks.
Assessing the application of the Risk
Management Strategy and Policy
included reviewing the extent of
changes to risk scores as well as
monitoring training attendance in
accordance with the training needs
analysis. A number of areas requiring
improved compliance were identified
and were reported to the Audit
Committee in May 2017. In particular,
further work is required to ensure
that all committees receive and review
the right information relevant to
their leadership strata and to ensure
that all managers are aware of their
responsibilities.

This training, made mandatory in
September 2016, is aimed at all
staff at band 6 or above, however,
bespoke training for other staff is also
available, and a suite of e-learning is
also available to staff, including Risk
Management, Incident Reporting,
Incidents, Complaints and Claims
Management and Counter Fraud.
Upon satisfactory training attendance,
attendees have access to the DATIX
risk management software to record
and update risk information and
direct a risk’s ownership according to
assessed risk score.
The Trust aspires to risk management
being a dynamic activity; however,
regular risk assessment is encouraged
in order to identify previously
unrecognised risks and also issues
for mitigation. An annual checklist
based approach supporting risk
assessment, through an extensive list
of environment and activity controls,
was withdrawn in 2016 / 17 after
generating several hundred recorded
risks in previous years. The Integrated
Improvement Framework includes a
risk management review taking place
in early 2017 / 18 to ensure recorded
risks and issues are appropriately
escalated, analysed and directed.
It is acknowledged that the CQC
inspection, reported in April 2017,
identified significant shortcomings
around how these changes were
understood and how Trust’s risk
management arrangements were
experienced by staff. Meeting the
assessed training needs of Trust staff
will be a priority through 2017 / 18.
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5.3 Trust Risk Profile
5.3.1 New risks identified
throughout 2016 / 17
Throughout the course of financial year
2016 / 17 a total of 198 new risks and
issues were added to the Corporate
Risk Register and 144 risks and issues
were closed.
There are 72 current Risks at the end of
Q4 2016 / 17 , comprising 8 Principal,
50 Corporate & 14 Operational. There
were 240 current Issues (Corporate
& Operational) at the end of Q4
2016 / 17.
5.3.2 Principal Risk Register (Board
Assurance Framework)
There were 8 principal risks and 1
principal issue identified within the
year.
The Trust’s Board Assurance Framework
includes a set of Principal Objectives
for the Trust and formally identifies the
Principal Risks to the Trust achieving
these objectives. In line with the
revised Risk Management Strategy
and Policy, each Principal Risk is
owned by an Executive Director who
is required to update the risk on a
monthly basis as a minimum. A report
is then presented at each Trust Board
meeting. From April 2017 the Trust
Board agenda aligns with the Principal
Risks identified to ensure, over time,
that each significant risk has sufficient
discussion at each Board meeting.
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Reports of principal risks to each Board
meeting include the following:
• The organisation’s principal
objectives.
• A description of the principal
risks to achieving the principal
objectives (if…and then…
statement).
• The Executive Director who is the
owner of the risk.
• The current and target risk score,
using the 5 x 5 risk matrix.
• The associated action plan for
the risk, including updates from
the previous month in relation to
specific actions.
• The identified controls in place.
From April 2016, the Trust has used its
DATIX system to facilitate escalating
significant risks to the Trust Board,
in order that they can see emerging
themes. The Trust Board receives all
principal risks and was required by the
Risk Management Strategy and Policy
to review all risks scoring 16 or above.
At 31st March 2017, The Principal Risk
Register contained the following 8
risks:
• If the Trust is unable to deliver
against the ICT Strategy, then
there will be a negative impact
on quality, Income, Performance,
Information Governance
Compliance and Staff morale.
• If the Trusts quality governance
processes are not robust and
embedded, then the Trust
may not be able to maintain
adequate patient safety,
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patient experience and clinical
effectiveness.
• If the Trusts culture does not
reflect our core values then we
will be unable to deliver our
vision, goals and priorities.
• If there is insufficient resilience in
the local health and social care
economy then we will be unable
to deliver safe effective and
financially viable care.
• If there is not sufficient capacity
and capability within the
Executive and Non Executive
Team, then the Trust will not
be able to achieve its strategic
ambitions.
• If the Trust is unable to manage
within the revenue and capital
financial resources it receives
then it may become financially
unsustainable in 16 / 17 and in
future years.
• If the Trust is unable to attract,
recruit and retain sufficient staff
of the right quality and skillset
then it will be unable to meet
demand.
• If our Trust Strategy is not robust
and embedded then staff will be
unable to create effective service
plans.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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The following Principal Issue was
added on 23rd December 2016.
• The CQC have served the Trust
with a warning notice of a
decision to impose conditions
on our registration as a service
provider in respect of a regulated
activity in relation to the Mental
Health and Learning Disabilities
CBU, under Section 31 of the
Health and Social Care Act 2008.
They have also issued the Trust
with a regulation 17.

5.3.3 The Trust’s Information
Governance Framework
The Isle of Wight NHS Trust had
determined that in order to mitigate
risks associated with Information
Governance (IG), the Information
Governance framework should
be managed centrally through an
Information Governance Team
within the Corporate Governance
Department. However, this does not
negate other staff across the Trust in
discharging their IG duties. Ultimate
responsibility for ensuring the Trust
operates a robust and embedded
Information Governance Framework
rested with the Chief Executive as
accountable officer, supported by
a number of colleagues, including
the Company Secretary – who in
2016 / 17, also fulfilled the role of
Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO),
and the Executive Director lead for
Information Governance.
Supporting the SIRO a network of
20 Information Asset Owners (IAOs),
guided by the Information Governance
Team, ensure that the information
assets for which they have been
allocated responsibility are secure and
risk assessed, and that the appropriate
business continuity arrangements are
in place.
The Information Governance Steering
Group (IGSG) has operational
responsibility for overseeing the
effectiveness of the Trust Information
Governance Framework.
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IGSG maintains a forward plan / action
plan and oversees the response to the
annual IG toolkit. The Trust is required
to carry out a self-assessment annually
to measure compliance and to confirm
that information is handled correctly
and protected from unauthorised
access, loss, damage and destruction.
The IG Toolkit self-assessment
submission for the 2016 / 17 financial
year was delivered on 31st March
in accordance with the relevant
timescales. Prior to the submission of
the self-assessment, internal auditors
sampled ten indicators to evaluate
levels of compliance. The findings
identified a number of shortcomings,
largely relating to out of date evidence;
this gave contributors the opportunity
to make changes as required, some
of which were addressed prior to
submission while others form part of
an IG improvement action plan that
has been incorporated into the Trust’s
Integrated Improvement Framework
(IIF).
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The final toolkit self-assessment was
submitted with the minimum level 2
score achieved across 43 indicators,
with two scoring at level 3. The
overall score generated was 68% ,
which is equal to the score achieved
in last year’s submission. It should
be noted that this scoring process
is automated and that the Trust’s
submission may be audited, resulting
in a subsequent adjustment to the
score. The responsible officer has
identified a number of indicators for
which evidence was not considered
entirely robust; The areas of requiring
development that have particular
significance and focus for the
coming year and are managed by
the Information Governance Steering
Group include:
• Contracts IG / Information
Security (IS) assurance
• Information Sharing Agreements
• Business Continuity Planning
• Procedures for management of
Corporate Records
• Corporate Records Audit
The IG team responds to requests
for information under the Freedom
of Information Act and for personal
data under the Data Protection Act.
Capacity to deliver these functions
was significantly affected by long term
sickness absence in the small team.
IG incidents are required to be assessed
in line with the Health and Social
Care Information Centre’s (HSCIC)
checklist for reporting managing
and investigation Information
Governance Serious Incidents requiring
Investigation (IG SIRIs). Any IG incident
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which meets the threshold of level
2 or above is reported though the
dedicated reporting tool on the
Information Governance Toolkit which
automatically notifies the incident to
the Information Commissioner’s Office.
During 2017 / 18 there were a total
of 393 Information Governance
Incidents reported through the
Trust’s DATIX incident reporting
system. Of these, there were four
Information Governance Serious
Incidents Requiring Investigation (IG
SIRI’s), which were reported to the
Information Commissioner’s Office
and were assigned to the following
categories: Lost or stolen paperwork;
data disclosed in error (two occasions),
and Data exposed by hack (on
contractor / partner).
In the same period a total of 649
subject access requests for patient
records were completed within
timescale (91% compliance) and 525
Freedom of Information Act requests
(70% compliance).
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Assuring the Quality and Accuracy
of Elective Waiting Time Data
Elective waiting times are monitored
against the 18 Week Referral to
Treatment, waiting times (RTT)
standards set nationally. Data is
recorded in our Patient Administration
System (PAS) which has the
functionality to monitor RTT waits
and pathways. We submit weekly
and monthly returns and carry out
validation throughout the month
because the limitations of PAS and
human processes have the potential to
record erroneous waiting times which
need to be reviewed.
In 2016 / 17 The Performance
Information and Decision Support
(PIDS) team produced a daily update
of the current waiting list with regard
to RTT. RTT pathways were compared
to inpatient and outpatient waiting
lists on PAS, and any discrepancies
highlighted as data quality errors. Daily
updated reports highlighting other
errors were provided for Information
Systems, such as pathways set up
using incorrect details. Information
Systems validated highlighted errors
as well as working from regular data
quality reports.
Mandatory monthly returns were
sent to NHS England. Data sets for
the return were produced in the first
week of the following month, and
comprehensively validated in time for
submission in the third week. Before
submission, reports were reviewed by
the Head of Operational Performance,
and any anomalies investigated with
the service team.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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The PAS system had limitations in
that it is designed to be a “stages of
treatment” system rather than a whole
pathway system. The Outpatient (OP)
section of the system is separate from
the Inpatient (OP) section. In order
for the RTT pathway functionality to
work, the user needed to manually link
up the Pathway with the OP episode,
and then with any IP episode. Also
the patient could have had a number
of Consultant OP episodes before
treatment was given – each one of
these needed to be linked to the RTT
pathway in the system. If any of these
steps were missed, an erroneous wait
could be displayed.

The PAS system did not support
recording RTT pathways that either
begin or end with community services.
Nurse-led or community services
were recorded in a separate section
of PAS, and it was not possible to link
activity in this section to RTT pathways.
For example, patient pathways that
start with Multi Professional Triage
Teams only initiated a pathway
when the patient was referred to a
Consultant led service. Similarly, if a
treatment pathway was completed in
Physiotherapy, the RTT pathway had to
be manually closed in the Consultant
led section of the system once
treatment is known to have started.

For OP appointments, both an
appointment outcome and a RTT
outcome needed to be recorded on PAS.
Completing the RTT status could have
been missed leading to incorrect waits.

Improving the accuracy and quality
of elective waiting times data is an
ongoing process. Once a possible
risk has been identified, changes are
incorporated into the daily update
of the waiting list to make sure that
accuracy is improved. PIDS have
recently been working on an improved
presentation of the waiting list data
using CHIMERA1 and Qlikview2 .
This has enabled us to undertake a
thorough review of how waiting times
are calculated and monitored, and
produce an improved process.

Human error in inputting the wrong
RTT status code at the wrong time
is also a factor. There were also
some known system anomalies, for
example where a new appointment
for a patient can be linked to a closed
historic RTT pathway. Such instances
re-open the pathway, sometimes with
a substantial wait.
All of these risks were addressed by the
ongoing validation. PIDS have worked
to build monitoring tools to allow
booking teams to validate their own
RTT pathways as part of business as
usual, including a suite of data quality
metrics in order to highlight any
obvious errors. The Trust also had a
dedicated Patient Access Data Quality
Officer to carry out validation and
audits of the elective waiting list on a
weekly basis.

1

2

1 CHIMERA is a data warehouse owned and managed
by Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust that we can access
as it contains data extracted from our shared Patient
Administration System.
Qlikview is business intelligence software used to
present information to end users.
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Review of Effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review has been informed
in a number of ways:
1. The Head of Internal Audit
provides me with an opinion
on the overall arrangements for
gaining assurance through the
Assurance Framework and on
the controls reviewed as part of
the internal audit work.
2. Non-Executive Directors, provide
me with assurance through the
Board Assurance Committees.
3. Executive Directors within
the organisation who
have responsibility for the
development and maintenance
of the system of internal control
provide me with assurance. The
Assurance Framework itself
provides me with evidence that
the effectiveness of controls
that manage the risks to the
organisation achieving its
principal objectives have been
reviewed. My review is also
informed by:
a. Detailed reports from
both Internal and External
Auditors.
b. Monthly activity, quality,
finance and workforce
performance reports to the
Board.
c. Quarterly governance and
assurance reports to the
Trust Leadership Committee.

d. Reports and minutes to the
Board from the Audit and
Corporate Risk Committee.
e. Monthly updates on
progress against the
Assurance Framework and
associated action plans.
f. Regular review of the
Principal Risk Register,
through the Trust Board.
g. CQC confirmation of
registration of all regulated
activities.
h. Information Governance
Toolkit self-assessment and
internal auditor opinion
following internal audit of
compliance.
It is however, clear that the Trust’s
systems, processes or behaviours
(or a combination of these) have
deficiencies that have resulted in as
detailed in section 7, the Trust being
placed in special measures.
As Chief Executive and Accountable
Officer I have advised, the Trust
Board, The Audit and Corporate Risk
Committee and the Trust Leadership
Committee on the implications of the
result of my review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control, and
collectively we have generated a plan
through the Integrated Improvement
Framework to address weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the
framework we have in place.
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6.1 Internal Audit
I am also assisted by the Trust’s Internal
Auditors, TIAA who provide assurance
to the Board through reviews of the
effectiveness of the organisation’s
management of risk. The audit on the
2016 / 17 Board Assurance Framework
and Risk Management took place in
November / December 2016 and will
report findings to the Trusts Audit and
Corporate Risk Committee.
By agreement with the Trust’s
internal auditors, our audit plan for
2016 / 17 incorporated some areas of
suspected weakness and particular
focus, acknowledging that the
outcome of this approach could be
an increase in the number of limited
assurance reports. As a result of this
approach there were 17 internal audits
undertaken during 2016 / 17 and the
results were as follows:
• Substantial Assurance –
Agency Staff Spend; Revalidation
– Nurses; Patient Pathways.
• Reasonable Assurance
– Clinical Business Unit;
Management of Falls and
Pressure Ulcers; Seven Day
Working; Board Assurance
Framework and Risk
Management; Well-Led
Governance Review – Action
Plan Implementation; Private
Patient Income – Diagnostic
Tests; Financial Accounting;
Payroll; Data Quality; Facilities
Management Services – Linen
Services.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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• Limited Assurance –
Controlled Drug and Drug
Fridge Management; Edge
Infrastructure Review (was
Cyber Security – topic changed);
Information Governance Toolkit.
In accordance with Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards, the Head of
Internal Audit (HOIA) is required to
provide an annual opinion, based upon
and limited to the work performed, on
the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the organisation’s risk management,
control and governance processes – i.e.
the organisation’s system on internal
control. The Head of Internal Audit
Opinion for the year ended 31st March
2017 is that:
“Reasonable’ assurance can be given
that there is a generally sound system
of internal control, designed to meet
the organisation’s objectives, with
the exception of the Trust’s ability to
deliver its planned financial control
total. Our work, and the work of other
third parties has however identified
some weaknesses in the design and / or
application of controls, which put the
achievement of particular objectives at
risk, such that further enhancements
to the framework of risk management,
governance and internal control are
required. We also note the adequacy
and effectiveness of improvement
plans remains untested.”
The basis for forming the opinion is as
follows:
• An assessment of the design and
operation of the underpinning
Assurance Framework and
supporting processes; and

• An assessment of the range of
individual opinions arising from
risk‑based audit assignments,
contained within internal audit
risk-based plans that have
been reported throughout
the year. This assessment has
taken account of the relative
materiality of these areas and
management’s progress in
respect of addressing control
weaknesses.
6.2 Statement of compliance with
statutory functions
Save for the identified concerns of
the CQC and NHS Improvement, in
relation to their specific Regulations
referenced through this statement, I
am not aware of any other instances
of non-compliance with relevant laws,
regulations or governance codes. This
is checked for inconsistencies by the
Trust’s Auditors.
Papers to the Board and Committees
are required to highlight legal
implications and legal advice is sought
by the Trust, as required.
I am therefore, advised that the Trust
has arrangements in place for the
discharge of its statutory functions
which are checked for irregularities
in a variety of ways and are legally
compliant.
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Significant issues

The following control risks materialised
in 2016 / 17:
Failing to deliver key operational
targets and constitutional
standards
Throughout 2016 / 17 the Trust failed
to deliver on the following key targets
and constitutional standards:
• Ambulance
• Emergency Department
• Referral to Treatment (RTT)
• Some cancer targets
The Trust did not achieve national
ambulance targets in 2016 / 17 due to
workforce vacancies and worsening
handover times in ED, meaning
vehicles were slow to be released
to attend other calls. The trust is
addressing these issues through
2017 / 18 targeting the timely release
of these critical resources, described in
more detail in the Annual Report.
Emergency Care four (4) hour
standard under-performed, also
due to: workforce vacancies; delays
putting in place best practice, and the
impact of insufficient improvement to
patient flow (across the health system).
The Trusts Integrated Improvement
Framework (IIF) sets out the key
improvement actions to address these
challenges.

The Trust’s performance against
Referral to Treatment (RTT) has
worsened due to reduced elective
capacity, increases in gastroenterology
and ophthalmology waiting lists
over 18 weeks and under-utilisation
of some theatre lists. Improvements
to address this include: delivery
of the 2017 / 18 demand plan; a
standardised booking model; as well as
through sub‑contracts with mainland
independent providers.
Non-achievement of the cancer 62
day target was due to inconsistent
performance in the year because
complex pathways required multiple
diagnostic tests both at the Trust
and at our healthcare partners. Key
improvements to address these issues
in 2017 / 18 are summarised in the
annual report.
The Trust monitors performance
through the Board Assurance
Committees and in a comprehensive
performance report which is discussed
at the regular Trust Board meetings
held in public. The necessary redesign
of arrangements together with our
local health and social care partners
and the fundamental underlying issues
will be addressed by the ‘My Life a
Full Life’ new model of care initiative,
and Hampshire and Isle of Wight
Sustainability and Transformation Plan
(STP), respectively
Further information in relation to our
performance is available via the Isle of
Wight Trust Annual Report.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Financial position
The Trust Board approved a planned
deficit for 2016 / 17 of £4.63m
(£4.60m), inclusive of receiving
£3.50m from the Sustainability and
Transformation Fund (STF).
However significant operational
pressure, and under performance on
the Cost Improvement Plan, resulted
in the Trust reporting a deficit for
2016 / 17 of £10.960m (£8.396m).
The main reasons for our increased
deficit against plan were:
• The flow of Medical Patients
through the trust meant that a
higher occupancy of medical
patients contributed to the
cancellation of both Inpatient
and Day Case Elective activity,
leading to less income than
planned;
• The higher occupancy of medical
patients and utilisation of Day
Surgery and other areas has
required additional staffing,
leading to excess costs being
incurred for Nursing staff and
Medical Locums;
• Non delivery of required Cost
Improvement Plans; and
• A loss of STF funding for Q3
& Q4 due to the operational
performance targets and the
financial plan not being met
mainly as a result of the key
points above.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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While the Trust is considered to remain
a going concern, these circumstances
have been considered to represent
existence of material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the
Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the statement
of going concern incorporates
identification of this risk and is
attached at appendix D.
On 7th June 2016 the Trust’s auditors
referred a matter to the Secretary of
State under section 30 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 due
to the Trust being at risk of breaching
the breakeven duty when setting
the budget for 2016 / 17. This audit
concern has not been revised.
I am advised that the Trust has also
been given a qualified value for money
conclusion by the auditors,
NHS Improvement and Care Quality
Commission
In November 2016, the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) commenced an
inspection of the Isle of Wight NHS
Trust. This was published in April 2017.
Through the Single Oversight
Framework, NHS Improvement
identifies how to help NHS providers
attain, and maintain, Care Quality
Commission ratings of ‘Good’ or
‘Outstanding’. NHS Improvement
identify Trusts’ potential support
needs through reviewing a range
of data, including CQC inspection
findings of ‘requiring improvement’
or ‘inadequate’ in particular domains.
NHS Improvement issue enforcement
Undertakings where they have concern

that a Trust will not achieve necessary
improvement without accepting
prescribed support.
NHS Improvement opened an
investigation on 23th September 2016
due to concerns around the operational,
quality and financial performance and
strategic direction of the Trust. The
investigation considered whether the
Trust’s leadership, governance structures
and delivery arrangements were
appropriate to sufficiently address these.
Accordingly, the Trust were issued with
Undertakings on 28th November 2016,
requiring robust plans to be put in place
in respect of Governance arrangements,
operational performance, sustainability,
a performance director, meetings and
reports.
Regulation 17 of the Health and Social
Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities)
Regulations 2014 requires providers
have systems and processes that
ensure that they are able to meet
other requirements in this part of the
Regulations (Regulations 4 to 20A).
To meet this regulation; providers must
have effective governance, including
assurance and auditing systems or
processes. These must assess, monitor
and drive improvement in the quality
and safety of the services provided,
including the quality of the experience
for people using the service. The
systems and processes must also
assess, monitor and mitigate any risks
relating the health, safety and welfare
of people using services and others.
Providers must continually evaluate
and seek to improve their governance
and auditing practice.
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The CQC can issue a Regulation 17
notice which requires an NHS provider
to return, within 28 days, a written
report setting out how, and the
extent to which, in the opinion of the
provider, the requirements above are
being complied with, and any plans for
improving the standard of the services
provided to service users with a view
to ensuring their health and welfare.
The Trust was issued with a
Regulation 17 notice and further NHS
Improvement undertakings following
the publication of the CQC report.
Under Section 31 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008, the CQC can
impose a condition on a health
provider’s registration whenever it has
reasonable cause to believe that any
person will or may be exposed to risk
of harm in a service.
The Trust was issued with a Section 31
notice of decision in respect of mental
health services immediately following
the inspection of the services in
January 2017. The CQC also formally
wrote to the Trust asking for a report
on urgent action to address a number
of other serious concerns across all
services.
The publication of the report in April
resulted in the Trust being placed into
special measures in April 2017 and
receiving a further set of Undertakings
from NHS Improvement.
An NHSI Improvement Director has
been appointed to work with the Trust
by NHS Improvement.
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An Integrated Improvement Framework
(IIF) is being developed to serve as
an enabler for the Trust’s quality
improvement journey. A Quality
Improvement Plan has been developed
and will be submitted to the CQC on
2nd June 2017. The aim of the plan
is to ensure the Trust makes rapid
improvements that enable it to be
taken out of Special Measures as soon
as possible.
Although the most significant concerns
of the CQC concerned the Trust’s
Mental Health Services, concerns
also extended to a number of areas
across the Trust including Ambulance,
Acute and Emergency Care and
Community, and can be grouped
under the categories of Clinical
Care, Governance, Workforce and
Infrastructure.
Particular observations of the CQC
relating to the Trust’s internal control
and governance arrangements were:
• There were deficiencies in
organisational structures,
processes and the Trust
leadership which prevented staff
from providing good services.
• There were deficiencies in
organisational structures,
processes and the Trust
leadership which prevented staff
from providing good services.
• The Trust did not have strong risk
management and governance
processes at all levels which
affected the quality and safety of
services and Executives were not
properly sighted on some risks
and issues.
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• The Trust did not know whether
all front line staff were reporting
all incidents and learning from
incidents was shared.
• Key groups of staff were not
up to date with safeguarding
training and there were
shortcomings in reported
incidents.
• Senior management were felt
by staff to have insufficient
knowledge and experience.
• There was found to be a
top-down culture with senior
managers attempting to direct
change. Senior managers did
not appear to understand what
was needed to make necessary
changes or to implement their
vision and strategies.
• Staff did not feel part of this
process as managers had sought
a high number of external
reviews.
Due to cancellation of their February
2017 meeting, no Audit and Corporate
Risk Committee meeting took place
between November 2016 and 1st
April 2017 (the previous meeting was
prior to the CQC visit). The issues
raised in their findings together
with investigations and resultant
undertakings from NHS Improvement
were disclosed to the non-executive
members of the Board at meetings and
seminars of the Board and by email
from my predecessor Chief Executive.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

I will work with the NHSI Improvement
Director assigned to the Trust on
strengthening the Trust’s governance
arrangements, via the Quality
Improvement Plan and Integrated
Improvement Framework, during
2017 / 18.
With the exception of the issue(s)
outlined above no other significant
issues have been identified by the
Trust and I believe that this Annual
Governance Statement is a balanced
reflection of the risks and controls
operating within the Trust during
2016 / 17
Signed

Chief Executive Officer
Date
30th May 2017
Accountable Officer
Maggie Oldham,
Interim Chief Executive.
Organisation
Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Appendix A

Non Executive Director
Responsibilities

Non-Executive Director Responsibilities as at 31st March 2017
Associate
Non-Executive
Director

Non-Executive Directors
Assurance sub-committee

Code

No. of
NEDs
Eve Richardson

Charles Rogers
(Senior independent
director)

Dr Nina
Moorman

David King

Jessamy Baird

Vaughan Thomas

Lena Samuels

(Non voting)

Voting member

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Corporate trustee

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Trust board

(TB)

6

Chair

Vice Chair

Member

Member

Member

Member

Attendee

Trust board seminar

(TBs)

6 plus
ANED &
NEFA

Chair

Vice Chair

Member

Member

Member

Member

Attendee

Remuneration & nominations
committee

(RNC)

4

Chair

Vice Chair

(ACRC)

4 plus
NEFA

(CFC)

3 plus
NEFA

Finance, investment, information
& workforce committee

(FIIWC)

2 plus
NEFA

Quality governance committee

(QGC)

3

Chair

(MHASC)

2

Vice Chair

(ICTAC)

2

Audit & corporate risk committee

Charitable funds committee

Mental health act scrutiny
committee
Information & communications
technology assurance committee

Vice Chair

Member

Member

Chair

Chair

Member

Member

Member

Vice Chair

Chair

Vice Chair

Member

Vice Chair

Chair

Chair

Vice Chair
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Appendix B

Attendance records relating to
the Board and Board Assurance
Committees

Analysis of Trust board members’ meeting attendance in 2016 / 17 (voting & non voting)
Committee

Mean NED
attendance
(%)

Mean
designate
NED
attendance
(%)

Mean
Executive
attendance
(%)

Mean whole
committee
attendance
(%)

Meetings
(No.)

No. of NEDs
on committee

No. designate
NEDs on
committee

No. Execs on
committee

Trust board

87

69

84

86

10

6

2

5

Audit & corporate risk committee

94

75

0

90

4

4

1

0

Charitable funds committee

56

0

67

63

3

3

0

2

Finance, investment, information &
workforce committee

74

88

61

74

11

2

1

2

Mental health act scrutiny committee

88

0

67

60

4

2

0

1

Quality governance committee

70

0

70

63

10

3

0

2

ICT assurance committee

100

0

100

100

2

2

0

1

Remuneration & nominations committee

81

100

0

85

4

4

1

0

100
90
80
70

60
50
40
30

20
10
0

Trust Board

Mean NED Attendance (%)

Audit & Corporate Risk
Committee

Charitable Funds
Committee

Finance Investment,
Information &
Workforce Committee

Mean Designate NED Attendance (%)

Mental Health Act
Scrutiny Committee

Quality Governance
Committee

Mean Executive Attendance (%)

ICT Assurance
Committee

Remuneration &
Nominations Committee

Mean Whole Committee Attendance (%)

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Appendix C

Top Key Issues and Risks
from Audit & Corporate Risks
Committee reported to the Trust
Board for period April 2016 –
March 2017
10 May 2016
• Principal Risk – Excellent Patient
Care
• Reviews of Achievement of
Corporate Goals & Priorities
2015 / 16
• Review of Corporate Governance
Framework
• Annual Use of Trust Seal
• External Audit – Annual Audit
Fee 2016 / 17
• Extension to Counter Fraud
Contract 2013 / 16
1st June 2016 – Extraordinary
Meeting
• Audit Results Report
• Annual Accounts 2015 / 16
• Directors’ Certificates
• Annual Governance Statement
2015 / 16
• Annual Report 2015 / 16
• Quality Account 2016
9th August 2016
• Principal Risk – Cost Effective,
Sustainable Services
• Principal Risk – A positive
experience for patients, service
users and staff
• Sub-Committees’ Annual Reports
2015 / 16
• Review of Corporate Governance
Framework – Standards of
Business Conduct
• Principal Risk Register 2016 / 17
and Corporate Risk Register

• External Audit – Annual Audit
Letter 2015 / 16
• Security – End of Year Report
2015 / 16
• ACRC’s Annual Report 2015 / 16
8th November 2016
• Principal Risk – Develop an
Integrated IT Infrastructure
• Principal Risk – Cost Effective,
Sustainable Services
• Corporate Governance
Framework – Declaration of
Interests
• External Governance Review –
Action Plan
• Review of Achievement of Trust
Goals and Priorities
4th May 2017
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Appendix D

Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on
the basis the Trust is a going concern
as there is no indication that the
healthcare and other services will not
continue to be provided by the public
sector for the foreseeable future and
that continuing financial support will
be provided by DH.
This year the Trust has struggled to
meet its financial targets against
a backdrop of increased financial
pressure across the NHS. The Trust has
returned a deficit of £10.96m but has
achieved £7.8m savings through the
Cost Improvement Programme. The DH
provided deficit funding of £12.3m as
revenue support loans in year bringing
the total revenue support loan funding
to £14.0m at 31st March 2017.
New regulatory oversight undertakings
have also been agreed which will
provide a focus on supporting the Trust
to exit from Quality Special Measures.
The Trust’s control total for 2017 / 18
is a deficit of £0.366m, however it is
expected the Trust will deliver a deficit
of £18.8m. The plans reflect agreed
continued revenue deficit support
funding from DH, and this support
funding is authorised by the DH
monthly in advance. Deficit support
funding totalling £2.9m for April and
May 2017 has been provided to the
Trust.

The Trust has a contract in place with
the Isle of Wight CCG for 2017–19
for £130.301m (2017 / 18) and
£126.431m (2018 / 19). The Trust
also has in place a contract with NHS
England for £8.560m (2017 / 18).
The Trust’s 2017 / 18 cash flow forecast
is based on the assumptions in the
2017 / 18 financial plan. The key
assumptions underpinning the cash
flow are receipt of £17.5m revenue
support loan from the DH to finance
the revenue deficit.
The cash flow position is reported to
the Finance, Investment, Information &
Workforce Committee and the Board
monthly and this is based on the Trust’s
detailed cash flow forecast which is
updated daily.
Taking into account all these factors,
the assumption that the healthcare
and other services will continue to
be provided by the public sector for
the foreseeable future and that the
DH will continue to provide financial
support, the Board consider the Trust
will continue to operate as a going
concern. The conditions described
above do, however, indicate the
existence of material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the
Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Part two

Staff and Remuneration Report

Staff Report
(figures in brackets relate to
preceding year)
Isle of Wight NHS Trust employed an
average of 2,950 (2,915) staff and
at 31st March 2017 the equivalent
of 2,675 (2,677) full time staff were
employed. The overall structure of the
workforce is summarised in the charts
below.
Employees by staff group
During the course of the year the
average staff numbers and full time
employed were:

Headcount Full Time

Average Staff Numbers

Other

Medical and dental

253

207

46

Ambulance staff

98

98

0

Administration and estates

640

620

20

Healthcare assistants and other support staff

705

609

96

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff

879

779

100

0

0

0

374

361

13

Social Care Staff

0

0

0

Healthcare Science Staff

0

0

0

Other

1

1

0

TOTAL

2,950

2,675

275

7

7

0

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff

Staff engaged on capital projects (included above)

NB. These figures include bank and agency staff.
The organisation employs a number
of individuals at Bands 8 and 9 who
are shown in the table below as Full
Time Employed numbers and as a
‘headcount’.
Band

FTE

Headcount

8a

75.78

85

8b

27.61

30

8c

14.06

15

8d

13.64

14

9

1.00

1

Total

132.10

145

NB. These are the numbers as at
31 / 3 / 2017
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The gender of employees is as follows:
Gender

Headcount

Directors

Senior Managers

All other employees

Total FTE

Female

2,328

5

99

2,224

1,975.74

768

8

46

714

723.41

3,096

13

145

2,938

2,699.14

Male
Grand Total

NB. These are the numbers as at 31 / 3 / 2017
Employee consultation
Our aim is to be a responsive, listening
organisation. The senior leaders
engage with their teams in a number
of ways, including:
The Staff Partnership Forum – this
meets every month (or as required)
and includes representatives from
professional associations. The forum
discusses organisational change
and receives updates from the Chief
Executive.
The Joint Local Negotiating
Committee – this meets every two
months (or as required) and represents
the interests of the medical staff.
The membership includes the Chief
Executive, Executive Medical Director,
representatives from medical staff and
the British Medical Association (BMA).
We need to reduce costs over the
coming years so that we can continue
to meet demand for services and,
within the funding available, deliver
high quality services. We are keen
to minimise redundancies and will
continue to take measures such as
banding and skill mix reviews, and
planned redeployment, to retain
existing staff.

To enhance quality and productivity
we have a workforce strategy that
promotes:
• A flexible workforce (to ensure
that we have the right skills in
the right place at the right time).
• Good leadership.
• Improved capacity and skills.
• A healthy and positive workforce.
• Increased management efficiency.
• Better on call systems.
• Safe staffing levels across all
areas.
Change is being managed through our
Integrated Improvement Framework.
Central to this is the emphasis
on leadership development and
embedding patient focused care at
strategic, managerial and individual
levels.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Staff Sickness and Morale
The Trust supports staff through an
active Occupational Health team
and through a variety of measures
to mitigate against staff sickness
including stress related illness. The
level of sickness reported during the
year was:
Staff Sickness Absence

2016 / 17 Number

2015 / 16 Number

2014 / 15 Number

27,327

25,258

26,308

2,632

2,582

2,609

0

9.8

10

6

2

1

296

28

60

Total Days Lost (Completion only required at Q4) 1
Total Staff Years (Completion only required at Q4) 2
Average working Days Lost (Completion only required at Q4)

2

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds (Completion
only required at Q4) 2
Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year (£000s)
(Completion only required at Q4) 2
1

This figures is taken from the employee roster system as is for the period 1 / 1 / 16 to 31 / 12 / 16

2

These figures are for the period 1 / 1 / 16 to 31 / 12 / 16 and are collected and provided by NHS Pensions.

During the course of the year the Trust
recognised, with the support of the
Charitable Funds Committee, that
the employment of a Staff Activities
Co-ordinator, would be beneficial and
help to raise morale amongst staff. In
part this was a response to a series
of staff surveys and studies which
show that a more contented and
satisfied workforce will deliver better
services. Staff were consulted about
what activities they would like to see
provided and activities organised have
included Trust Awards, a ‘bake off’,
fitness classes and a visit by Santa for
the children of Trust staff.

Remuneration Report
Section 421 of the Companies Act
2006 requires the preparation of a
Remuneration Report containing an
annual report on remuneration in
accordance with the requirements
of Part 3 of Schedule 8 of Statutory
Instrument 2008 No 410. Certain
information is subject to audit) and will
be referred to in the audit opinion.

In the NHS the report is in respect
of the Senior Managers of the NHS
body. ‘Senior Managers’ are defined
as: ‘those persons in senior positions
having authority or responsibility for
directing or controlling the major
activities of the NHS body. This means
those who influence the decisions of
the entity as a whole, rather than the
decisions of individual directorates
or departments.’ For the purposes
of this report, this covers the Trust’s
Non‑Executive and Executive Directors.
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Remuneration Policy – Executive
and Non-Executive Directors
NHS Improvement determine the
Remuneration of the Chairman and
Non-Executive Directors nationally and
the Trust has no reason to believe that
this position will change in the future.
The remuneration of any senior
manager on Agenda for Change Terms
and Conditions of Employment would
be in line with National Agreements
as negotiated by the Staff Council.
Any other Executive Directors contract
is in accordance with any national
guidance on executive pay. Where no
guidance is given a discussion would
be held at the local Remuneration
and Nominations Committee. The
membership of this Committee is
detailed in the Annual Governance
Statement. The Trust has no reason to
believe that this position will change in
the future.
Appraisal and Performance
The review of the performance of any
senior manager on Agenda for Change
Terms and Conditions of Employment
would be in accordance with the
Trust’s Appraisal Policy. The Trust Board
are also appraised. The Chairman
undertakes the appraisal of the Chief
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.
The Executive Directors are appraised
by the Chief Executive.
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Agenda for Change Terms and
Conditions of Employment allow for
pay progression to be held at the
first and second gateways should
performance not be satisfactory. Any
pay award to other Directors would
take account of National guidance and
appraisal outcomes.
Duration of contracts, notice
periods and termination payments
Substantive appointments are
made on a permanent basis, and
temporary arrangements would be
on the appropriate period of a fixed
term contract. Any senior manager
on Agenda for Change Terms and
Conditions of Employment (Pay Band
8 and above) are on 3 months period
of notice. Other Director contracts are
required to give 6 months period of
notice.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Exit Packages, payment for loss of
office or payments or awards to
past senior managers
During 2016 / 17 the Trust made one
contractural payment of £33k in lieu
of notice which is detailed in the tables
below. The Trust did not provide any
other staff with ‘exit packages’, make
payments for loss of office or make
payments or awards to past senior
managers during 2016 / 17.
Table 1: Exit package
cost band (including
any special payment
element)

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Cost of
compulsory
redundancies

Number

£s

Number
of other
departures
agreed

Cost of other
departures
agreed

Number

Total cost of
exit packages

Number

£s

Less than £10,000

0

0

£10,000 – £25,000

0

0

1

33,478

£50,001 – £100,000

0

0

£100,001 – £150,000

0

0

£150,001 – £200,000

0

0

>£200,000

0

0

1

33,478

£25,001 – £50,000

Total

1

0

0

1

Table 2: Analysis of other departures

£s

Total number of
exit packages

33,478

33,478

Number of
departures
where special
payments have
been made

Cost of special
payment
element
included in exit
packages

Number

£s

0

0

Agreement number

Total value of agreements
£000s

1

33

1

33

Voluntary Redundancies including early retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs
Contractual payments in lieu of notice
Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval
Total
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Equality disclosures
The Trust has a comprehensive range
of policies and procedures promoting
equality, diversity and inclusion,
and the elimination of harassment,
bullying and discrimination. The Trust’s
Equality Report (an Equality Act 2010
requirement) can be found at www.
iow.nhs.uk/about-us/Equality-anddiversity/ The Trust’s ‘Patients with a
Disability Group’ goes from strength
to strength and is actively involved in
using patient feedback to enable the
Trust to improve services for patients
and staff.
Eight-five per cent of staff have
received some form of equality and
diversity training. Specific Disability
Awareness training is now mandatory
for all staff. Staff who raise concerns of
bullying, harassment or discrimination
are supported by Human Resources,
Trade Union representatives and
Occupational Health. A ‘Diversity and
Inclusion Handbook’ is available for
Team Members.
Education, Training and
Organisational Development in
2016 / 17
In January 2017 we had a successful
Education Quality Review meeting with
Health Education England. All of the
Trust’s quality standards through our
Learning and Development Agreement
were met. The Education, Training and
Organisational Development team are
at the forefront of ensuring that our
staff are appropriately skilled and up to
date with the latest developments that
could benefit our patients.
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Here are a few of the highlights
from 2016 / 17…
Mandatory and general training
• Mandatory training compliance
for substantive staff is up from
80% in April 2016 to 83% in
March 2017.
• Bank staff mandatory training
compliance has also improved by
17% from 54% in April 2016 to
71% at the end of March 2017.
• A mandatory training dashboard
has been developed so that
managers can more effectively
monitor progress.
• Our training matrix was mapped
to the regional core skills
framework which means that
staff moving within the region
will not have to repeat their
training.
• 50 new and existing staff were
recruited onto apprenticeship
programmes.
• The Education, Training and
Organisational Development
Team oversaw the funding of
1,144 staff / spaces (333 from
Trust funds) to attend 420 (116
Trust funded) different courses,
conferences and workshops. In
addition to Trust funds additional
funding was provided by Health
Education Wessex. This activity is
separate from that funded by the
Trust’s Business Units.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

• Clinical education
• There has been a 23% increase
in non‑medical students coming
to the Island on placement.
• Over 40 overseas nurses
supported to successfully pass
their competency exams to be
able to work at the Trust.
Leadership and organisational
development
• Over 85% of staff had an annual
appraisal during the year. This is
a significant increase from the
2015 / 16 total which was just
over 36%.
• 292 staff were welcomed to
the organisation at Corporate
Inductions during the year.
• Feedback from staff revealed
that the shortened management
training was not meeting their
requirements. In response a new
leadership and management
programme, called ‘High
Performing Leaders and
Managers’. has been developed
and implemented. Cohort one
has completed with excellent
feedback and Cohort 2 is due
to commence in May 2017 and
will have mixed delegates from
Health and Social Care. This has
been a collaborative piece of
work with colleagues from the
Isle of Wight Council. Future
cohorts will include delegates
from the voluntary sector.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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• A Behaviour Focus Group
has been set up to tackle
harassment, bullying and abuse
(HBA) following feedback
from staff surveys. Behaviour
buddies / advisors are being
recruited and trained. They will
be available for staff to go to if
they feel bullied, have witnessed
bullying or are being accused of
bullying behaviour. They will be
assisted with options for action.

Additional comments

I would like to thank

• Over 1,000 thank you cards have
been sent out for staff to use
and feedback received by the
Staff Experience Group is very
positive. They are now available
in electronic and hard copy form
and the Group have ordered an
additional 2,000 to be printed
with some new designs available.
Medical Education
• On his successful visit Sir Keith
Pearson, Chair of Health
Education England (HEE) said
he was impressed by the energy
and enthusiasm of the doctors
on the Island.
• Quality visits from the School
of Medicine, School of Surgery
and School of GP Psychiatry
and Foundation have resulted
in previous concerns about the
quality of training being lifted
with the Trusts rating moving
from red to green.
• A successful annual review of
competence progression (ARCP)
in 2016, means that doctors are
able to progress their careers.

Name of staff member

Especially for:

Caring

Working as a
team

Innovating and
improving

From

Staff – If you are presented with one of these cards,
please email ThankYouCards@iow.nhs.uk
Patients – Once completed please return to the
hospital ward reception

Thank You Card Team

• Following successful
development of a clinical handy
app for smart phones doctors
will have faster and easier access
to the Trust’s anti-microbial policy
and guidelines.

Library and Knowledge Services
• 11,500 pieces of evidence were
accessed through online library
resources.
• There were 4,881 book loans
from the library
• Free WiFi installed for staff.
• The services provided by the
Library search / training were
confirmed as saving staff time,
generating new ideas / skills,
informing decision making,
facilitating collaborative working,
saving money, reducing risk &
improving quality of care.
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Staff policies in respect of disabled
persons
The Trust has a range of policies
which provide for the full and fair
consideration to applications for
employment made by disabled
persons, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and abilities.
Where issues arise during employment
policies provide for continuing the
employment of, and for arranging
appropriate training for, employees
who have become disabled persons
during the period when they were
employed. The Trust policies do not
permit discrimination against disabled
persons in respect of training, career
development and or the promotion of
disabled persons. Trust policies can be
found on the organisation’s website at
www.iow.nhs.uk/about-us/policies_
and_strategies.htm
Off-payroll engagements
As part of the Review of Tax
Arrangements of Public Sector
Employees, published by the Chief
Secretary to the Treasury on 23rd
May 2012, NHS bodies are required
to publish information in their
Annual Report regarding off-payroll
engagements where payment was
more than £220 per day and lasted 6
months or longer. Between 1st April
2016 and 31st March 2017 the Trust
had no ‘off-payroll’ engagements of
this nature.
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Consultancy services
The financial accounts show that the
Trust spent £611k on consultancy
services in 2016 / 17 compared to
£621k in 2015 / 16 and £675k in
2014 / 15.
Salary and Pension entitlements of
senior managers
Tables showing the Salary and Pension
entitlements of senior managers follow.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

(a)

–

105–110

–

1,900

–

60–65

90–95

20–25

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(e)

(a)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

6.9

7.2

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(c )
(d)
Long Term
Performance Pay
Performance Pay
& Bonuses
& Bonuses
(bands of
(bands of
£5,000)
£5,000)

26,041

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

15,400

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(b)
Expense
payments
(taxable)
To nearest £100
£00

26,302

–

–

95–100

185–190

95–100

110–115

50–55

160–165

85–90

145–150

5–10

–

–

5–10

5–10

5–10

5–10

5–10

15–20

5–10

(bands of
£5,000)

Salary (inc Other
remuneration)

185–190

25–30

95–100

5–7.5

2.5–5

75–80

200–205

110–115

130–135

–

105–110

40–45

165–170

0–5

0–5

0–5

0–5

5–10

5–10

5–10

5–10

30–35

–

(bands of
£5,000)

Total (a to e)

(f)

12.5–15

17.5–20

12.5–15

15–17.5

–

0–2.5

0–2.5

20–22.5

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(bands of
£2,500)

All pension
related benefits

2015 / 16

185–190

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(c )
(d)
Long Term
Performance Pay
Performance Pay
& Bonuses
& Bonuses
(bands of
(bands of
£5,000)
£5,000)

2016 / 17
(e)

–

–

12.5–15

17.5–20

12.5–15

15–17.5

–

2.5–5.0

12.5–15

20–22.5

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(bands of
£2,500)

All pension
related benefits

–

–

110–115

205–210

110–115

130–135

50–55

180–185

100–105

170–175

5–10

–

–

5–10

5–10

5–10

5–10

5–10

15–20

5–10

(bands of
£5,000)

Total (a to e)

(f)
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Ratio
(note 7)

–

–

–

185–190

100–105

Dr M Pugh – Executive Medical Director
(note 3 & 5)
Mr A Sheward – Executive Director of
Nursing & Quality
(note 3,5,9)
Mr J Burwell – Executive Director of Strategy
& Planning
(Note 1, 3 & 5)
Mrs S Johnston – Acting Executive Director
of Nursing & Quality
(Note 9)
Band of Highest Paid Director’s Total
Remuneration
(£000)
Median Total Remuneration
(£)

115–120

Mr M Price – Company Secretary
(note 1, 3 & 5)

–

–

40–45

–

–

145–150

Mrs C Palmer – Executive Director of
Financial & Human Resources

Ms J Pound – Interim Workforce Director
(note 8)

Ms K Baker – Chief Executive
(note 3,5,6,10)
Mrs K Gray – Executive Director of
Transformation & Integration
(note 1 ,4 & 10)
Mr S Stacey – Chief Operating Officer
(note 3 & 5)

–

–

–

0–5

0–5

Mrs J Tabor – Non-Executive Director
(note 1 & 4)

–

–

5–10

Mr D King – Non-Executive Director
(note 3)

0–5

5–10

Mrs J Baird – Non-Executive Director
(note 3)

–

–

5–10

–

–

–

(b)
Expense
payments
(taxable)
To nearest £100
£00

0–5

5–10

Mr C Rogers – Non-Executive Director
(note 3)

Mr V Thomas – Non-Executive Director
(note 2)
Ms L Samuels – Associate Non‑Executive
Director
(note 2 & 4)
Ms E Peers – Non-Executive Financial Adviser
(note 1 & 4)

30–35

Dr N Moorman – Non-Executive Director
(note 3)

–

(bands of
£5,000)

Salary (inc Other
remuneration)

Ms E Richardson – Chair
(note 3)

Name and title
Mr D Fisher – Chairman
(note 8)

Remuneration

Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Notes
1. All the above senior managers
are / were voting members of
the Board of Directors except:
a. Mr M Price (all year).
b. Ms E Peers (until 8th
December 2016).
c. Mrs J Tabor (until 6 August
2016).
th

d. Mrs K Gray (until 1st May
2016).
e. Mr J Burwell (from 6th June
2016).
2. The following appointments
were made in the year:
a. On 6th June 2016 Mr
J Burwell joined on
secondment as Executive
Director for Strategy
and Planning and was
appointed substantively
from 1st October 2016. The
secondment period was paid
via NHS Improvement.
b. On 7th September 2016 Mr
V Thomas was appointed
Non‑Executive Director.
c. On 5th October 2016 Ms
L Samuels was appointed
Associate Non-Executive
Director.
3. The remaining Directors not
shown in note 2 continued to
serve on the Board throughout
the year and remain as Directors
as at the date of this Annual
Report and Accounts.
4. The following persons were
Directors at 1st April 2016 but
ceased to serve on the Board
during the year:
a. On 1st May 2016 Mrs K Gray
left as Executive Director of
Transformation & Integration.
b. On 6th August 2016 Mrs J
Tabor left as Non-Executive
Director.
c. On 8th December 2016 Mrs
L Peers left as Non-Executive
Financial Adviser.
5. The above named executive
directors have service contracts
with the Trust.

6. The Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of
Financial & Human Resources
are contractually entitled to
performance bonuses as part
of their remuneration but both
declined to be paid this element.
7. Reporting bodies are required
to disclose the relationship
between the remuneration
of the highest paid director
in their organisation and the
median remuneration of the
organisation’s workforce. The
banded remuneration of the
highest paid director in the
Isle of Wight NHS Trust in the
financial year 2016 / 17 was
£185,000 – £190,000 (2015 / 16
– £185,000 – £190,000). This
was 6.9 times (2015 / 16 – 7.2
times) the median remuneration
of the workforce, which was
£26,302 (2015 / 16 – £26,041).
In 2016 / 17, 3 employees
received remuneration which
was proportionately higher than
that received by the highest
paid director (2015 / 16 – 2
employees). Total remuneration
includes salary, on-call payments,
non-consolidated performance
related pay, benefits in kind
as well as severance payments
and is calculated on a Full
Time Equivalent basis. It does
not include employer pension
contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of
pensions. Remuneration ranged
from £12k to £301k.
Employee benefits

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

8. These are only included to
show comparative figures for
2015 / 16.
9. Mr A Sheward was released
on secondment during the
period 20th October 2016 – 19th
January 2017. Mrs S Johnston,
Deputy Director of Nursing,
covered his full duties during
this time.
10. Mrs K Gray received a
contractural payment in lieu of
notice of £33k.
11. As a post balance sheet event,
on 31st March 2017 Ms K
Baker left as Chief Executive
Officer and Ms L Samuels left as
Associate Non-Executive Director.

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

Total

Total

£000s

£000s

Salaries and wages

102,571

102,570

Social security costs

9,517

7,370

11,493

11,336

Other pension costs

8

6

Termination benefits

193

215

Total employee benefits

123,782

121,497

Employee costs capitalised

278

164

123,504

121,333

Employee Benefits – Gross Expenditure

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA – Pensions Division

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs

0.0 – 2.5

5.0 – 7.5

15.0 –17.5

–

7.5– 10.0

0.0 – 2.5

0.0 – 2.5

–

2.5 – 5.0

10.0 – 12.5

(d)

–

0.0 – 5.0

40.0 – 45.0

0.0 – 5.0

0.0 – 5.0

25.0 – 30.0

45.0 – 50.0

35.0 – 40.0

65.0 – 70.0

(bands of £5000)

–

0.0 – 5.0

120.0 – 125.0

0.0 – 5.0

0.0 – 5.0

70.0 – 75.0

140.0 – 145.0

115.0 – 120.0

205.0–210.0

(bands of £5000)

Lump sum at age 60
Total accrued pension at
related to accrued pension
age 60 at 31 March 2017
at 31 March 2017

(c)

£000

0

0

770

24

0

403

956

791

1,444

0

(104)

78

24

(33)

45

60

102

80

£000

Real Increase in Cash
Equivalent Transfer Value

(f)

0

165

685

0

33

354

887

683

1,351

£000

Cash Equivalent Transfer
Value at 31 March 2016

(g)

3. Mrs S Johnston was Acting Executive Director of Nursing & Quality for only 3 months therefore the amounts accrued at 31st March 2017 are not required.

2. Mr S Stacey Chief Operating Officer left the NHS Pension Scheme during 2016 / 17.

(e)
Cash Equivalent Transfer
Value at 31 March 2017

1. There are no entries for Non-Executive Directors in the table because their remuneration is non-pensionable.

Note

Mrs S Johnston – Acting Executive Director
of Nursing & Quality

–

2.5 – 5.0

Mr M Price – Company Secretary

Mr S Stacey – Chief Operating Officer

2.5 – 5.0

Mr J Burwell – Executive Director of Strategy
& Planning

–

0.0 – 2.5

Dr M Pugh – Executive Medical Director

Mr A Sheward – Executive Director of
Nursing & Quality

Mrs K Gray – Executive Director of
Transformation and Integration

2.5 – 5.0

Mrs C Palmer – Executive Director of
Financial & Human Resources

(bands of £2500)

(bands of £2500)
5.0 – 7.5

Real increase in pension
lump sum at age 60

Real increase in pension
at age 60

0.0 – 2.5

(b)

(a)

Ms K Baker – Chief Executive

Name and title

Pension Benefits

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000

Employers Contribution to
Stakeholder Pension

(h)
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

Real Increase in CETV

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value
(CETV) is the actuarially assessed
capital value of the pension scheme
benefits accrued by a member at a
particular point in time. The benefits
valued are the member’s accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme.
A CETV is a payment made by a
pension scheme, or arrangement to
secure pension benefits in another
pension scheme or arrangement
when the member leaves a scheme
and chooses to transfer the benefits
accrued in their former scheme. The
pension figures shown relate to
the benefits that the individual has
accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a
senior capacity to which the disclosure
applies. The CETV figures and the
other pension details include the value
of any pension benefits in another
scheme or arrangement which the
individual has transferred to the NHS
pension scheme. They also include
any additional pension benefit
accrued to the member as a result
of their purchasing additional years
of pension service in the scheme at
their own cost. CETVs are calculated
within the guidelines and framework
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty
of Actuaries.

This reflects the increase in CETV
effectively funded by the employer.
It takes account of the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation, the
value of any benefits transferred
from another pension scheme or
arrangement and uses common
market valuation factors for the start
and end of the period. A CETV is not
provided once a scheme member
reaches age 60.

Maggie Oldham
Interim Chief Executive
Officer / Accountable Officer
Isle of Wight NHS Trust
Date: 30th May 2017
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Part three

Annual Accounts 2016 / 17
Primary financial statements and notes to the accounts

Introduction to the annual
accounts
NHS organisations have a statutory
duty to produce annual accounts (also
known as financial statements).
The annual accounts are the main
way in which Trusts discharge their
accountability to taxpayers and service
users for their stewardship of public
money.
The Trust Board is required to
formally approve the accounts once
they have been audited. Whilst the
accounts reflect the immediate past
performance during the last 12
months, they also set out the financial
foundations on which the organisation
will build its future performance. The
format of the accounts is specified
in the Department of Health Group
Manual for Accounts published by the
Department of Health.

Maggie Oldham
Interim Chief Executive
Officer / Accountable Officer
Isle of Wight NHS Trust
Date: 30th May 2017
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) – Annual Accounts 2016 / 17
Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended
31 March 2017
NOTE

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

10.1

(123,504)

(121,333)

Other operating costs

8

(54,919)

(53,820)

Revenue from patient care activities

5

154,410

156,054

Other operating revenue

6

Gross employee benefits

Operating surplus / (deficit)

16,700

14,222

(7,313)

(4,877)

Investment revenue

12

16

28

Other gains and (losses)

13

(22)

10

Finance costs

14

(237)

(28)

Surplus / (deficit) for the financial year

(7,556)

(4,867)

Public dividend capital dividends payable

(3,356)

(3,529)

Transfers by absorption – gains

0

0

Transfers by absorption – (losses)

0

0

0

0

(10,912)

(8,396)

Net Gain / (loss) on transfers by absorption
Retained surplus / (deficit) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Impairments and reversals taken to the revaluation reserve

1,809

(1,443)

675

6,050

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangibles

0

0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets

0

0

Other gain / (loss) (explain in footnote below)

0

0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial assets

0

0

Net actuarial gain / (loss) on pension schemes

0

0

Other pension remeasurements

0

0

Reclassification adjustments

0

0

0

0

(8,428)

(3,789)

(10,912)

(8,396)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment

On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Total comprehensive income for the year

Financial performance for the year
Retained surplus / (deficit) for the year
Prior period adjustment to correct errors and other performance adjustments

0

0

IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments)

0

0

0

0

(48)

38

0

0

(10,960)

(8,358)

Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments)
Adjustments in respect of donated gov't grant asset reserve elimination
Adjustment re absorption accounting
Adjusted retained surplus / (deficit)

The Trust's reported NHS financial performance position is derived from its retained surplus / (deficit) and adjusted for the following:
(i) Depreciation of donated funded assets and income relating to donations and grants for capital acquisitions.
The notes on pages 7 to 40 form part of this account.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) – Annual Accounts 2016 / 17
Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2017

NOTE
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Sub-total current assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Provisions
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
DH revenue support loan
DH capital loan
Total current liabilities
Net current assets / (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Provisions
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
DH revenue support loan
DH capital loan
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed:

16
17

20.1

19
20.1

21
22

23
27
24
24
24

23
27
24
24
24

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s

115,407
1,789
0
0
158
117,354

113,356
2,401
0
0
255
116,012

2,273
6,900
0
0
7,295
16,468
0
16,468
133,822

2,237
6,330
0
0
2,638
11,205
0
11,205
127,217

(20,048)
0
(583)
(106)
0
0
0
(20,737)
(4,269)
113,085

(18,024)
0
(407)
(102)
0
0
0
(18,533)
(7,328)
108,684

0
0
(32)
(531)
0
(14,030)
0
(14,593)
98,492

0
0
0
(637)
0
(1,735)
0
(2,372)
106,312

6,762
50,488
41,242
0
98,492

6,155
61,376
38,781
0
106,312

FINANCED BY:
Public Dividend Capital
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Total Taxpayers’ Equity:
The notes on pages 7 to 40 form part of this account.
The financial statements on pages 2 to 6 were approved by the Board on 30th May 2017 and signed on its behalf by
Chief Executive:

Date:
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) – Annual Accounts 2016 / 17
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
For the year ending 31 March 2017
Public
Dividend
capital
£000s
Balance at 1 April 2016

6,155

Retained
earnings

Revaluation
reserve

Other
reserves

Total
reserves

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

61,376 0

38,781 0

0

106,312

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2016 / 17
(10,912)

(10,912)

Retained surplus / (deficit) for the year

675

675

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets

0

0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets

0

0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial assets
Impairments and reversals

0

0

1,809

1,809
0

0

23

(23)

0

0

0

0

0

0

Other gains / (loss) (provide details below)
Transfers between reserves

Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers between Reserves in respect of assets transferred under
absorption

0

0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Originating capital for Trust established in year

0

0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets

0

0

0

0

0

607

607

Temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year

0

0

PDC written off

0

0

Transfer due to change of status from Trust to Foundation Trust

0

0

0

Other movements

0

1

0

Temporary and permanent PDC received – cash

0

0

Net actuarial gain / (loss) on pension

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

607

(10,888)

2,461

0

(7,820)

Balance at 31 March 2017

6,762

50,488

41,242

0

98,492

Balance at 1 April 2015
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31
March 2016

6,762

69,520

34,426

0

110,708

0

Other pensions remeasurement

Net recognised revenue / (expense) for the year

(8,396)

Retained surplus / (deficit) for the year

(8,396)
6,050

6,050

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets

0

0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets

0

0

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals

0

0

(1,443)

(1,443)

Other gains / (loss)
Transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

252

(252)

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers between revaluation reserve & retained earnings reserve in
respect of assets transferred under absorption
On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Originating capital for Trust established in year

0

0

New PDC received – cash

0

0

PDC repaid in year

0

Other movements

(607)

0
0

0

0

(607)

Net actuarial gain / (loss) on pension

0

0

Other pension remeasurement

0

0

Net recognised revenue / (expense) for the year

(607)

(8,144)

4,355

0

(4,396)

Balance at 31 March 2016

6,155

61,376

38,781

0

106,312
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Information on reserves
1

Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities. Additional PDC
may also be issued to NHS trusts by the Department of Health. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS trust, is
payable to the Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

2

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the NHS trust.

3

Revaluation Reserve
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that,
they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was
recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

4

Other reserves
The Trust has no Other Reserves.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2017

NOTE

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
(7,313)
6,458
0
0
(45)
0
0
(36)
(473)
0
(514)
0
(142)
350
(1,715)

(4,877)
6,280
0
0
(51)
0
0
66
1,340
0
1,464
0
(263)
27
3,986

Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Investing Activities

16
(2,585)
(430)
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(2,997)

28
(7,856)
(315)
0
0
0
515
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(7,628)

Net Cash Inform / (outflow) before Financing

(4,712)

(3,642)

607
0
0
12,812
0
0
(517)
0
0
(102)
(237)
(3,194)

0
(607)
0
1,735
0
0
0
0
0
(47)
(31)
(3,646)

Operating surplus / (deficit)
Depreciation and amortisation

8

Impairments and reversals
Other gains / (losses) on foreign exchange
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash

13
6

Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Release of PFI / deferred credit
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase / (Decrease) in movement in non cash provisions
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received
(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment
(Payments) for Intangible Assets
(Payments) for Investments with DH
(Payments) for Other Financial Assets
(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (Intangible)
Proceeds from Disposal of Investment with DH
Proceeds from Disposal of Other Financial Assets
Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT)
Loans Made in Respect of LIFT
Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFT
Rental Revenue

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Received
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Repaid
Loans received from DH – New Capital Investment Loans
Loans received from DH – New Revenue Support Loans
Other Loans Received
Loans repaid to DH – Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal
Loans repaid to DH – Working Capital Loans / Revenue Support Loans
Other Loans Repaid
Cash transferred to NHS Foundation Trusts or on dissolution
Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-SoFP PFI and LIFT
Interest paid
PDC Dividend (paid) / refunded
Capital grants and other capital receipts (excluding donated / government granted cash
receipts)
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from Financing Activities

0

77

9,369

(2,519)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

4,657

(6,161)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the Period

2,638
0
7,295

8,799
0
2,638

Effect of exchange rate changes in the balance of cash held in foreign currencies
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end

21
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Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) – Annual Accounts 2016 / 17
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1.

Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department
of Health Group Accounting Manual, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the DH Group Accounting Manual 2016 / 17 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in that manual
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury,
which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the Accounting Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy
which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The
particular policies adopted by the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to
the accounts.

1.1

Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on the basis the Trust is a going concern as there is no indication that the healthcare and other services will not
continue to be provided by the public sector for the foreseeable future and that continuing financial support will be provided by DH.
This year the Trust has struggled to meet its financial targets against a backdrop of increased financial pressure across the NHS. The Trust has returned a
deficit of £10.96m but has achieved £7.8m savings through the Cost Improvement Programme. The DH provided deficit funding of £12.3m as revenue
support loans in year bringing the total revenue support loan funding to £14.0m at 31 March 2017.
New regulatory oversight undertakings have also been agreed which will provide a focus on supporting the Trust to exit from Quality Special Measures.
The Trust’s control total for 2017 / 18 is a deficit of £0.366m, however it is expected the Trust will deliver a deficit of £18.8m. The plans reflect agreed
continued revenue deficit support funding from DH, and this support funding is authorised by the DH monthly in advance. Deficit support funding
totalling £2.9m for April and May 2017 has been provided to the Trust.
The Trust has a contract in place with the Isle of Wight CCG for 2017–19 for £130.301m (2017 / 18) and £126.431m (2018 / 19). The Trust also has in
place a contract with NHS England for £8.560m (2017 / 18).
The Trust’s 2017 / 18 cash flow forecast is based on the assumptions in the 2017 / 18 financial plan. The key assumptions underpinning the cash flow are
receipt of £17.5m revenue support loan from the DH to finance the revenue deficit.
The cash flow position is reported to the Finance, Investment, Information & Workforce Committee and the Board monthly and this is based on the
Trust’s detailed cash flow forecast which is updated daily.
Taking into account all these factors, the assumption that the healthcare and other services will continue to be provided by the public sector for the
foreseeable future and that the DH will continue to provide financial support, the Board consider the Trust will continue to operate as a going concern.
The conditions described above do, however, indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

1.2

Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if
they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.3

Movement of assets within the DH Group
“Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Treasury FReM. The FReM does not require
retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been restated. Absorption
accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required
when functions transfer within the public sector. Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the SOCI, and is disclosed
separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and expenditure entries.”

1.4

Charitable Funds
“Under the provisions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, those Charitable Funds that fall under common control with NHS
bodies are consolidated within the entity’s financial statements. In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, restated prior period
accounts are presented where the adoption of the new policy has a material impact. However, the Trust’s Charitable Funds are not considered to be
material and are therefore not consolidated into the financial statements.
The Charitable Funds are registered with the Charity Commission under number 1049606 in the name of Isle of Wight NHS Trust Charitable Funds. The
Corporate Trustee of the Charitable Funds is the Isle of Wight NHS Trust. The Corporate Trustee delegates authority to the Charitable Funds committee
in accordance with Standing Financial Instructions.”

1.5

Pooled Budgets
The NHS trust has entered into a pooled budget with Isle of Wight Council. Under the arrangement funds are pooled under S75 of the NHS Act 2006
for Occupational Therapy activities and Note 2 to the accounts provides details of the income and expenditure.
The pool is hosted by the Trust. Payments for services provided by the NHS trust are accounted for as income from the Isle of Wight CCG. The NHS trust
accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the
pooled budget agreement.
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1.6

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying
assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.6.1

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of applying the
NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Inventories – In general the value of all inventories is determined by annual stock take as at 31st March or as close to that date as is reasonably
practical. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out formula (except pharmacy stocks which are at
weighted average cost).
Income Accruals – Where possible these are based on actual activity and price. Where it is not possible to quantify actual activity, accruals are estimated
based on historical data available for the specific activity taking into account cyclical patterns where this is considered relevant.
Impairment of and Reversals of Financial Assets – All non-NHS receivables other than those covered by the Compensation Recovery Unit above 90 days
excluding NHS bodies are impaired on an invoice by invoice basis. All debts relating to the Compensation Recovery Unit will be provided for at 22.94%
as per the Accounting Manual guidance.
Expenditure Accruals – Where possible these are based on actual activity and price applicable. Where it is not possible to quantify actual activity,
accruals are estimated based on historical data available for the specific activity taking into account cyclical patterns where this is considered relevant.
Employee Benefits – Accrual for untaken annual leave is based on number of days carried forward and calculated at the mid-point on the scale. A
sample of 10% of staff is calculated for individual employees and extrapolated to the full year costs for all staff. Overtime and travel costs for March
have been estimated based on the average of the preceding months.

1.6.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
There are no key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

1.7

Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration receivable. The main source of revenue for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services. Revenue relating to patient care spells
that are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis costs incurred to date compared to total expected costs.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.
The NHS trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals to whom
personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer. The NHS trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the
Department of Work and Pension’s Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is measured at the
agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.
In addition to healthcare related activities the Trust also trades under the name of NHS Creative. This activity is a design, print and marketing function.
The income and costs related to this trade are included in Note 4 to the accounts.
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1.8

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of leave
earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to
carry forward leave into the following period.

Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that
cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The schemes
are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the NHS body of participating in a scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for
the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the NHS trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.
The Trust also makes contributions to an occupational pension scheme set up in accordance with the Automatic Enrolment (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Regulations 2012. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme, for which the Trust accounts for its employer contributions within ‘other
pension costs’ in these financial statements.
The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.9

Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of
the consideration payable.
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1.10

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
•

it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

•

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the NHS trust;

•

it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and either

•

the item costs at least £5,000; or

•

Collectively, a number of items have a total cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial
control.

•

Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated as
separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and
bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Assets that are held for
their service potential and are in use are measured subsequently at their current value in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their
service potential but are surplus are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions preventing access to the market at the reporting date.
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from
those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing use are determined as follows:
•

Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use.

•

Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost, modern equivalent asset basis.

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would
meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.
Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, borrowing costs. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into
use.
IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are valued at depreciated historic
cost where these assets have short useful economic lives or low values or both, as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in
existing use.
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously recognised
in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not
result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there
is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit
should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent
expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is writtenout and charged to operating expenses.
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1.11

Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the trust’s business or which
arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential
be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Software that is integral to the operation of hardware, for example an operating
system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for
example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
•

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use;

•

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it;

•

the ability to sell or use the intangible asset;

•

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;

•

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and

•

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above
are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at current value in existing use by reference to an active market, or, where no active market
exists, at the lower of amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis) and value in use where the asset is income generating. Internallydeveloped software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological advances.

1.12

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, assets under construction or development, and assets held for sale are not depreciated / amortised.
Otherwise, depreciation or amortisation is charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current
assets, less any residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the
NHS trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the NHS trust and may be shorter than the physical
life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective
basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives.
At each financial year-end, the NHS trust checks whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment or intangible non-current assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of such an impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether
there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually at the financial year end.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation
reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear
consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been no initial
impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to
the revaluation reserve.

1.13

Donated assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service potential, or otherwise at value on
receipt, with a matching credit to income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on
revaluations, impairments and sales are treated in the same way as for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached
to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.14

Government grants
Government grant funded assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service potential, or otherwise at fair
value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate
recognition of the gain.
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1.15

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and
management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is open market
value including alternative uses.
The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale. Instead, it is retained as an
operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.16

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus / deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability
and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or
finance leases.

The NHS trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the NHS trust’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.17

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula. This is considered to be a reasonable
approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.

1.18

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant
risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral
part of the NHS trust’s cash management.

1.19

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the NHS trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the NHS trust
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using
HM Treasury’s discount rates.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the NHS trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation
in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both
necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.
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1.20

Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which in return
settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the
trust is disclosed at Note 31.

1.21

Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the
NHS trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual
membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.22

Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)
CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised within twelve
months, and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at open market value. As the NHS trust makes emissions, a provision is recognised with
an offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts
are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

1.23

Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non‑occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.24

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the NHS trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the
goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective
interest method.

1.25

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the NHS trust becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has
been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historic cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.
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Notes to the Accounts – 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)
1.26

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is
charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.27

Foreign currencies
The NHS trust’s functional and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the
exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in the trust’s surplus / deficit
in the period in which they arise.

1.28

Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the trust has no beneficial interest
in them.

1.29

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust. At any time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments
of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the value received. As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity
financial instrument.
An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as public dividend capital dividend. The
charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities (except for donated
assets and cash balances with the Government Banking Service). The average carrying amount of assets is calculated as a simple average of opening
and closing relevant net assets.
In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the
actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any
adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.

1.30

Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation.
By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of
payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have
been made good through insurance cover had the NHS trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal
revenue expenditure).

1.31

Subsidiaries
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. The NHS trust has
control when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its power over another entity. The income and expenses; gains and losses; assets,
liabilities and reserves; and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial statement lines. Appropriate adjustments
are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned with the NHS trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is not
co-terminus.
Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.
The Isle of Wight NHS Trust Charitable Funds Accounts, for which the Isle of Wight NHS Trust is a Corporate Trustee, are not material and are therefore
not consolidated.

1.32

Joint arrangements
Material entities over which the NHS trust has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.
Where the NHS trust is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own accounts.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Joint ventures are recognised as an investment and accounted for using the equity method.

1.33

Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except insofar as development expenditure relates
to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future
benefits expected and is amortised through the SOCI on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It should be revalued
on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.
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Notes to the Accounts – 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)
1.34

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2016 / 17. These standards are still subject to HM
Treasury FReM interpretation, with IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 being for implementation in 2018 / 19, and the government implementation date for IFRS 16 still
subject to HM Treasury consideration.
•

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but not yet adopted by the FReM:
early adoption is not therefore permitted.

•

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but not yet
adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted.

•

IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the FReM: early
adoption is not therefore permitted.
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2.

Isle of Wight Council pooled budget
Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) no longer has a pooled budget arrangement with the Isle of Wight Council.

3.

Operating segments
The Board receives regular reports of the financial performance and financial position of the Trust, and as an integrated Trust the
key financial information for decision making is based on the entity as a whole. It is therefore considered that the Trust has just one
reportable segment, a healthcare segment. There are no other segments that constitute 10% or more of the Trust’s operations. The
Trust receives income from a number of healthcare commissioners, and the respective income levels are disclosed in note 5 to these
accounts.

4.

Income generation activities
The Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in patient care. The following
provides details of income generation activities whose full cost exceeded £1m or was otherwise material.

Summary Table – aggregate of all schemes

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Income

2,458

2,568

Full cost

2,481

2,577

(23)

(9)

Surplus / (deficit)

The income and expenditure above relates to the activities of NHS Creative. This is an element of the Trust run with a view to making a profit
to contribute to patient care. In year, a loss of £23k was generated after including £59k for overhead costs. There was a positive contribution
of £36k to the Trusts position before allocation of overheads.
5.

Revenue from patient care activities

NHS Trusts
NHS England
Clinical Commissioning Groups

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s
0

0

10,265

11,950

137,031

135,882

333

913

Department of Health

0

0

NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co)

0

84

Additional income for delivery of healthcare services

0

607

Local Authorities

5,278

4,963

Private patients

1,166

1,392

Foundation Trusts

Non-NHS:

Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
Injury costs recovery
Other Non-NHS patient care income
Total Revenue from patient care activities

6

42

301

173

30

48

154,410

156,054

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Other operating revenue

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

2,642
26

12

4,397

4,259

45

51

Patient transport services
Education, training and research

2,716

Receipt of charitable donations for capital acquisitions

139

0

Non-patient care services to other bodies

1,309

931

Sustainability & Transformation Fund Income

1,750

0

Income generation (Other fees and charges)

2,458

2,568

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions

123

106

3,811

3,579

16,700

14,222

171,110

170,276

Rental revenue from operating leases
Other revenue
Total Other Operating Revenue
Total operating revenue

Income generation consists of NHS Creative which is the only scheme with costs exceeding £1m as detailed in Note 4 above.
The material items included within other revenue are car parking £442k; catering £384k; pharmacy sales £216k; ferry tickets £82k;
occupational health commercial £139k.
7.

Overseas Visitors Disclosure
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Income recognised during 2016 / 17 (invoiced amounts and accruals)

6

42

Cash payments received in-year (re receivables at 31 March 2016)

2

16

Cash payments received in-year (iro invoices issued 2016 / 17)

1

23

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re receivables at 31 March 2016)

0

0

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued 2016 / 17)

0

1

Amounts written off in-year (irrespective of year of recognition)

5

1
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Operating expenses

Services from other NHS Trusts

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

1,373

1,499

4

5

Services from other NHS bodies

236

0

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts

581

467

2,194

1,971

71

62

Supplies and services – clinical

25,013

23,946

Supplies and services – general

1,553

1,453

Services from CCGs / NHS England

Total Services from NHS bodies*
Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors

611

621

Establishment

4,372

4,680

Transport

1,071

1,065

974

809

Consultancy services

Business rates paid to local authorities

6,514

6,478

Hospitality

49

63

Insurance

5

30

Legal Fees

348

283

Impairments and Reversals of Receivables

(29)

(12)

Premises

35

17

Depreciation

5,339

4,940

Amortisation

Inventories write down

1,119

1,340

Internal Audit Fees

57

66

Audit fees

81

81

Other auditor’s remuneration [detail]

43

12

3,513

3,213

695

762

1,291

1,940

54,919

53,820

122,535

120,386

Clinical negligence
Education and Training
Other
Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits)
Employee Benefits
Employee benefits excluding Board members

969

947

Total Employee Benefits

123,504

121,333

Total Operating Expenses

178,423

175,153

Board members

*Services from NHS bodies does not include expenditure which falls into a category below

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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9.

Operating Leases
The Trust leases medical equipment, property and vehicles under operating lease arrangements. There are no individually material
leases. The lease terms range from 1 to 15 years.

9.1.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) as lessee
2016 / 17
Land

Buildings

Other

Total

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Payments recognised as an expense
622

1,004

Contingent rents

0

0

Sub-lease payments

0

0

622

1,004

Minimum lease payments

Total
Payable:
No later than one year

0

307

158

465

383

Between one and five years

0

436

13

449

436

After five years

0

261

0

261

261

Total

0

1,004

171

1,175

1,080

0

0

Total future sublease payments expected to be received:
9.2.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust (R1F) as lessor
The income relates to the rental of premises to various organisations.
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Recognised as revenue
Rental revenue
Contingent rents
Total

123

106

0

0

123

106

123

75

42

20

0

0

165

95

Receivable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total
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10.

Employee benefits

10.1.

Employee benefits
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

Total

Total

£000s

£000s

Employee Benefits – Gross Expenditure
Salaries and wages

102,571
9,517

7,370

11,493

11,336

Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA – Pensions Division

102,570

Other pension costs

8

6

Termination benefits

193

215

123,782

121,497

278

164

123,504

121,333

Total employee benefits
Employee costs capitalised
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs
10.2.

Retirements due to ill-health
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

Number

Number
6

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds
£000s
Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year
10.3.

2
£000s

296

28

Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of the Schemes
can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP
practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that
would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme
for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at
the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate
assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:
a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the
reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data
for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of scheme liability
as at 31 March 2017, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2016, updated to 31 March 2017 with summary global member and accounting data.
In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM
Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme
(England and Wales) Pension Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be
obtained from The Stationery Office.
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account their recent
demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012. The Scheme
Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and
consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate.
The next actuarial valuation is to be carried out as at 31 March 2016. This will set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 and will
consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust member benefits
or contribution rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more than 2% of pay. Subject to this ‘employer cost cap’ assessment, any required revisions
to member benefits or contribution rates will be determined by the Secretary of State for Health after consultation with the relevant stakeholders.
The Trust also makes contributions to an occupational pension scheme set up in accordance with the Automatic Enrolment (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Regulations 2012. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme, for which the Trust accounts for its employer contributions within ‘other
pension costs’ in these financial statements.
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11.

Better Payment Practice Code

11.1.

Measure of compliance
2016 / 17

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

2015 / 16

Number

£000s

Number

£000s

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year

28,105

52,304

29,174

56,259

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

25,359

46,352

27,102

53,483

90.23%

88.62%

92.90%

95.07%

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year

2,017

6,270

1,787

5,842

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

1,886

5,674

1,668

5,151

93.51%

90.49%

93.34%

88.17%

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target
NHS Payables

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a
valid invoice, whichever is later.
11.2.

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation

0

0

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

0

0

Total

0

0

12.

Investment Revenue
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Rental revenue
PFI finance lease revenue (planned)

0

0

PFI finance lease revenue (contingent)

0

0

Other finance lease revenue

0

0

Subtotal

0

0

12

18

4

10

Subtotal

16

28

Total investment revenue

16

28

Interest revenue
Bank interest
Other loans and receivables

13.

Other Gains and Losses

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (PPE)
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale
Total

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s
(22)

0

0

10

(22)

10
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Finance Costs
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Interest
Interest on loans and overdrafts

208

8

22

12

230

20

7

8

Interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:
Total interest expense
Other finance costs

0

0

237

28

Provisions – unwinding of discount
Total
15.

Auditors Disclosures

15.1.

Other auditor remuneration
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external
auditor:
2. Audit-related assurance services

10

10

Total

10

10

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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16.1.

Property, plant and equipment

2016 / 17

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Assets
under
Plant &
construction
machinery
& payments
on account
£000’s

£000’s

Transport Information Furniture &
equipment technology
fittings
£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Total

£000’s

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2016

8,520

99,874

0

Additions of Assets Under Construction

1,024

10,278

1,560

2,442

1,332

125,030

1,549

245

1,033

260

3,087

1,786

1,786

Additions Purchased

0

0

0

Additions – Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets)
Additions – Purchases from Cash Donations &
Government Grants
Additions Leased (including PFI / LIFT)

0

0

0

0

45

0

0

0

45

0

0

0

0

12

0

0

0

12

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassifications

0

828

0

(828)

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Disposals other than for sale

0

0

0

0

(53)

(3)

0

0

(56)
274

Revaluation

105

169

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to reserves

0

(1,066)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,066)

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2017

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

8,625

99,805

0

1,982

11,831

1,802

3,475

1,592

129,112

11,674

Depreciation
At 1 April 2016

0

5,464

0

5,441

999

(112)

(118)

Reclassifications

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Disposals other than for sale

0

0

0

(29)

(3)

0

0

(32)

Revaluation

0

(401)

0

0

0

0

0

(401)

Impairment / reversals charged to reserves

0

(2,875)

0

0

0

0

0

(2,875)

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Charged During the Year

0

3,275

0

1,043

194

715

112

5,339

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2017

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,463

0

0

6,455

1,190

603

(6)

13,705

8,625

94,342

0

1,982

5,376

612

2,872

1,598

115,407

Net Book Value at 31 March 2017
Asset financing:

8,625

93,961

0

1,982

4,439

601

2,872

1,559

114,039

Owned – Donated

Owned – Purchased

0

381

0

0

316

11

0

39

747

Owned – Government Granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Held on finance lease

0

0

0

0

621

0

0

0

621

On-SOFP PFI contracts

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

PFI residual interests

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

8,625

94,342

0

1,982

5,376

612

2,872

1,598

115,407

Total at 31 March 2017
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Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

At 1 April 2016

Land

Buildings

Dwellings

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Transport Information Furniture &
equipment technology
fittings
£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Total

£000’s
38,775

5,484

31,780

0

0

536

153

795

27

105

2,377

0

0

(17)

(6)

0

0

2,459

5,589

34,157

0

0

519

147

795

27

41,234

Movements – Annual Revaluation
At 31 March 2017

Assets
under
Plant &
construction
machinery
& payments
on account

Additions to Assets Under Construction in 2016 / 17
Land

0

Buildings excl Dwellings

1,345

Dwellings

0
441

Plant & Machinery

1,786

Balance as at YTD
16.2.

Property, plant and equipment prior-year

2015 / 16

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Assets
under
Plant &
construction
machinery
& payments
on account
£000’s

£000’s

Transport Information Furniture &
equipment technology
fittings
£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Total

£000’s

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2015

8,800

90,334

0

Additions of Assets Under Construction

5,993

8,707

1,503

1,783

370

117,490

814

59

659

456

1,988

3,830

3,830

Additions Purchased

0

Additions – Non Cash Donations (i.e. Physical Assets)
Additions – Purchases from Cash Donations &
Government Grants
Additions Leased (including PFI / LIFT)

0

0

0

0

40

0

0

11

51

0

0

0

0

35

0

0

0

35

0

0

0

778

0

0

0

778

Reclassifications

0

8,283

0

(8,799)

20

0

0

496

0

(182)

(340)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(522)

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals
Disposals other than for sale
Revaluation
Impairment / reversals charged to reserves
Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2016

0

0

0

(58)

0

0

(116)

(2)

0

(1)

(177)

90

4,174

0

0

0

0

0

0

4,264

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(188)

(2,519)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(2,707)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

8,520

99,874

0

1,024

10,278

1,560

2,442

1,332

125,030

9,986

Depreciation
At 1 April 2015

0

5,531

0

4,569

804

(757)

(161)

Reclassifications

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals

0

(25)

0

0

0

0

0

(25)

Disposals other than for sale

0

(76)

0

(98)

(2)

0

(1)

(177)

Revaluation

0

(1,786)

0

0

0

0

0

(1,786)

Impairment / reversals charged to reserves

0

(1,264)

0

0

0

0

0

(1,264)

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Charged During the Year

0

3,084

0

970

197

645

44

4,940

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2016

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,464

0

0

5,441

999

(112)

(118)

11,674

8,520

94,410

0

1,024

4,837

561

2,554

1,450

113,356

Net Book Value at 31 March 2016
Asset financing:

8,520

94,067

0

1,024

3,774

543

2,554

1,410

111,892

Owned – Donated

0

343

0

0

324

18

0

40

725

Owned – Government Granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Held on finance lease

0

0

0

0

739

0

0

0

739

Owned – Purchased

On-SOFP PFI contracts

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

PFI residual interests

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

8,520

94,410

0

1,024

4,837

561

2,554

1,450

113,356

Total at 31 March 2016

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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16.3.

(cont). Property, plant and equipment
“Land and property assets are carried at valuation on the Statement of Financial
Position. All of the Trust’s land and building assets have been revalued as at 31
March 2017 by the District Valuers of the Revenue and Customs Government
Department.
The valuations have been carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual insofar as these terms
are consistent with the agreed requirements of the Department of Health and HM
Treasury.
The Trust’s plant and equipment assets continue to be carried at depreciated
historical cost as a proxy for fair value. Property, plant and equipment is
depreciated at rates calculated to write them down to estimated residual values on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. No depreciation is provided on
freehold land and assets under construction. Current asset lives are as follows:”

Buildings, excluding dwellings

Minimum life (years)

Maximum life (years)

5

55

Plant and machinery

4

25

Transport equipment

5

16

Information technology

3

14

Furniture and fittings

5

17

Donations towards property, plant and equipment in the year have been provided by the Friends of St Mary’s Hospital, NHS England
and the Isle of Wight Council.
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17.

Intangible non-current assets

17.1.

Intangible non-current assets

2016 / 17

IT – in-house
& 3rd party
software

Computer
Licenses

£000’s

£000’s

At 1 April 2016

6,293

Licenses and
Trademarks

Patents

£000’s
0

£000’s
0

Development
Expenditure
– Internally
Generated

Intangible
Assets Under
Construction

Total

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

0

0

0

Additions of Assets Under Construction

6,293

0

0

380

0

0

0

0

0

380

Additions Internally Generated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Additions – Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets)
Additions – Purchases from Cash Donations and
Government Grants
Upward revaluation / positive indexation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

127

0

0

0

0

0

127

Additions Purchased

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to reserves

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfer (to) / from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2017

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6,800

0

0

0

0

0

6,800

At 1 April 2016

3,892

0

0

0

0

3,892

Reclassifications

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassified as Held for Sale and Reversals

0

0

0

0

0

0

Disposals other than by sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

Upward revaluation / positive indexation

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairment / reversals charged to reserves

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,119

0

0

0

0

1,119

Amortisation

Charged During the Year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfer (to) / from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2017

5,011

0

0

0

0

0

5,011

Net Book Value at 31 March 2017

1,789

0

0

0

0

0

1,789

Asset Financing: Net book value at 31 March 2017 comprises:
1,673

0

0

0

0

0

1,673

116

0

0

0

0

0

116

Government Granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Finance Leased

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

On-balance Sheet PFIs

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,789

0

0

0

0

0

1,789

Purchased
Donated

Total at 31 March 2017
Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

At 1 April 2016

6

0

0

0

0

0

6

Movements (specify)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

At 31 March 2017

6

0

0

0

0

0

6

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Intangible non-current assets prior year

2015 / 16

IT – in-house
& 3rd party
software

Computer
Licenses

Licenses and
Trademarks

Patents

Development
Expenditure
– Internally
Generated

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

Total
£000’s

£000’s

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2015

6,047

0

0

0

0

0

6,047

204

0

0

0

0

0

204

Additions – internally generated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Additions – donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

42

0

0

0

0

0

42

Upward revaluation / positive indexation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to reserves

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfer (to) / from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2016

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6,293

0

0

0

0

0

6,293

Additions – purchased

Additions – government granted

Amortisation
At 1 April 2015

2,552

0

0

0

0

0

2,552

Reclassifications

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassified as held for sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Disposals other than by sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Upward revaluation / positive indexation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to operating expenses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments / reversals charged to reserves

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,340

0

0

0

0

0

1,340

Charged during the year
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfer (to) / from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2016

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3,892

0

0

0

0

0

3,892

Net book value at 31 March 2016

2,401

0

0

0

0

0

2,401

Net book value at 31 March 2016 comprises:
Purchased
Donated

2,359

2,359

42

42

Government Granted

0

0

Finance Leased

0

0

On-balance Sheet PFIs
Total at 31 March 2016
17.3.

0
2,401

0
0

0

0

0

0

2,401

Intangible non-current assets
Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software which is carried at amortised historical cost, as a proxy for fair value, together with development expenditure which is
carried at a nominal value. Assets are capitalised and amortised over the useful lives on a straight-line basis. Useful lives are all finite and range from 1 to 8 years.
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18.

Commitments

18.1.

Capital commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s
1,207

1,347

486

127

1,693

1,474

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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19.

Inventories

Balance at 1 April 2016
Additions
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period
Write-down of inventories (including losses)

Drugs

Consumables

Work in
Progress

Energy

Loan
Equipment

Other

Total

Of which
held at
NRV

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1,065

1,157

0

15

0

0

2,237

0

10,860

3,418

0

9

0

0

14,287

0

(11,049)

(3,167)

0

0

0

0

(14,216)

0

(18)

(17)

0

0

0

0

(35)

0

Reversal of write-down previously taken to SOCI

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting
Balance at 31 March 2017
20.1.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

858

1,391

0

24

0

0

2,273

0

Trade and other receivables
Current

Non-current

31 March
2017

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

31 March
2016

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2,308

1,474

0

0

0

0

0

0

NHS prepayments and accrued income

1,283

1,247

0

0

Non-NHS receivables – revenue

1,737

857

0

0

NHS receivables – revenue
NHS receivables – capital

Non-NHS receivables – capital
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income
PDC Dividend prepaid to DH
Provision for the impairment of receivables

0

0

0

0

1,027

940

158

255

0

96

0

0

(342)

(416)

0

0

466

578

0

0

Current / non-current part of PFI and other PPP arrangements
prepayments and accrued income excluding PFI lifecycle

0

0

0

0

Interest receivables

0

0

0

0

VAT

Finance lease receivables

0

0

0

0

Operating lease receivables

0

0

0

0

421

1,554

0

0

Total

6,900

6,330

158

255

Total current and non current

7,058

6,585

Other receivables

Included in NHS receivables are prepaid pension contributions:

0

The great majority of trade is with Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England . As both these bodies are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care, no credit scoring of them is
considered necessary.
Outstanding invoiced receivables are reviewed monthly and any invoices that are greater than 90 days past their due date are assessed for impairment. The Trust does not hold collateral for
any of its non-NHS receivables.

20.2.

Receivables past their due date but not impaired

31 March
2017

31 March
2016

£000s

£000s

By up to three months

601

1,365

By three to six months

102

319

By more than six months
Total

56

38

759

1,722
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Provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at 1 April 2016

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

(416)

(438)

45

10

Amount written off during the year

0

0

29

12

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT

0

0

Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

0

0

(342)

(416)

Amount recovered during the year
(Increase) / decrease in receivables impaired

Balance at 31 March 2017
Injury Cost Recovery debtors have been impaired at 22.94% as per Department of Health guidelines.
Non-NHS receivables and receivables relating to Foundation Trusts that are greater than 121 days have been impaired in full.

21.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March
2017

31 March
2016

£000s

£000s

Opening balance

2,638

8,799

Net change in year

4,657

(6,161)

Closing balance

7,295

2,638

7,281

2,623

0

0

14

15

0

0

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service
Commercial banks
Cash in hand
Liquid deposits with NLF
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial
position

0

0

7,295

2,638

Bank overdraft – Government Banking Service

0

0

Bank overdraft – Commercial banks

0

0

7,295

2,638

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows

0
0
0
0
0
0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other than
disposal by sale

Transfers to Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT

Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

Balance at 31 March 2017

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2017

Balance at 1 April 2015

0

0

0
0

Balance at 31 March 2016

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2016
0

0
0

0

0

0

(315)

315

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other than
disposal by sale
Transfers (to) / from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale

(182)

Less impairment of assets held for sale

Less assets sold in the year

182

0

0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

0

0

Less impairment of assets held for sale

Land
0

Dwellings

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Asset Under
Construction
and Payments
on Account

0

0

Plant and
Machinery
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

Transport and
Equipment

£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

Information
Technology

£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

Furniture and
Fittings

Less assets sold in the year

£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

Intangible
Assets

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

Buildings, excl.
dwellings

£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

Financial
Assets

0

Non-current assets held for sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(497)

497

£000s

Total

Balance at 1 April 2016

22.
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23.

Trade and other payables
Current

NHS payables – revenue

Non-current

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2,753

0

615

0

0

0

0

0

1,116

1,077

0

0

Non-NHS payables – revenue

2,974

2,377

0

0

Non-NHS payables – capital

3,232

855

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

NHS payables – capital
NHS accruals and deferred income

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income

5,775

8,848

Social security costs

1,338

1,096

PDC Dividend payable to DH

66

0

Accrued Interest on DH Loans

0

0

0

0

1,085

1,120

0

0

VAT
Tax
Payments received on account
Other

1,709

2,036

0

0

Total

20,048

18,024

0

0

Total payables (current and non-current)

20,048

18,024

0

0

Included above:
to Buy Out the Liability for Early Retirements Over 5 Years

0

0

1,568

1,563

number of Cases Involved (number)
outstanding Pension Contributions at the year end
24.

Borrowings
Current

Non-current

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Bank overdraft – Government Banking Service

0

0

Bank overdraft – commercial banks

0

0

Loans from Department of Health

0

0

14,030

1,735

Loans from other entities

0

0

0

0

PFI liabilities – main liability

0

0

0

0

LIFT liabilities – main liability

0

0

0

0

106

102

531

637

0

0

0

0

106

102

14,561

2,372

14,667

2,474

Finance lease liabilities
Other (describe)
Total
Total other liabilities (current and non-current)

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Borrowings / Loans – repayment of principal falling due in:
31 March 2017
DH

Other

£000s
0 – 1 Years

Total

£000s

£000s
106

0

106

1 – 2 Years

0

109

109

2 – 5 Years

14,030

350

14,380

0

72

72

14,030

637

14,667

Over 5 Years
TOTAL
25.

Deferred income
Current

Non-current

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Opening balance at 1 April 2016

1,791

1,673

0

0

Deferred revenue addition

8,621

10,147

0

0

(8,284)

(10,029)

0

0

Current deferred Income at 31 March 2017

2,128

1,791

0

0

Total deferred income (current and non-current)

2,128

1,791

Transfer of deferred revenue

26.

Finance lease obligations as lessee

Amounts payable under finance leases (Other)

Minimum lease payments
31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s

Present value of minimum lease
payments
31 March 2017
31 March 2016
£000s

£000s

Within one year

106

102

106

102

Between one and five years

531

565

531

565

After five years

0

72

0

72

Less future finance charges
Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease
payments

0

0

637

739

637

739

Current borrowings

106

0

Non-current borrowings

531

0

637

0

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s

£000s

Included in:

Finance leases as lessee
Future Sublease Payments Expected to be received

0

0

Contingent Rents Recognised as an Expense

0

0
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27.

Provisions
Comprising:
Total
£000s

Balance at 1 April 2016

407

Early
Departure
Costs

Legal
Claims

£000s

£000s
0

Restructuring

Continuing
Care

Equal
Pay (incl.
Agenda for
Change

Other

Redundancy

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

92

0

0

0

315

0

Arising during the year

525

0

60

0

0

0

305

160

Utilised during the year

(142)

0

(27)

0

0

0

(115)

0

Reversed unused

(175)

0

(52)

0

0

0

(123)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unwinding of discount
Change in discount rate

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trusts on being authorised as FT

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Transfers (to) / from other public sector bodies under absorption
accounting
Balance at 31 March 2017

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

615

0

73

0

0

0

382

160

583

0

73

0

0

0

350

160

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
No Later than One Year
Later than One Year and not later than Five Years
Later than Five Years

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

32

0

0

0

0

0

32

0

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:
As at 31 March 2017

8,504

As at 31 March 2016

5,634

Other provisions include figures for Industrial Tribunal cases (£177k), Carbon Reduction Commitment (£120k) and provision for various property dilapidations (£85k).
It is not possible to be precise regarding dates of settlement for industrial injury and other legal claims and therefore there is uncertainty over the calculation and timings of amounts due.
28.

Analysis of charitable fund reserves
The Trusts charitable funds have not been consolidated within this set of accounts and are reported separately.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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29.

Financial Instruments

29.1.

Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or
changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the Trust has
with commissioners and the way those commissioners are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds
and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing
the Trust in undertaking its activities.
The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within
the Trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors. The Trust’s treasury activity is subject to review
by the Trust’s auditors.
Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and
sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Interest rate risk
The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS Improvement. The
borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate,
fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
The Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS Improvement. Interest rates are
confirmed by the Department of Health (the lender) at the point borrowing is undertaken.
The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trust’s revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to
credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2017 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other
receivables note.
Liquidity risk
The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England, which are financed
from resources voted annually by Parliament . The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential
borrowing limit. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

29.2.

Financial Assets
At ‘fair
value
through
profit and
loss’
£000s

Embedded derivatives

Loans and
receivables

Available
for sale

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s
0

0

Receivables – NHS

695

695

Receivables – non-NHS

1,737

1,737

Cash at bank and in hand

7,295

7,295

Other financial assets

0

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2017

0

9,727

0

9,727

Embedded derivatives

0

Receivables – NHS

0
1,729

1,729

Receivables – non-NHS

1,866

1,866

Cash at bank and in hand

2,638

2,638

Other financial assets

0

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2016

0

6,233

0

6,233
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Financial Liabilities
At ‘fair
value
through
profit and
loss’
£000s

Embedded derivatives

Other

Total

£000s

£000s
0

0

NHS payables

1,141

1,141

Non-NHS payables

4,451

4,451

Other borrowings

14,667

14,667

0

0

PFI & finance lease obligations
Other financial liabilities

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2017

0

20,259

20,259

Embedded derivatives

0
664

664

Non-NHS payables

4,966

4,966

Other borrowings

2,474

2,474

NHS payables

0

PFI & finance lease obligations

0

0

Other financial liabilities

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2016

0

8,104

8,104

30.

Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no known post balance sheet events requiring disclosure.
These Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Chief Executive on 30th May 2017.

31.

Related party transactions
During the year none of the Department of Health Ministers, Isle of Wight NHS Trust board members or members of the key
management staff, or parties related to any of them, has undertaken any material transactions with the Isle of Wight NHS Trust.
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the Isle of Wight NHS Trust has had a significant number of
material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.
For example :
2016 / 17

Isle of Wight CCG
NHS England – Wessex
University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust

2015 / 16

Expenditure

Revenue

Expenditure

Revenue

£’000’s

£’000’s

£’000’s

£’000’s

0

135,154

6

138,957

354

9,694

70

13,149

661

514

261

895

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust

3,149

456

3,034

106

NHS Litigation Authority

3,516

0

2,697

0

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government
bodies.
The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from the NHS Trust’s charitable funds currently registered with the Charity
Commission under number 1049606 in the name of Isle of Wight NHS Trust Charitable Funds. The Corporate Trustee of the charitable
funds is Isle of Wight NHS Trust. The Trust makes purchases on behalf of the Charity in accordance with Standing Financial Instructions and
procurement procedures for which the Charity reimburses the Trust on a monthly basis.
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Losses and special payments
The total number of losses cases in 2016 / 17 and their total value was as
follows:
Total Value
of Cases

Total
Number
of Cases

£s
Losses

75,722

43

Special payments

33,140

25

0

0

108,862

68

Gifts
Total losses and special payments and gifts
The total number of losses cases in 2015 / 16 and their total value was as follows:

Total Value
of Cases

Total
Number
of Cases

£s
Losses

46,428

37

Special payments

17,884

20

Total losses and special payments

64,312

57

[Note, PY not linked to
FMAs]

0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

Adjustments for impairments
Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated / government
grants assets
Consolidated Budgetary Guidance – adjustment for dual accounting
under IFRIC12*
Absorption accounting adjustment

Other agreed adjustments

Break-even in-year position

Break-even cumulative position

£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

£000s

0

0

0

543

543

2,156

1,613

0

0

0
0

0

(224)

0

0

0

1,837

171,867

£000s

0

(78)

0
0

112

0

0

509

168,757

0

0

0

0

0

£000s

2,171

15

0

0

0

(22)

2,641

0

0

(2,604)

174,386

£000s

(6,187)

(8,358)

0

0

0

38

0

0

0

(8,396)

170,276

£000s

(17,147)

(10,960)

0

0

0

(48)

0

0

0

(10,912)

171,110

£000s

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

%

0.00

0.00

%

0.00

0.00

%

0.00

0.00

%

0.32

0.32

%

1.25

0.94

%

1.24

0.01

%

−3.63

−4.91

%

−10.02

−6.41

%

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005 / 06 to 2008 / 09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis. The Trust was established on 1st April 2012.

0.00

Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover

%
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Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

%

2006 / 07 2007 / 08 2008 / 09 2009 / 10 2010 / 11 2011 / 12 2012 / 13 2013 / 14 2014 / 15 2015 / 16 2016 / 17

*Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009 / 10, NHS [organisation]’s financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance
issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure. Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include
PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance. Other adjustments are made in respect of
accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

0

0

Prior Period Adjustments

0

0

0

0

£000s

Pre FDL(97)24 agreements

Timing / non-cash impacting distortions:

Adjustment for:

Retained surplus / (deficit) for the year

£000s

2006 / 07 2007 / 08 2008 / 09 2009 / 10 2010 / 11 2011 / 12 2012 / 13 2013 / 14 2014 / 15 2015 / 16 2016 / 17

0

Breakeven performance

The figures given for periods prior to 2009 / 10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years. The Trust was established on 1st April 2012.

Financial performance targets

Turnover

33.1.

33.
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33.2.

Capital cost absorption rate
The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average relevant net assets based on the
pre audited accounts and therefore the actual capital cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.

33.3.

External financing
The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.
2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s

External financing limit (EFL)
Cash flow financing

33.4.

14,423

8,995

8,143

7,319

Finance leases taken out in the year

0

778

Other capital receipts

0

(77)

External financing requirement

8,143

8,020

Under / (over) spend against EFL

6,280

975

Capital resource limit
The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

Gross capital expenditure
Less: book value of assets disposed of
Less: capital grants
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets

2016 / 17

2015 / 16

£000s

£000s
5,437

6,928

(24)

(497)

(139)

0

(45)

(128)

Charge against the capital resource limit

5,229

6,303

Capital resource limit

6,953

6,305

(Over) / underspend against the capital resource limit

1,724

2

The underspend was planned.
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Part four

Independent auditor’s report

The role of the auditor
External auditors have two broad
objectives:
• To review and report on the
Trust’s annual accounts and
statement on governance; and
• To review whether the Trust has
made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of
resources.
Auditors are required to comply with
the Code of Audit Practice (published
by the Audit Commission) and
International Standards on Auditing
(United Kingdom and Ireland) (ISAs
(UK&I)).
The appointed auditor will audit the
Trust’s annual accounts and give an
opinion stating whether the accounts
give a true and fair view of the
organisation’s affairs at the end of the
financial year.
Auditors will also consider the Annual
Report and make a statement in
their audit opinion if its contents are
inconsistent with their knowledge of
the organisation.

In addition to their opinion on the
accounts, auditors are also required to
issue:
• A report to those charged with
governance (in most cases the
audit committee) incorporating
the report required under ISA
(UK&I) 260 and setting out the
main matters arising from the
audit of the annual accounts;
and
• An annual audit letter
summarising the key issues
arising from audit work
throughout the year.
Auditors also have special reporting
powers and can issue a public interest
report or make a referral to the
Secretary of State.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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We have audited the financial
statements of Isle of Wight NHS
Trust for the year ended 31 March
2017 under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. The financial
statements comprise the Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’
Equity, Statement of Cash Flows
and the related notes 1 to 33.4. The
financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union,
and as interpreted and adapted by
the 2016 / 17 Government Financial
Reporting Manual (the 2016 / 17 FReM)
as contained in the Department of
Health Group Accounting Manual
2016 / 17 and the Accounts Direction
issued by the Secretary of State
with the approval of HM Treasury as
relevant to the National Health SeNice
in England (the Accounts Direction).
We have also audited the information
in the Remuneration and Staff Report
that is subject to audit, being:
• the table of salaries and
allowances of senior managers
and related narrative notes;
• the table of pension benefits
of senior managers and related
narrative notes;
• the tables of exit packages and
related notes;
• the analysis of staff numbers and
costs and related notes; and
• the table of pay multiples and
related narrative notes.

This report is made solely to the Board of
Directors of Isle of Wight NHS Trust, as
a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors
and Audited Bodies published by Public
Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Directors
of the Trust those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Directors, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of
Directors, the Accountable Officer
and auditor
As explained more fully in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the Accounts, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. Our responsibility is to
audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
Those standards also require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
As explained in the statement of the
Chief Executive’s responsibilities, as the
Accountable Officer of the Trust, the
Accountable Officer is responsible for
the arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of the Trust’s resources.
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We are required under section 21
(3)(c), as amended by schedule 13
paragraph 1 0(a), of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 to be
satisfied that the Trust has made
proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. Section 21 (5)(b)
of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 requires that our report
must not contain our opinion if we are
satisfied that proper arrangements are
in place.
We are not required to consider, nor
have we considered, whether all
aspects of the Trust’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.
Scope of the audit of the financial
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of:
• whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the
Trust’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;
• the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by
the directors; and
• the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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In addition we read all the financial
and non-financial information in
the annual report and accounts to
identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that
is apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.
Scope of the review of
arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of
resources
We have undertaken our review in
accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice, having regard to the guidance
on the specified criterion issued by
the Comptroller and Auditor General
in November 2016, as to whether
the Trust had proper arrangements
to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources
to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local
people. The Comptroller and Auditor
General determined this criterion as
that necessary for us to consider under
the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying
ourselves whether the Trust put in
place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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We planned our work in accordance
with the Code of Audit Practice. Based
on our risk assessment, we undertook
such work as we considered necessary
to form a view on whether, in all
significant respects, the Trust had put
in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources.
Opinion on the financial
statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of
the financial position of Isle of
Wight NHS Trust as at 31 March
2017 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended;
and
• have been prepared properly in
accordance with the National
Health Service Act 2006 and
the Accounts Directions issued
thereunder.
Emphasis of matter – going
concern
In forming our opinion, which is not
qualified, we have also considered the
adequacy of the disclosure made in
note 1.1 to the financial statements
concerning the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The
conditions described in note 1.1
indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt about the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The
financial statements do not include
the adjustments that would result if
the Trust was unable to continue as a
going concern.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Opinion on other matters
In our opinion:
• the parts of the Remuneration
and Staff Report to be audited
have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Accounts
Direction made under the
National Health Service Act
2006; and
• the other information published
together with the audited
financial statements in the
annual report and accounts is
consistent with the financial
statements.
Matters on which we are required
to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect
of the following matters:
• in our opinion the governance
statement does not comply
with the NHS Improvement’s
guidance; or
• we issue a report in the public
interest under section 24 of the
Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014; or
• we make a written
recommendation to the Trust
under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act
2014.
• we are not satisfied that the Trust
has made proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31
March 2017.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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In respect of the following we have a
matter to report by exception:
• Referral to the Secretary of State
We refer a matter to the Secretary of
State under section 30 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014
because we have reason to believe
that the Trust, or an officer of the
Trust, is about to make, or has made,
a decision which involves or would
involve the body incurring unlawful
expenditure, or is about to take, or
has begun to take a course of action
which, if followed to its conclusion,
would be unlawful and likely to cause
a loss or deficiency.
On 7 June 2016 we referred a matter
to the Secretary of State under
section 30 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. We had
reason to believe that the Trust was,
taking into account the NHS Finance
Manual Guidance on Breakeven Duty
and Provisions in the financial year
ending 31 March 2016 at risk of
breaching of the breakeven duty set
out at paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 5 to
the National Health Service Act 2006.
The unaudited financial statements
for 2015 / 16 showed an in year
£8.358 million deficit. The cumulative
breakeven position at the end of
this financial year is a £6.187 million
deficit. The Trust’s financial projections
at the time of the referral showed that
it anticipated a further financial deficit
in 2016 / 17 of £9.8 million. Based on
the planned outturn for 2016 / 17, we
concluded the Trust would need to
deliver a significant surplus in 2017 / 18
to meet its rolling breakeven duty
which we did not consider to be likely.

• Proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and
effectiveness
We report to you, if we are not
satisfied that the Trust has put in
place proper arrangements to secure
economy efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources.
Basis for adverse conclusion on
reporting by exception
The Trust’s outturn position for
2016 / 17 was a £10.96 million deficit,
which is a significant deterioration
compared to the Trust breakeven
forecast. In addition, the Trust’s
medium term financial plan shows a
further substantial deterioration, with
a forecast deficit of £18.835 million for
2017 / 18.
The deterioration in the Trust’s
financial outturn was due to a loss
of Sustainability and Transformation
Fund funding due to financial and
performance targets not being met, a
higher occupancy of medical patients
contributing to the cancellation
of elective activity leading to an
underperformance on the main Clinical
Commissioning Group contract and
this also led to additional staffing
requirements for nursing staff and
medical locums. Consequently Cost
Improvement Programme targets were
adversely affected.
These issues are evidence of
weaknesses in proper arrangements for
planning finances effectively to support
the sustainable delivery of strategic
priorities and maintain statutory
functions.

The Care Quality Commission (CQC)
inspected the Trust in November 2016,
and issued the Trust with an overall
rating of inadequate in its report in
April 2017. The report highlighted
concerns in respect of quality, safety
and staffing levels.
This is evidence of weaknesses in
arrangements for planning and
deploying workforce to deliver the
Trust’s priorities effectively.
Adverse conclusion on reporting by
exception
On the basis of our work, having
regard to the guidance issued by the
C&AG in November 2016, we are
not satisfied that, in all significant
respects, Isle of Wight NHS Trust put in
place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the
audit of the accounts of Isle of Wight
NHS Trust in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code
of Audit Practice.

Paul King
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Reading
1 June 2017
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Appendices

Appendix A

.

Last rated
12 April 2017

CQC Inspection – detailed ratings
The CQC inspected all the Trusts
services apart from the NHS 111
service and the GP out of hours
element of the Urgent Care Service.
The following charts show how the
Trust’s services were rated.

.

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

Overall
rating

Acute wards for adults of
working age and
psychiatric intensive care
units
Community health
inpatient services
Community health
services for adults
Community health
services for children,
young people and families

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Safe

Effective

Caring

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Good

Good

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Good

Good

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Inadequate

Responsive

Outstanding

Well led

Overall

Requires
Requires
Requires
improvement improvement improvement

Community mental health
services for people with
learning disabilities or
autism

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Community-based mental
health services for adults
of working age

Inadequate

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Inadequate

Inadequate

Inadequate

Long stay/rehabilitation
mental health wards for
working age adults

Inadequate

Inadequate

Good

Requires
improvement

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Requires
Requires
Requires
improvement improvement improvement

Specialist community
mental health services for
children and young
people
Substance misuse
services
Wards for older people
with mental health
problems

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Inadequate

Inadequate

Good

Inadequate

Inadequate

Inadequate

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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.

Last rated
12 April 2017

.
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St Mary's Hospital
Overall
rating

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Outstanding

Safe

Effective

Caring

Responsive

Well led

Overall

Medical care (including
older peopleÕs care)

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Inadequate

Inadequate

Inadequate

Urgent and emergency
services (A&E)

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Maternity and
gynaecology

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Services for children &
young people

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Surgery

Intensive/critical care

End of life care

Outpatients

Ambulance services

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Good

Requires
Requires
Requires
improvement improvement improvement

Requires
Requires
Requires
improvement improvement improvement

Good

Not rated

Good

Good

Good

Good

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good
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Ambulance Service
Overall
rating

Emergency operations
centre (EOC)
Patient transport services
(PTS)
Emergency and urgent
care

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Outstanding

Safe

Effective

Caring

Responsive

Well led

Overall

Good

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Requires
improvement

Good

Good

Good

Inadequate

Requires
improvement

Good

Requires
improvement

Requires
Requires
improvement improvement

Inadequate

Inadequate

Isle of Wight NHS Trust
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Appendix B
Glossary
The NHS can be confusing with its use of acronyms. The following jargon buster is included to help explain some of the terms
used.
Clinical Commissioning Group
CCG

A clinically led group that includes all of the GP groups in the geographical area. (An NHS organisation set up by
the Health & Social Care Act 2012 to organise the delivery of NHS services in England).
Clostridium difficile

C. Difficile

A type of bacterial infection that can affect the digestive system. Most commonly affects people who have been
treated with antibiotics.
The Care Programme Approach (CPA)

CPA

A way that services are assessed, planned, co-ordinated and reviewed for someone with mental health problems
or a range of related complex needs.

CQC

Care Quality Commission
The independent regulator of all health and social care services in England.

DH

Department of Health

EDS

A framework developed to assist NHS organisations to ensure they comply with equality legislation and embed
equality matters across the National Health Service (NHS).
Friends & Family Test

FFT

Aims to provide a simple headline metric which, when combined with follow-up questions, is a tool to ensure
transparency, celebrate success and galvanise improved patient experience.

Equality Delivery System

HCAI
IM&T
KPIs
LGBT

Healthcare Associated Infections
Infections that are acquired as a result of healthcare interventions.
Information Management & Technology
Key Performance Indicators
A way of monitoring and managing performance against a pre-determined target.
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT)
Intended to emphasise a diversity of sexuality and gender identity-based cultures.
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My Life A Full Life

MLAFL

MRSA

Never Event
NHSi
NICE
RRP
RTT

My Life A Full Life is a new model of care for the Island developed in collaboration with the local community
and with local health and care partner organisations in the statutory, private and voluntary sector. It aims to
improve the health, wellbeing and care of our island population by changing the way in which health and care
services are planned and provided on the Island both now and in the future – making them both clinically and
financially sustainable. Its goal is to make sure that everyone works together to give people the right support and
information so they can look after themselves better and live their lives to the full. It also aims to make sure that
people only go to hospital when they really need to, by making more support available for people closer to their
home.
Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus
A type of bacterial infection that is resistant to a number of widely used antibiotics – can be more difficult to treat
than other bacterial infections.
A never event is a serious, largely preventable patient safety incident that should not occur if the available
preventative measures have been implemented.
NHS Improvement
A new body resulting from the merger of the Trust Development Authority and Monitor.
National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
Provides national guidance and advice to improve health and social care.
Rolling Replacement Programme
Referral to treatment
The time it takes from your GP referring you for treatment to a definitive secondary care treatment being provided.
The Standardised Hospital-level Mortality Indicator

SHMI

An indicator which reports on mortality at trust level across the NHS in England using a standard and transparent
methodology – also known as Standardised Hospital Mortality Indicator.
Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation

SIRIs

An incident that occurred in relation to NHS-funded services and care resulting in unexpected or avoidable death;
serious harm; prevents ability to deliver services; abuse; adverse media coverage; never event.

STP

Sustainability and Transformation Plan

TDA
TIA

Trust Development Authority
Provided support, oversight and governance for all NHS Trusts prior to 1 / 4 / 16.
Transient Ischaemic Attack or ‘mini stroke’.
Venous thromboembolism

VTE

A condition that includes both deep vein thrombosis (DVT) and pulmonary embolism (PE). DVT is the formation of
a blood clot in a deep vein—usually in the leg or pelvic veins. The most serious complication of a DVT is that the
clot could dislodge and travel to the lungs, becoming a PE.

If you can’t find an explanation here please try https://www.england.nhs.uk/participation/resources/involvejargon/

Get in touch; Get Involved

Tell Us What You Think

We want to know what you think of
your NHS. How can we improve? You
can make a difference by…

Isle of Wight NHS Trust welcomes feedback and questions from staff, stakeholders,
members and the wider public on this document and any other issue relating to
our services.

• Joining the Trust as a Public
Member – and if you have time
to spare, why not become one of
our valued volunteers?
• As a Member attend our
Medicine for Members meetings
and other events.
• Becoming a Quality Champion (if
you’re one of our Staff Members)
and taking an active role in one
of the many initiatives designed
to improve the patient and staff
experience.

Corporate Communications, Engagement and Membership Team, Isle of Wight
NHS Trust, Trust HQ, South Block, St Mary’s Hospital, Newport, Isle of Wight,
PO30 5TG
Email: comms@iow.nhs.uk
Twitter: @IoWNHSTrust
Facebook: www.facebook.com/IsleOfWightNHSTrust
LinkedIn: www.linkedin.com/company/nhs-isle-of-wight
YouTube: www.youtube.com/IsleofWightNHS
Website: www.iow.nhs.uk

• Becoming a member of our
Patient Council.
Please get in touch. Telephone:
01983 822099 ext 5703 or e-mail
membership@iow.nhs.uk
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Alternative formats
This report can be made available in alternative languages and a variety of formats including audio, large print and
Braille. If you would like this report in a different format, or need access to a translation service, please call us on
01983 822099 ext 6175.
Online
This report is available on our website at www.iow.nhs.uk/publications

Ambulance, Community, Hospital, Learning Disability & Mental Health Services

www.iow.nhs.uk

